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October 20, 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Couneil

State House

Concord, NH 03301

Your Excellency and Members of the Council:

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Justice (DOJ) to enter into subgrants with the subrecipients
listed below, in an amount not to exceed $2,603,663 for the purpose of providing services to
vietims of crime, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval or January 1, 2026,
whichever is later, through September 30, 2026. 100% General Funds.

Funding is available in account number 02-20-20-200010-2601, Department of Justice,
Attomev General Grants Non- Federal as follows:

Class Account Subrecipient Vendor # SFY2026

Amount

073-500581 New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence

155510-B001 $1,962,336

073-500581 Catholic Charities New Hampshire 177165-BOOl $73,270

073-500581 Granite State Children's Alliance 172495-BOOl $568,057

Total $2,603,663

EXPLANATION

The Department of Justice subgrants these funds to agencies providing direct services to
victims of crime. Agencies providing services in the fields of sexual assault, domestic
violence, traditionally underserved populations, and crimes against children are given priority.

Telephone 603-271-3658 • FAX 603-271-2110 • TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964



Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

October 20, 2025

Page 2 of 2

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence and its twelve
member programs provide services to victims of domestic and sexual violence. The funding will

deliver vital services to victims that include bousing, shelter, crisis services to victims of

domestic violence, hotlines for domestic violence and sexual assault, sexual assault support and
crisis services, a Trauma Informed Specialist position, and support for the statewide sexual

assault nurse examiners program.

New Hampshire Catholic Charities will provide specialized legal services for victims of
crime.

Granite State Children's Alliance will utilize funds for training and outreach to ensure
court-related interviews of children are conducted consistently and with the least amount of
trauma.

NH DOJ has determined the vendors are in good standing with the Secretary of State's
Office, have secured the required levels of insurance and have provided evidence of authority to
execute and be bound by these agreements. Also, the New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence and Granite State Children's Alliance are non-profit
organizations, and the NH DOJ has confirmed the vendors are registered and in good standing
with the Department of Justice's Charitable Division. Per RSA 7:19,1, New Hampshire Catholic
Charities is in good standing with Department of Justice's Charitable Division. The documents
supporting these assertions are available at NH DOJ, for review upon request.

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning this request. Your
consideration is greatly appreciated.

Respectfully submitted.

JcM M. Formella

Attorney General

#5258889



FORM NUMBER G-1 (version 11/2021)

GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the; Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Identification and Definitions.

I.l. State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Justice
1.2. State Agency Address
1 Granite Place South, Concord, NH 03301

1.3. Grantee Name New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

1.4. Grantee Address

100 North Main Street, Concord NH 03301

1.5 Grantee Phone #

(603) 224-8893

1.6. Account Number

02-20-20-201510-2601

-073-500581

1.7. Completion Date

09/30/2026

1.8. Grant Limitation

$1,962,336

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency
Kathleen Carr

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number
(603) 271-3658

If Grantee is a municipality or village district: "By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public
meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant, including if applicable RSA 31;95-b."

1.11. Grantee Signature 1 1.12. Name & Title of Grantee Signor 1

Lyn M. Schollett, Executive Director

Grantee Signature 2 Name & Title of Grantee Signor 2

Grantee Signature 3 Name & Title of Grantee Signor 3

1.13 State Agency Signature(s) 1.14. Name »& Title of State Agency Signor(s)

ly. Thomas D. Kaempfer, Deputy Director of Admin
* iy

1.15. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

By; J.MzMAA' Assistant Attorney General, On: / /10/15/25

1.16. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: / /

2. SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting
through the Agency identified in block l.I (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Grantee
identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as "the Grantee"), shall perform that work identified and
more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work
being hereinafter referred to as "the Project").
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4.

4.1.

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

7.2.

8.2.

8.3.

9.

9.1.

AREA COVERED. Except as otherwise specifically provided for herein, the
Grantee shall perform the Project in, and with respect to, the State of New
Hampshire. 9.2.
EFFECTIVE DATE: COMPLETION OF PROJECT.

This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereimder, shall become
effective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.16), or upon 9.3.
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 ("the Effective Date").
Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including all reports 9.4.
required by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to the date in
block 1.7 (hereinafter referred to as "the Completion Date").
GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: PAYMENT.

The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C,
attached hereto. 9.5.

The maimer of, and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT C.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT C, and in consideration 10.
of the satisfactory performance of the Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Grantee the Grant Amount The State shall withhold fiom the amount otherwise

payable to the Grantee under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums required, or
permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7-c.
The payment by the State of the Grant amoimt shall be the only, and the complete
payment to the Grantee for all expenses, of whatever nature, incurred by the
Grantee in the performance hereof, and shall be the only, and the complete,
compensation to the Grantee for the Project. The State shall have no liabilities to 11.
the Grantee other than the Grant Amount. 11.1.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and notwithstanding
unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of aU payments authorized, 11.1.1

or actually made, hereunder exceed the Grant limitation set forth in block 1.8 of 11.1.2
these general provisions. 11.1.3
COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. In 11.1.4

connection with the performance of the Project, the Grantee shall comply with all 11.2.
statutes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, coimty, or municipal
authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the Grantee, including 11.2.1
the acquisition of any and all necessary permits and RSA 31-95-b.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years after the Completion
Date, imless otherwise required by the grant terms or the Agency, the Grantee
shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in coimection with the 11.2.2
Project, including, but not limited to, costs of administration, transportation,
insiuance, telephone calls, and clerical materials and services. Such accounts
shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and other similar documents.
Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years after the Completion
Date, unless otherwise requited by the grant terms or the Agency pursuant to 11.2.3
subparagraph 7.1, at any time during the Grantee's normal business hours, and as
often as the State shall demand, the Grantee shall make available to the State all 11.2.4
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement The Grantee shall
permit the State to audit examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits 12.
of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of persotmel, data (as that 12.1.
term is hereinafter defined), and other information relating to all matters covered
by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, "Grantee" includes all persons,
natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common ownership
with, the entity identified as the Grantee in block 1.3 of these provisions
PERSONNEL.

The Grantee shall, at its own expense, provide all persotmel necessary to perform 12.2.
the Project. The Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged in the Project shall
be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed and authorized
to perform such Project tmder all applicable laws.
The Grantee shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, subgrantee, 12.3.
or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort
to perform the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual relationship with
the State, or who is a State officer or employee, elected or appointed.
The Grant Officer shall be the representative of the State hereunder. In the event
of any dispute hereunder, the interpretation of this Agreement by the Grant 12.4.
Officer, and his/her decision on any dispute, shall be final.
DATA: RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS.

As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all information and things 13.
developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or developed by
reason of, this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, soimd recordings, video recordings, pictorial
reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations.

computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or imfinished.
Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Grantee shall grant to
the State, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access to all data for
examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any other
purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other country by
anyone other than the State.
On and after the Effective Date all data, and any property which has been received
from the State or piuchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned to the State
upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, whichever
shall first occur.

The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have uiuestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, all data.
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the State
be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those funds, the State shall

have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever, and
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Grantee notice of such termination.

EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the Grantee shall constitute
an event of default hereunder (hereinafter referred to as "Events of Default"):
Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or

Failure to submit any report required hereunder; or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hereunder; or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreement.
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take any one, or more,
or all, of the following actions:
Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and requiring it
to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser specification of time,
thirty (30) days fi'om the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not
timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Grantee notice of termination; and
Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and suspending
all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the portion of the
Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Grantee during the period
fi'om the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that the

Grantee has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid to the Grantee; and
Set off against any other obligation the State may owe to the Grantee any damages
the State suffers by reason of any Event of Default; and
Treat the agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity,
or both.

TERMINATION.

In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Project, the Grantee shall deliver to the Grant Officer, not
later than fifteen (15) days after the date of termination, a report (hereinafter
referred to as the "Termination Report") describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amoimt earned, to and including the date of termination.
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall entitle
the Grantee to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and including
the date of termination.

In the event of Termination imder paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall in no
event relieve the Grantee fiom any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of the Grantee's breach of its obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either the State or,
except where notice default has been given to the Grantee hereunder, the Grantee,
may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days written notice.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the Grantee,
and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New Hampshire or of
the governing body of the locality or localities in which the Project is to be
performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the review or
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14.

15.

16.

17.

17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

approval of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall participate in 17.2.
any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal interest
or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he or she
is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have any personal or
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.
GRANTEE'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the performance of this
Agreement the Grantee, its employees, and any subcontractor or subgrantee of 18.
the Grantee are in all respects independent contractors, and are neither agents
nor employees of the State. Neither the Grantee nor any of its officers,
employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantees, shall have authority
to bind the State nor are they entitled to any of the benefits, workmen's
compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee shall not assign, or 19.
otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted by the Grantee other than as set forth in Exhibit B without the prior
written consent of the State. 20.

INDEMNIFIC ATION. The Grantee shall defend, inderrmify and hold harmless
the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and all losses suffered
by the State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims, liabilities or
penalties asserted against the State, its officers and employees, by or on behalf 21.
of any person, on account of, based on, resulting from, arising out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the Grantee or
subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent of the Grantee. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the State.
This covenant shall survive the termination of this agreement. 22.
INSURANCE.

The Grantee shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or shall 23.
require any subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee performing Project work to
obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the following
insurance:

Statutory workers' compensation and employees liability insurance for all 24.
employees engaged in the performance of the Project, and
General liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries, death or property
damage, in amoimts not less than $ 1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and $500,000 for property
damage in any one incident; and

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be the standard
form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters acceptable
to the State, and authorized to do business in the State of New Hampshire. Grantee
shall fumish to the State, certificates of insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance
required under this Agreement no later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration
date of each insurance policy.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof
after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to
that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Event of Default
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the Grantee.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certified mail, postage
prepaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval of
such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Govemor and Council of the State
of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit ofthe parties and their respective successors
and assignees. The captions and contents of the "subject" blank are used only as
a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a part of this Agreement or
to be used in determining the intend of the parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional or modifying provisions set forth in
Exhibit A hereto are incorporated as part of this agreement.
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EXHIBIT A

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence as the Grantee (hereinafter referred to
as "Subrecipient") shall be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions, and specifications detailed
below, which are subject to annual review.

1  The Subrecipient must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful
access to any services provided by this program. National origin discrimination includes
discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). Meaningful access may
entail providing language assistance services, including oral and written translation when
necessary. The U.S. Department of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them
comply with these requirements. The guidance document can be accessed on the Internet at
www.lep.gov.

2  The Subrecipient assures that in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination within the three years prior to the
receipt of the federal financial assistance and after a due process hearing against the
Subrecipient on the groimds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, or disability, a
copy of the finding will be submitted to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants
Management Unit and to the U.S. Department of Justice, Office for Civil Rights, Office of
Justice Programs, 810 7th Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20531. For additional information
regarding your obligations under civil rights please reference the state website at
http;//www.doj.nh.gov/grants-management/civil-rights.htm and understand if you are
awarded funding from this office, civil rights compliance will be monitored by this office,
and the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.

The Subrecipient will comply (and will require any subrecipients or contractors to comply)
3  with any applicable nondiscrimination provisions, which may include the Omnibus Crime

Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); the Victims of Crime Act (34
U.S.C. § 20110(e)); the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C.
§ 11182(b)); the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. § 12291(b)(13)); the Civil Rights
Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); the Indian Civil Rights Act (25 U.S.C. §§ 1301-1303); the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
(42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-34); the Education Amendments of 1972(20 U.S.C. §§ 1681,1683,
1685-86); and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-07). It will also
comply with Ex. Order 13279, Equal Protection of the Laws for Faith-Based and
Community Organizations; Executive Order 13559, Fundamental Principles and
Policymaking Criteria for Partnerships With Faith-Based and Other Neighborhood
Organizations; and the DOJ implementing regulations at 28 C.F.R. Part 38.

4  Compensation for individual consultant services is to be reasonable and consistent with that
paid for similar services in the marketplace. The current consultant limit is $650 per day or
$81.25 per hour. When the rate exceeds the limit for an 8-hour day, or a proportionate
hourly rate (excluding travel and subsistence costs), a written prior approval is required .
Prior approval requests require additional justification.

^  The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the NH
Department of Justice, that employee or their relative shall not perform work on or be billed
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EXHIBIT A

to any federal or state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly managed or
supervised while at the DOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express approval of the
DOJ.

6  The Subrecipient understands that grants are funded for the grant award period noted on the
grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in future
years.

7  The Subrecipient authorizes the DOJ and its representatives, access to and the right to examine
all records, books, paper or documents related to this subgrant.

8. The Subrecipient agrees that all services will be provided at no charge to victims unless a
program income waiver is obtained from the DOJ. If permission is granted, the Subrecipient
agrees that there must be a sliding scale that starts at zero (0), and that all program income will
be totally expended on grant allowable activities by the end of the funding cycle.

9. Equipment purchased with this subgrant shall be listed by the Subrecipient on the agency
inventory. The inventory must include the item description, serial number, cost, percentage of
state funds, and location.

10. The Subrecipient agrees that if a financial audit of the agency is performed, whether it be an
audit under 2 CFR or not, the Subrecipient agrees to provide a copy of the audit and any
associated management letters to the DOJ, Grants Management Unit. The Single Audit report
must be submitted to the Grants Management Unit within 9 months after the Subrecipient's
year-end or one month after the issuance of the audit

11. The Subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, agrees to make its financial statements
available online (either on the Subrecipient's website, or the DOJs, or another publicly available
website). Organizations that have Federal 501(c)(3) tax status are considered in compliance with
this requirement, with no further action needed, to the extent that such organization files IRS
Form 990 or similar tax document (e.g., Form 990-EZ), as several sources already provide searchable
online databases of such financial statements.

12. The Subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, must certify their non-profit status by
submitting a statement to NH DOJ: 1) affirmatively asserting that the recipient is a non-profit
organization and 2) indicating that the Subrecipient has on file and available upon audit one of
the following:

• A copy of the organization's 501 (c)(3) designation letter, or;
• A letter from the State of New Hampshire stating that the Subrecipient is a non- profit

organization operating within the state, or;
• A copy of the Subgrantee's state certificate of incorporation that substantiates its non-profit

status.

Subrecipients that are local non-profit affiliates or state of national non-profits should also
have a statement by the parent organization that the Subrecipient is a local non-profit affiliate.
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EXHIBIT B

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive a subgrant from the New Hampshire Department of Justice

as the State Agency (DOJ) for expenses incurred and services provided to victims of

domestic violence and sexual assault and for administration of the Sexual Assault Nurse

Examiners (SANE) Program. Funding for activities surrounding domestic violence and

sexual assault victim services including but not limited to personnel, benefits, travel,

supplies, data collection, and subgrants to twelve member agencies.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures

described in EXHIBIT C. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for

reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided. Expenditure

reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days following the end of

the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later than thirty (30) days

following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of compliance. For

example, with an award that begins on January 1, the first quarterly report is due on April

15''' or 15 days after the close of the first quarter ending on March 31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both

state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this

office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting documentation

shall be maintained for at least seven (7) years after the close of the Federal Grant.

4. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such

desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt

shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

5. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:

NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

I Granite Place South

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-7820 or Rhonda.J.Beauchemin@doj.nh.gov
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EXHIBIT C

- PAYMENT TERMS-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure

reports as described in EXHIBIT B.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ's
approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient's accoimt
receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not

exceed the price limitation set forth in form G-1 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $1,962,336

of the total Grant Limitation upon Governor and Council approval or
01/01/2026, whichever is later, to 06/30/2026, with approved expenditure
reports. This shall be contingent on continued federal funding and program
performance.

3b. With sufficient reason and under limited circumstances, the Subrecipient
may apply for an extension of the grant period for up to three months, to

09/30/2026. The Subrecipient must submit the request in writing. No
extension is granted until approval is received by DOJ in writing.

Subrecipient Initials LMS
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EXHIBIT D

-NON-SUPPLANTING CERTIFICATION -

Supplanting defined

Federal funds must be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and must not

replace those funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Supplanting shall be the

subject of application review, as well as pre-award review, post-award monitoring, and audit. If

there is a potential presence of supplanting, the Subrecipient or grantee will be required to supply

documentation demonstrating that the reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for reasons

other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds. For certain programs, a written

certification may be requested by the awarding agency or recipient agency stating that Federal

funds will not be used to supplant State or local funds. See the OJP Financial Guide (Part 11,

Chapter 3)

http://www.oit).usdoi.gov/financialguide/Dart2/part2chap3.htm.

Supplanting and job retention

A recipient or subrecipient may use federal funds to retain jobs that, without the use of the

federal money, would be lost. If the grantee is planning on using federal funds to retain jobs, it

must be able to substantiate that, without the hands, the jobs would be lost. Substantiation can be,

but is not limited to, one of the following forms: an official memorandum, official minutes of a

county or municipal board meeting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produced

when making determinations about employment. The documentation must describe the

terminated positions and that the termination is because of lack of the availability of State or

local funds.

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (Subrecipient) certifies

that any funds through this award will not replace (supplant) any federal funds that have

been appropriated for the purposes and goals of the grant.

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (Subrecipient)

understands that supplanting violations may result in a range of penalties, including but not

limited to suspension of future flmds imder this program, suspension or debarment from

federal grants, recoupment of monies provided under this grant, and civil and/or criminal

penalties.

Printed Name and Title of Authorized Signor: Lyn M. Schollett, Executive Director

Signature:
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION

AGAINST DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on April 30,1981.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63838

Certificate Number: 0007148447

%

B&.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of April A.D. 2025.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Hilary Holmes Rheaume , hereby certify that:
(Narne of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of the NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on Mav 20. 2025 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Lvn M. Schollett. Executive Director (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of the NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence to enter into contracts or
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or
modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: October 8, 2025 <4-ll ,
Signature fet-E^ted Officer
Name: Hilary Holmes Rheaume
Title; Chairperson, Board of Directors

Rev. 03/24/20



/KCORCy CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMrtlD/YYYY)

04/21/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITiONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementjs).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

P O Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

NAM™'"^ Sidney Stevens
iK.Ex«: (603)293-2791 (603)293-7188
AD^ESS- sidney@esinsurance.net

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A ■ Great American Insurance Group GAIG

INSURED

NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence,

DBA: NHCADSV

PO Box 353

Concord NH 03302

INSURER B: Liberty Mutual Agency Corporation

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E:

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 25 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

AUULISUBKI POLICY EPF POLICY EXP

INSdIwVdI POLICY NUMBER [MM/DD/YYYYI (MM/DO/YYYY) LIMITSTYPE OF INSURANCE
INSR
LTR

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person)

MAC 5464236 24 05/15/2025 05/15/2026 PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENIAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY Q JliSf [m LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

Each Abuse Limit

1,000,000

100,000

5,000

1,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

$ 1,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

X

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accident)

$ 100,000

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

AUTOS ONLY X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

X

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE
1,000.000

UMB8234007-17 05/15/2025 05/15/2026
AGGREGATE

1,000,000

RETENTION $ 10,000

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

X
PER
STATUTE

OTH
ER

N/A WC5-31S-604577-025 05/15/2025 05/15/2026
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

j 500,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
500,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
500,000

Abuse & Professional
MAC 5464236 24 05/15/2025 05/15/2026

Abuse Aggregate Limit

Professional Liability

Professional Aggregate

3,000,000

1,000,000

3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space is required)

CERTIFiCATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

New Hampshire Department of Justice

1 Granite Place South

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord

1

NH 03301
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,2024, and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence as of June 30,2024, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibiiities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
fiom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual

. Violence's ability to continue as a going concem within one year after the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fî ud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the financial statements.

-1-



In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards,
we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining,
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accountinjg and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 12,2024, on our
consideration of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe tihe scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting arid compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's intemal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's 2023 financial
statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated
October 26,2023. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year
ended June 30,2023, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has
been derived.

fc/

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
November 12,2024



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Statements of Financial Position

June 30,2024 and June 30,2023

See Independent Auditors' Report

ASSETS

2024 2023

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Certificates of Deposit, Short-Term

Grants Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

$ 397,560

18,931

310,300

2,304,957

27,436

$ 347,404

73,044

218,264

2,471,765

27,226

Total Current Assets 3,059,184 3,137,703

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Equipment

Leasehold Improvements

14,654

61,072

14,654

,  61,072

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Total Property and Equipment, Net

75,726

(49,132)

26,594

75,726

(42,061)

33,665

OTHER ASSETS

Long-Term Investments

Certificates of Deposit, Long-Term
Operating Lease Right of Use Asset

Finance Lease Right of Use Asset

Security Deposit

489,681

206,585

358,559

4,605 ■

6,213

432,178

204,166

456,259

8,068

6,213

Total Other Assets 1,065,643 1,106,884

Total Assets $ 4,151,421 $ 4,278,252

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Grants and Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Operating Lease Liability, Current Portion
Finance Lease Liability, Current Portion

$ 1,932,525

100,956

110,223

3,776

$ 2,058,023

94,245

106,546

, 3,776

Total Current Liabilities 2,147,480 2,262,590

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Operating Lease Liability, Less Current Portion

Finance Lease Liability, Less Current Portion
264,697

717

349,713

4,292

Total Long-Term Liabilities 265,414 354,005

NET ASSETS

Without Donor Restrictions

With Donor Restrictions

1,719,596

18,931

1,588,613

73,044

Total Net Assets 1,738,527 1,661,657

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 4,151,421 $ 4,278,252

Notes to Financial Statements
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended June 30,2024, With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30,2023

See Independent Auditors' Report

Net Assets Net Assets

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions 2024 2023

CONTRIBUTIONS AND SUPPORT

Grant Revenue $  10,850,708 $  16,900 $ 10,867,608 $, 11,312,301

Contributions ,  212,880 - .  212,880 189,821

Donated Services 7,264 7,264 29,648

Interest Income 13,677 - 13,677 4,880

Member Dues 12,000 - 12,000 12,000

Miscellaneous Income - - - 144

Total Contributions and Support 11,096,529 16,900 11,113,429 11,548,794

Net Assets Released from Donor

Imposed Restrictions 71,013 (71,013) - -

EXPENSES

Program Services 10,958,511 - 10,958,511 11,334,314

Management and General 77,414 - 77,414 81,833

Fundraising • 58,138 - 58,138 51,432

Total Expenses 11,094,063 .  - 11,094,063 11,467,579

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN

OPERATING NET ASSETS 73,479 (54,113) 19,366 81,215

NONOPERATING GAINS

Investment Dividends 9,174 - 9,174 7,339

Unrealized and Realized Gains 50,125 - 50,125 34,222

Investment Fees (1,795) - (1,795) (1,978)

Net Nonoperating Gains 57,504 - 57,504 39,583

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS 130,983 ■  (54,113) 76,870 120,798

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,588,613 73,044 1,661,657 1,540,859

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $  1,719,596 $  18,931 $  1,738,527 '
IT——

$  1,661,657

Notes to Financial Statements
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30,2024

With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30,2023

See Independent Auditors' Report

Program Management Total Total

Services & General Fundraislng 2024 2023

Salaries $  1,105,072 $  47,453 $  33,790 $  1,186,315 $  1,285,773

Payroll taxes 82,272 3,531 2,472 88,275 96,380

Health and Dental Insurance 149,655 6,498 6,292 162,445 156,035

Other Employee Benefits 34,756 1,448 -
36,204 32,473

Professional Services 58,220 2,426 -
60,646 81,924

Contract/Grant Services 8,766,008 . - - 8,766,008 8,911,330

Survivor Grants 77,500 - - 77,500 90,225

Rental Assistance 129,048 - - 129,048 225,027

Memberships 9,640 402 -
10,042 7,358

Publications '2,252 94 -
2,346 2,055

Advertising/Public Awareness 8,288 387 995 9,670 3,228

Copying 3,964 165 -
4,129 4,181

Office Supplies 30,579 1,412 3,311 35,302 39,155

Postage 2,015 103 459 2,577 3,132

Printing 888 123 2,058 3,069 3,517

File storage management - - - -
791

Maintenance & Repair 21,802 908 -
22,710 32,743

Rent Expense 102,284 4,262 106,546 103,011

Insurance 14,750 615 - 15,365 14,227

Staff Development 45,975 1,916 -
47,891 31,591

Travel 27,548 1,153 116 28,817 33,029

Telephone 58,309 2,430 ■- 60,739 62,930
Technology 111,460 -

111,460 145,069.
Miscellaneous Expense 3,480 505 8,645 12,630 28,168

AVAP Member Training/Education - - -■ 8,368
Direct Training 30,439 - -

30,439 22,340

Community Education 44,306 - -
44,306 19,352

Depreciation Expense 6,787 283 7,070 .  8,510

Change in Operating Asset/Liability 15,708 654 -
16,362 -

Accounting Fees 15,506 646 - 16,152 15,657

Total Expenses $  10,958,511 S  77,414 S  58,138 $  11,094,063 $  11,467,579

Notes to Financial Statements
-5-



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30,2024 and 2023

See Independent Auditors' Report

2024 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase in Net Assets

Adjustments to Reconcile Increase in Net Assets to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation
Net (Gain) Loss on Investments

Net Change in Operating Asset/Liability

(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:

Grants Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:

Grants and Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITES

$  76,870

7,070

(57,504)

16,362

166,808

(210)

(125,498)

6,711

90,609

$  120,798

8,510

(39,583)

(210,652)

(2,217)

327,506

2,604

206,966

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net (Purchase) Maturity of Certificates of Deposit
NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net amortization, payments on finance lease

NET CASH USED BY FINANCING ACTIVITES

(94,454)

(94,454)

(112)
(112)

(251,294)

(251,294)

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (3,957) (44,328)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT END OF YEAR

420,448 464,776

$ 416,491 $ 420,448

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Donated Services $  7,264 $  29,648

Notes to Financial Statements
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30,2024 and 2023

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIYITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

The Coalition is a private, non-profit, tax-exempt organization committed to ending domestic and sexual
violence. The Coalition serves as a coordinating organization for its 12-member agency crisis centers that in
turn provide services to survivors of sexual assault, domestic violence, human trafficking, and stalking. Eleven
of the Coalition's member agencies are autonomous, private, non-profit organizations with their own mission,
structure, and board of directors; one is a university-based program. The Coalition receives 98% of its funding
from federal and state agencies and less than 2% from private fundraising.

The Vision of the Coalition is:

All New Hampshire communities provide safety for every person.

The Mission of the Coalition is:

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence creates safe, just, and equitable
communities through advocacy, education, and empowerment of anyone affected by domestic and sexual
violence, stalking, child abuse, and human trafficking.

This mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 12 independent community-based member
programs, a Board of Directors and a central staff working together to:

•  Influence public policy on the local, state and national levels;
•  Ensure that quality services are provided to victims;
•  Promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their responses to sexual violence,

domestic violence, stalking, child abuse, and human trafficking;
•  Prevent violence and abuse before they occur.

To elaborate on the above mission and vision statements, the Coalition supports member agency staff with
specialized training, resources and technical assistance; convenes member agency staff to facilitate shared
learning and peer support; and collects and disseminates best practices and current information. The Coalition
supports the development of new services and serves as a statewide clearinghouse and coordinating
organization related to victim services. It administers state and federal contracts that provide funding for its
member programs.

Coalition staff provide education and training to court and law enforcement officials and attorneys, and
collaborate with legal assistance organizations that provide lawyers for survivors and their families. Coalition
staff work to promote cross-system collaboration with child protective services and child advocacy centers to
assure safety for children exposed to or who have experienced domestic and sexual violence, and for their
parents. Coalition staff participate on numerous statewide boards and commissions to advocate for effective
responses to victims.

The Coalition's Public Affairs staff work closely with other advocacy groups, legislators and survivors to draft
legislation, organize testimony, and advocate for policy changes throughout the legislative session. The
Coalition either takes an active role in or tracks close to 150 bills each legislative session. These bills address a
wide range of issues including domestic and sexual violence; stalking; family law; divorce and child
custody/visitation/support; reproductive rights; law enforcement and courts; privacy and personal information;
healthcare; and economic justice.-
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30,2024 and 2023 ,

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, rcontinued^

Nature of Activities (Continued'!

Coalition staff also provide resources and sources for responsible news media and reporting. Coalition staff
create and distribute statewide communications materials to raise awareness about sexual assault, domestic
violence, prevention and services available to victims.

The Coalition plays a key leadership role in efforts to prevent domestic and sexual violence throughout New
Hampshire. Coalition staff collaborate with state and local entities to support policies and practices to advance
effective prevention education. Coalition staff are proactive in educating the public about the causes and effects
of domestic and sexual violence and stalking and as well as services available across the state. The Coalition
has sponsored research on the prevalence of violence in New Hampshire.

The Coalition also manages several specific programs to assist its member crisis centers and the public. The
following are three distinct programs that directly affect survivors of domestic violence, sexual violence and
stalking:

AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP)

The AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP) has been a flagship program of the Coalitiori since 1994
and a valuable pathway for new advocates to join the New Hampshire victim services community. Throughout
its 29 years, the program has provided invaluable service to victims of sexual assault and domestic violence in
New Hampshire. AVAP members have assisted over 46,000 victims and survivors, and the program has
provided robust training and valuable professional experiences for over 500 members through its focus on
victim-centered, trauma-informed advocacy.

Over the past decade, however, membership has steadily declined each year. While members have continued to
provide resoundingly positive feedback about their experiences in the program and the meaningful impact it has
had on their career development, AVAP has sadly become unsustainable for the Coalition to operate with only a
few members. Ahead of the upcoming 2023-24 service year, the Leadership Team here at the Coalition made
the difficult decision to discontinue the program.

Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) Program

A Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) is a Registered Nurse who has been specially trained to provide
comprehensive care to sexual assault survivors, who demonstrates competency in conducting medical/forensic
examinations and who has the ability to be a witness in a sexual assault prosecution. Coalition staff are
responsible for training and working with registered SANEs and medical professionals across the state to ensure
that sexual assault victims receive consistent and professional care during forensic exams.

Housing and Economic Justice Program

The Coalition's Housing and Economic Justice Program aims to support the 12 member programs with
implementation and technical assistance of our HUD-flinded Rapid Rehousing program. Housing First
Program, and the Allstate Economic Justice and Matched Savings Program. The Housing and Economic Justice
Manager (HEJM) helps support advocates on the ground who provide housing and economic Justice services to
survivors through training, identifying community resources, and supporting best practices in grant
administration and management. The HEJM oversees the approval of funding requests and manages the
completion of matched savings requests for survivors receiving financial literacy services at our member
programs.



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30,2024 and 2023

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTrVItlES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNimG POLICIES, fcontinued^

Nature of Activities ̂ Continued')

The Family Violence Prevention Specialist Program

Research shows a high correlation (40-60%) between the perpetration of domestic violence and the perpetration
of child abuse and neglect in the same family. The Family Violence Prevention Specialist Program was built on
the principle that abused and neglected children are best served when they can remain in a safe household with
a non-violent parent.

The Family Violence Prevention Specialist program began in 1998 as a coordinated effort between the
Coalition and the Division for Children, Youth, and Families (DCYF). Family Violence Prevention Specialists
(FVPSs) are employed by local member agencies of the Coalition, and are co-located at local DCYF District
Offices. The FVPSs are a source of assistance and training to child protective service workers while providing
advocacy services to victims of domestic violence involved with DCYF. This program results in more effective
assistance to victims through the development of interventions that recognize the adult victim's need for support
and advocacy in order to improve safety outcomes for children.

Human Trafficking Program

The Coalition leads and coordinates the NH Human Trafficking Collaborative Task Force and is the primary
point of contact for Task Force Members, Crisis Center Advocates, allied professionals, and community
members with questions or concerns about trafficking. The Coalition's Program Director and Program
Specialist ensure that professionals around the state are connected to one another and able to work
collaboratively and are supported with trainings and resources they need to identify human trafficking, provide
comprehensive victim services, and prosecute offenders.

Human trafficking impacts people of all backgrounds and has been identified in all of New Hampshire's 10
counties. Traffickers utilize power and control to exploit their victims, and the effects can be highly traumatic
and difficult to address, particularly when it isn't always easy for even the victim themselves to identify that
what they are experiencing is actually trafficking.

Areas of focus for the Coalition's human trafficking team:
•  Provide training ahd technical assistance to crisis center advocates who provide direct

services to trafficking victims
•  Sustain and enhance the multidisciplinary Task Force as a platform for both collaboration

and communication.

•  Provide trainings for professionals and community members
•  Facilitate connections between victim services, law enforcement, and other service

providers
•  Raise community awareness of the dynamics of trafficking
• Advocate for appropriate policy and legislative changes where necessary

Significant Accounting Policies ^

The financial statements of the Coalition have been prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to not-for-profits. The Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting principles for
not-for-profits. The more significant of the FASB's generally accepted accounting principles applicable to the
Coalition, and the Coalition's conformity with such principles, are described below. These disclosures are an
integral part of the Coalition's financial statements.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30,2024 and 2023

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. tcontinuedJ

Basis of Presentation

The Coalition reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net
assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions - These net assets generally result from revenues generated by
receiving contributions that have no donor restrictions, providing services, and receiving interest from
operating investments, less expenses incurred in providing program-related services raising contributions,
and performing administrative functions.

Net assets with donor restrictions - These net assets result from gifts of cash and other assets that are
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets, either temporarily or permanently,
until the donor restriction expires, that is until the stipulated time restriction ends or the purpose of the
restriction is accomplished.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Coalition have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and accordingly
reflect all significant receivables, payables and other liabilities.

Grants Receivable and Promises to Give

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to tiie Coalition that is, in substance,
unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in net assets without
donor restrictions if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All other
donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a restriction
expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions.

Contributed Services

During the Years Ended June 30,2024 and 2023, the value of contributed services relating to professional
services were $7,264 and $29,648, respectively. All contributed services were considered without donor
restriction and were valued at fair-market-value.

In addition, many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Coalition; these
amounts have not been recognized in the accompanying statement of activities because the criteria for
recognition as contributed services has not been met.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assuihptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Compensated Absences

Employees of the Coalition are entitled to paid vacation depending on job classification, length of services; and
other factors. The statement of financial position reflects accrued vacation earned, but unpaid as of June 30,
2024 and 2023 in the amounts of $78,747 and $70,695, respectively.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30,2024 and 2023

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIYTriES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in
the statements of activities and functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs arid supporting services benefited based on estimates that are based on their relationship to those
activities. Those expenses include payroll and payroll related expenses and occupancy costs. Occupancy costs
are allocated based on square footage. Payroll and payroll related expenses are based on estimates of time and
effort. Other cost allocations are based on the relationship between the expenditure and the activities benefited.

Property and Equipment

It is the Coalition's policy to capitalize property and equipment over $2,500 and all expenditures for repairs,
maintenance, renewals and betterments that prolong the useful lives of assets. Lesser amounts are expensed.
Purchased property and equipment is capitalized at cost. Donations of property and equipment are recorded as
contributions at their estimated fair value. Such donations are reported as contributions without donor restriction
unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions
regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported
as restricted contributions. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be
maintained, the Coalition reports expiration of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed
in service as instructed by the donor. The Coalition reclassifies net assets with donor restrictions to net assets
without donor restrictions at that time. Property and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method.
The ranges of useful lives are as follows:

Improvements 39 Years
Equipment 3-7 Years

Depreciation expense recorded by the Coalition for the Years Ended June 30,2024 and 2023 was $7,070 and
$8,510, respectively.

Income taxes

The Coalition has been notified by the Internal Revenue Service that it is exempt from federal income tax under
Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Coalition is further classified as an organization that is
not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(3) of the Code. The most significant tax positions of the
Coalition are its assertion that it is exempt from income taxes and its determination of whether any amounts are
subject to unrelated business tax (UBIT). The Coalition follows the guidance of Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) 740, Accounting for lncome Taxes, related to uncertain income taxes, which prescribes a
threshold of more likely than not for recognition pf tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Coalition considers all highly liquid investments (short-term
investments such as' certificates of deposits and money market accounts) with an initial maturity of three months
or less to be cash equivalents. The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
reported within the statement of financial position to the sum of the corresponding amounts within the statement
of cash flows as of June 30:

2024 2023

Cash and Cash Equivalents $397,560 $347,404
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 18.931 73.044
Total - $416.491 $420.448
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years EndedJune 30,2024 and 2023

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTiyiTIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, feontinued^

Certificates of Deposit

Certificates of deposit are reported on the accompanying statement of financial position. The certificates bear
interest ranging from 1.00% to 4.91% as of June 30,2024. Maturities range from two months to one and a half
years.

Segregation of Accounts

Under Title 1, New Hampshire, The State and Its Government, Chapter 15 Lobbyist Section 15:l-a, the
Coalition is required to physically and financially separate state funds from any non-state funds that may be
used for the purposes of lobbying or attempting to influence legislation, participate in political activity, or
contribute funds to any entity engaged in these activities. The Coalition has established and maintains a separate
bank account for this purpose. The account balances were $31,467 and $31,013 at June 30,2024 and 2023,
respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Coalition maintains cash and CD balances in accounts at three local banks. These accounts are insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At various times throughout the year, the Coalition
may have cash balances at the financial institution that exceeds the insured amount. Management does not
believe this concentration of cash results in a high level of risk for the Coalition. At June 30,2024 and 2023 the
Coalition had uninsured cash balances of $426,576 and $336,578, respectively.

Advertising Costs '

The Coalition follows the policy of charging the production costs of advertising to expense as incurred.
Advertising expense at June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $9,670 and $3,228 respectively.

Comparative Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but not by net
asset class. Such information does riot include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with
■generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the
Coalition's financial statements for the year ended June 30,2023, fi"om which the summarized information was
derived.

Financial Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, certificates of deposit, grants receivable, prepaid expenses,
accounts payable and accrued expenses are stated at carrying cost at June 30,2024 and 2023, which
approximates fair value due to the relatively short maturity of these instruments. Other financial instruments
held at year-end are investments, which are stated at fair value.

Subsequent Event

Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 12,2024, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued to determine if any are of such significance to require disclosure.
It has been determined that no other subsequent events matching this criterion occurred during this period.

-12-



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30,2024 and 2023

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, tcontinued)

Leases

The Coalition recognizes ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). A lessee is required to recognize assets and
liabilities for leases with lease terms of more than twelve months. Consistent with current GAAP, the
recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from a lease by a lessee
primarily depends on its classification as a finance or operating lease. The ASU requires both types of leases to
be recognized on the statement of financial position.

For leases with term of less than twelve months, the Coalition will elect the short-term lease recognition
exemption for all applicable classes of underlying assets.

NOTE B - BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The Coalition has net assets designated for various future needs. These funds are comprised of the following as
of June 30:

2024 2023

Fund for Grace $ 54,645 $ 59,932
Operating Reserve 148.665 148.665

H; 203.310 $ 208.597

NOTE C - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of funds received by the Coalition, restricted as to use or time. The
restrictions are considered to expire when payments are made. As of June 30,2024 and 2023 respectively, the
net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purpose:

2024 2023

Human Trafficking Services $ - $ 55,575
Economic Support to Survivors 18.931 17.469

Total S 18.931 S 73.044

Net assets in the amount of $71,013 and $48,756 were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses
satisfying the restricted purpose during the years ended June 30,2024 and 2023, respectively.

NOTE D - PENSION PLAN

The Coalition has a 403(b) savings plan for the benefit of its employees. The plan covers substantially all
employees after one year of service. During their budgeting process, the Board of Directors determines the
amount to be contributed annually. Employer contributions for the Years Ended June 30,2024 and 2023
totaled $34,016 and $28,343, respectively.

NOTE E - LINE OF CREDIT

The Coalition has a one-year $150,000 revolving line of credit agreement with Merrimack County Savings
Bank. The credit line matures on May 20,2025 and automatically renews annually. Interest is stated at the
Wall Street Journal prime rate plus .5%, which resulted in interest rates of 9.00% and 8.75% as of June 30,
2024 and 2023, respectively. The line of credit is secured by all business assets. There were no borrowings
against the line as of June 30,2024 and 2023.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30,2024 and 2023

NOTE F - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In accordance with FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, the Coalition is required to
disclose certain information about its financial assets and liabilities. Fair values of assets measured on a

recurring basis at June 30 were as follows;

Quoted Prices
In Active Markets

For Identical Assets

2024 Fair Value (Level 13
$  489,681

516.885

Investments

Certificates of Deposit

Fair Value

$ 489,681

516.885

2023

Investments

Certificates of Deposit

(Kl 006.566

$ 432,178

422.430

^ «-'i4.608

1-006.566

432,178

422.430

854.608

$

Fair values for investments were determined by reference to quoted market prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions.

NOTE G - LIQUIDITY & AVAn^ABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Coalition has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities
and other obligations come due. The Coalition's primary source of support is grants. That support is held for
the purpose of supporting the Coalition's budget. The Coalition had the following financial assets that could be
readily made available within one year to fund expenses without limitations:

2024 2023

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 416,491 $ 420,448

Certificates of deposit, short-term 310,300 218,264

Grants Receivable, net of

Grants Payable 372,432 413,742

Less Amounts:

With Donor Imposed Restriction 08.930 ('73.0441

.5:1.080.292 $ 979.410

NOTE H - INVESTMENTS

Investments are presented in the financial statements at fair-market value. Investments at June 30,2024 and
2023 are composed of the following:

2024 2023

Cost Market Cost Market

Equity Mutual Funds $  49,289 $  76,208 $  52,185 $ 68,789

Mutual Funds 150,081 137,677 138,440 124,569

Money Market 33,750 , 33,750 33,519 33,519

Exchange traded funds 178,649 242,046 170,824 205,301

Total $ 411,769 $ 489,681 $  394,968 ■$ 432,178
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30,2024 and 2023

NOTE H - INVESTMENTS. tcontinued>

FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 820-10 Fair Value Measurements defines fair value, requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements, arid establishes a three-level hierarchy for fair value
measurements based on the observable inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. It prioritizes the inputs to the
valuation techniques used to measure fair value by giving the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to measurements
involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 rneasurement).

Under Topic 820-10, the three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Coalition has the ability to access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are either directly or
indirectly observable for the assets or liabilities.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair measurement in its entirety falls is based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

All investments are measured at Level 1. Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets in active markets.

The individual investments contain net assets without donor restrictions. Investments in marketable equity
securities and marketable debt securities are carried at fair market value determined by "quoted market prices"
per unit (share) as of the statement of financial position date. All other investments are stated at cost. Donated
investments are recorded at the mean of the high and low price as of the date of receipt Gains and losses on
investments are reported as increases or decreases in net assets without donor restrictions, unless their use is
restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by law.

Spending Policv

Each fiscal year the Coalition is authorized to withdraw up to 5% of the total market value of the total portfolio
of the Fund. The amount available to be withdrawn in a fiscal year will be up to 5% of the Fund market value as
of the last business day of the fiscal third quarter of the preceding fiscal year. Only with the approval of a
majority vote of the Board of Directors, present at a meeting duly called for such purpose, may the Coalition
exceed the 5% spending cap.

Investment Return Objectives. Risk Parameters and Strategies

The Coalition Board of Directors is responsible for developing policies that govern investment of the assets of
the Coalition. The purpose of the following Investment Policy, which is to be reviewed annually by the Finance
Committee of the Coalition are to:

•  Establish the investment objectives, policies, guidelines and eligible securities relating to
investments ovmed or controlled by the Coalition through a third-party investment advisor.

•  Identify the criteria against which the investment performance of the Coalition's investments will
be measured.

•  Communicate the objectives to the Board of Directors, investment managers and funding sources
that may have involvement.

•  Serve as a review document to guide the ongoing oversight of the management of the Coalition's
investments.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Years EndedJune 30,2024 and 2023

NOTE I - LEASING ACTtVITIES

Operating Lease

The Coalition entered a ten-year lease agreement for office and parking spaces on March 1,2018 which expires
February 28,2028. The lease agreement includes 4% annual escalations each year on the anniversary of the
lease term for office space. Rent for parking has remained fixed although it can be increased ho more than 2%
each anniversary. Rent expense related to the lease was $106,546 and $103,011 for the years ended June 30,
2024 and 2023 respectively.

The Coalition has elected the option to use the risk-free rate determined using a period comparable to the lease
terms as the discount rate for leases where the implicit rate is not readily determinable. The risk-free rate option
has been applied to the office and parking assets.

Total right-of-use assets and lease liabilities at June 30,2024 are as follows:

Lease Assets - Classification in Statement of Financial Position

Operating Lease Right of Use Asset $ 358.559

Lease Liabilities - Classification in Statement of Financial Position:

Operating Lease Liability, Current Portion 110,223
Operating Lease Liability, Long-Term Portion 264.697

Total S 374.920

The weighted-average remaining lease term and weighted-average discount rate are as follows:

Weighted-average remaining lease term in years: 4.67

Weighted-average discount rate: 5.20%

The future minimum lease payments on this agreement as of June 30 are:

2025 $ 110,223
2026 114,047

2027 ^ 118,023
2028 80.496

Total payments 422,789
Net present value discount (47.8691

Present Value of lease liabilities

Finance Lease

The Coalition leases office equipment under a finance lease agreement. The lease is for four-years, expiring
October 31, 2025. The annual rent expense is $3,776 per year and is included in office supplies on the
statement of activities.

The Coalition has elected the option to use the risk-free rate determined using a period comparable to the lease
terms as the discount rate for leases where the implicit rate is not readily determinable. The risk-free rate option
has been applied to the office equipment.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30,2024 and 2023

NOTE I - LEASING ACTIVITIES (Continued^

Total right-of-use assets and lease liabilities at June 30,2024 are as follows:

Lease Assets - Classification in Statement of Financial Position

Finance Lease Right of Use Asset $ 4.605

■  Lease Liabilities - Classification in Statement of Financial Position:

Finance Lease Liability, Current Portion 3,776
Finance Lease Liability, Less Current Portion 717

.  Total" S4.493

The weighted-average remaining lease term and weighted-average discount rate are as follows:

Weighted-average remaining lease term in years: 2.33

Weighted-average discount rate: 5.20%

The future minimum lease payments on this agreement as of June 30 are:

2025 $ 3,776
2026 1.259

Total payments 5,035
■  Net present value discount (542")
Present "Value of lease liabilities S 4.493

NOTE J - RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES - CQVID-19

As a result of the spread of the CO'VlD-19 coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen which may
negatively impact future financial performance. The potential impact of these imcertainties is unknown and
cannot be estimated at the present time.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement/of financial position as
of June 30,2024, and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 12, 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis
for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
intemal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identity all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identity any deficiencies in intemal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and nfaterial effect on the financial statements. However^ providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
November 12,2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's major federal
programs for the year ended June 30,2024. New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion. New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30,2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fiaud or error, and express an Opinion on New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high
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level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud
is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards,
and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit
•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in intemal control over
compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control oyer compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned fimctions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to. merit attention by those charged with
govemance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
intemal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in intemal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
November 12,2024
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Schedule of Findings and Question Costs
Year Ended June 30,2024

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of the New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence.

2. No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Independent
Auditor's Report. No material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence, which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government

were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are reported in the
Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No Material weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a) are reported in
this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as a major program were:

Victims of Crime Act 16.575

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B Programs was: $750,000.

9. The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence was determined to be a low-risk
auditee.

SECTION n - FINDINGS: FINANCUL STATEMENT AUDIT

No matters were reported.

SECTION m - FINDINGS AIVD QUESTIONED COSTS; FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

No matters were reported.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30,2024

Federal CFDA/ Pass-Through

Program Title

Assistance

Listing
Number

• Entity

Identifying

Number

Passed

Through to

Subrecipients

Federal

Expenditures

U.S. Denartment of Housine and Urban Dcvelonment:

Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of HHS:

Continuum of Care Program

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

14.267 102-500731 129,705

129,705

140,998

140,998

U.S. Denartment of Justice:

Direct Program - Violence Against Women Act of 2000

Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of Justice:

VAWA, SASP

OVC Human Trafficking

16.556

16.017

16.320

2022SAS01 531,627

317,904

541,602

YOGA, PMC Subcontracts

VOCA, PMC Subcontracts

16.575

16.575

2022VOC03

2022VOC04

251,928

2,803,547

251,928

3,341,376

Subtotal 3,055,475 3,593,304

VAWA, STOP 16.588 2022VAW16 - 134,035

Total Pass-Through Programs 3,587,102 4,268,941

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 3,587,102 4,586,845

U.S. Denartment of the Treaslu^'

Pass-Through Programs from State ofNH Department of Justice:
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds - Covid-I9 21.027 2023ARPVS19 .  89,364 89,364

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 89,364 89,364

U.S. Denartment of Health and Human Services;

Direct Program - Family Violence Prevention Services Act

Direct Program - Family Violence Prevention Services Act - Covid-19

93.591

93.591

-
337,021

95,383

Subtotal - 432,404

Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of HHS:

Sexual Violence Prevention 93.136 102-500731 200,009 400,409

Family Violence Prevention Services Act

Family Violence Prevention Services Act - Covid-19

93.671

93.671

155510BOOl

155510BOOl

1,081,784

1,127,900

1,118,831

1,127,900

Subtotal 2,209,684 2,246,731

Total Pass-Through Programs 2,409,693 2,647,140

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES 2,409,693 3,079,544

Cornoration for National & Communitv Services:

Pass-Through from Volunteer NH!

AmeriCorps Victim Assist Program

AmeriCorps Victim Assist Program - Covid-19

94.006

94.006

25,583

7,167

TOTAL CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL & COMMUNITY SERVICES - 32,750

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 6,215,864 $  7,929,501
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30,2024

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award
activity of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence under programs of the federal
government for the year ended June 30,2023. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with
the requirements of Title'2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule .
presents only a selected portion of the operations of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, Cost Principles for Non-profit
Organizations, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited las to reimbursement.

2. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

NOTE C - SUBRECIPIENTS

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence provide federal awards to subrecipients
as follows:

Federal CFDA/

Program Title Assistance Listing # Amount Provided

Rapid Re-Housing Program 14.267 $  129,705

Sexual Assault Services Program 16.017 531,627

Victims of Crime Act 16.575 3,055,475

Coronavirus Fiscal Recovery 21.027 89,364

Sexual Violence Prevention 93.136 200,009

Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.671 2.209.684

6.215.864

NOTE D - INDIRECT COST RATE

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence has not elected to use the 10% de
minimis indirect cost rate ias allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

-24-



c_>

<-u

55</>

Board of Directors Roster

Personal information redacted

Chairperson

Hilary Holmes Rheaume
Shareholder, Bernstein, Shur, Sawyer

& Nelson, P.A.

Vice Chair

Sarah Gagnon
VP of Clinical Operations, Riverbend
Community Mental Health

Treasurer

John Gasaway
Unemployment Fraud Prosecutor, NH
Depart, of Employment Security

Clerk

Shauna Foster

Executive Director, New Beginnings

Ashley Aniskovich
Audit Manager, Nathan Wechsler & Co

Caitlin Garcia

Manager, A.M. Peisch & Company, LLP

Carlos Jauhola-Straight
Pastor, First Congregational Church of
Pelham

Deb Haynes-Kenney
Executive Director, Response

Jeff Maher

Program Manager for Title IX,
Discrimination, and Bias, Keene State

College

Kristin Judge
General Manager, Little Brothers
Burgers Company

Lyndsay Robinson
Shareholder, Shaheen & Gordon, PA

Tina Smith

Nurse, Concord Pediatrics

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence



KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

Contractor Name: New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence

Name of Program:

BUDGET PERIOD: SFY26 Phase 2 6 months January to June 2Q26

PERCENT PAID AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS FROM THIS

NAME JOB TITLE SALARY CONTRACT CONTRACT

Janet Carroll SANE Directors S40.580 100.00% 520.290

Meghan Jenks Assistant SANE Director S58.000 100.00% 529,000

Anna Frecker SANE Nurse 528,100 100.00% 514,050

Joi Smith Program Director 572,830 23.00% 58,375

Alvssa Dandrea Community Relations Specialist 560.900 20.00% 56.090

TBD Interdisciplinary Response Specialist 555.900 12.00% 53,354

Rachel Duffv Housing & Economic Justice Manager 557.760 86.00% 524.837

Kathleen McDonald Part time Data Projects Coordinator 543.290 69.00% 514,935

Sarah Seeley Public Aflairs Coordinator 549.475 33 00% 58.163

TOTAL SALARIES $129,095



Alyssa Dandrea

COMMUNICATIONS EXPERIENCE

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, Concord, N.H. (October 2020-
present)
Community Relations Specialist: Works as a member of the Public Affairs team to expand the Coalition's
grassroots network, produce legislative updates and action alerts. Manages statewide public awareness
campaigns and events and is the point person for all media inquiries. Cultivates and nurtures
relationships with partners, donors, foundations and volunteers on all aspects of resource development.

Concord Monitor, Concord, N.H. (June 2016-October 2020)
Crime/courts reporter. Reported on criminal and civil cases in central New Hampshire, legislative reform,
the state correctional system, campus sexual violence and victims' rights. Conceptualized and executed
long-term enterprise projects on incarcerated parents, and the crimes of sexual assault and domestic
violence.

The Keene Sentinel, Keene, N.H. (August 2013-June 2016)
Crime/courts reporter: Reported on criminal and civil cases in Cheshire County for print and web-based
audiences. Integrated social media into daily work and breaking news coverage.

Monadnock Ledger-Transcript, Peterborough, N.H. (June 2011-August 2013)
Reporter and photographer: Covered breaking news, courts, local government, community events, arts
and entertainment stories in Dublin, Jeffrey and Rindge.

AWARDS

New England Newspaper & Press Association
•  Publick Occurrences for "Fighting Back" series on domestic violence (2019) and "Unsilenced"

series on sexual assault (2017)
•  Better Newspapers Competition honored "Fighting Back" (2020); "Unsilenced" and "Parenting

from Prison" (2018)

New Hampshire Press Association
•  Community Service award for "Fighting Back" (2020)
•  Contest awarded courts/crime and spot news reporting at the Sentinel (2014-2015); business,

education, feature and investigative joumalism at the Ledger-Transcript (2012-2013); Rookie of
the Year (2012)

Franklin Pierce University
•  Matiin Fitzwater medallion for contributions to the public discourse (2011)

CONFERENCES

30th Annual Victims' Rights Conference at Baystate Education Center in Holyoke, Mass.; panelist with
New Hampshire prosecutor, advocate and school counselor to discuss high-profile St. Paul's School rape
case (2019)

New England First Amendment Institute at the headquarters of the New England Newspaper and
Press Association in Dedham, Mass.; attendee and presenter (2014-2015)

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Arts, Franklin Pierce University, May 2011
Mass Communication, Minor in History, Concentrations in Journalism and Media Studies
CPA 3.92/4.0



Anna Frecker RN, BSN

Education

Bachelor of Science in Nursing, Missouri Southern State University Joplin, MO 2002

Bachelor of Arts in Spanish, Missouri Southern State University Joplin, MO 2002

Front Line Leadership, New Hampshire Technical Institute Concord, NH 2018

New Hampshire Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Adult/Adolescent/Pediatric training 2020

Intimate Partner Violence Nurse Examiner Course 2021

Employment History

02/2025- Present New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Assault Concord, NH

SANE nurse

09/2011- Present Speare Memorial Hospital Plymouth, NH

Staff RN: ER, SANE nurse. Wound Center, House Supervisor, Clinical Leader, Preceptor

12/2008-08/2011 Parkview Hospital Fort Wayne, IN

Staff RN: ER, Home Heath

04/2008-11/2008 Samaritan Hospital Moses Lake, WA

Per Diem RN: Urgent care. Primary care office

12/2007-03/2008 RN Network Boca Raton, FL

Travel RN: ER - Seattle

07/2006-11/2007 Pardee Hospital Henderson, NC

Staff RN: ER

1/2005-06/2006 RN Network Boca Raton, FL

Travel RN: ER - Las Vegas, Tacoma, Denver

09/2004 - 11/2004 American Mobile Health San Diego, CA

Travel RN: ER - Phoenix

02/2003 - 09/2004 Mission Hospitals Asheville, NC

Staff RN: ER

08/2002 - 02/2003 Pardee Hospital Henderson, NC

Staff RN: Medical/Surgical



National Certiflcations

Certified Emergency Nurse (CEN) August 2018

Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner - Adolescent/Adult (SANE-A) November 2022

Professional Affiliations

International Association of Forensic Nurses

Awards

Speare Spirit Award 2022: Speare Memorial Hospital, Plymouth NH

Speare Emergency Department Shining Star Award 2021 - First Quarter: Speare Memorial
Hospital, Plymouth NH

Beverly B Seavey Award 2024: Voices Against Violence Advocacy Center, Plymouth NH



Janet Carroll

EDUCATION

♦ New Hampshire Technical Institute, Concord, NH

Associate Degree of Nursing, May 1999

Dean's List, National Honor Society

♦ New Hampshire Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Adult/Adolescent Training, 2005

♦  New Hampshire Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Pediatric Training, 2015
♦  Vermont Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Pediatric Training, 2013.

EXPERIENCE

♦  New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, Concord, NH
SANE Director New Hampshire SANE Program-Statewide

January 2015 - Present

♦  Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center, Lebanon, NH

Clinical Coordinator Forensic/Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Program

Emergency Department Staff Nurse

On-Call SANE

February 2006 - Present; Assumed Coordinator position 9/2008

♦  Valley Regional Hospital, Claremont, NH
Emergency Department Staff Nurse, Nursing House Supervisor, SANE Nurse

May 1999- Present

♦  Mount Ascutney Hospital and Health Center, Windsor, VT
Per-Diem Acute Rehabilitation Staff Nurse, SANE Nurse

May 1999-2015

NATIONAL CERTIFCATIONS

♦  Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner- Pediatric (SANE-P)
♦  Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner-Adolescent/Adult (SANE-A)
♦  Certified Emergency Nurse (CEN)



PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS

♦  International Association of Forensic Nurses,
♦  Emergency Nurses Association

AWARDS

♦  Children's Advocacy Center: Hands of Hope
Everyday Hero Award for Sullivan County NH

November 2016

♦  New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (NHCADSV)
Jennifer Pierce-Weeks Award of Excellence

May 2012

PUBLICATIONS

»  Office of the Attorney General, Sexual Assault: An Acute Care Protocol for the Medical/Forensic

Evaluation. Ninth Edition. 2018.

♦  OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL, A Model Protocol for Response to Adult Sexual Assault
Cases. 2017 Edition.

♦  Office of the Attorney General, Sexual Assault: An Acute Care Protocol for the Medical/Forensic
Evaluation. Eighth Edition. 2015.

♦  Office of the Attorney General, Sexual Assault: An Acute Care Protocol for the Medical/Forensic
Evaluation. Seventh Edition. 2014.

♦  Corum, V. & Carroll, J. (2014) Forensic Analysts' Perspectives: Sexual Assault Kits Under the
Microscope, Journal of Forensic Nursing, 10(1), 50-57.

PRESENTATIONS fnot inclusive)

♦  Invited Presenter: Sexual Assault Medical Forensic Exams: Review of SANE Services. Heater

Road Primary Care Clinics, Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center. September 2017.

♦  Invited Presenter: Snapshot of Opiates: Heroin. Fentanvi and Carfentanil. Lebanon Rotarv Club.

September 2017.

♦  Invited Presenter: Sexual Assault Medical Forensic Exam: Review of SANE Services. OB/GYN

Provider Grand Rounds, Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center. June 2017.

♦  Invited Presenter: Sexual Assault Treatment in the ED Setting. Emergencv Medicine Resident

Training. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center. June 2017.

♦  Invited Presenter: Care of the Sexuallv Assaulted Student. Southern New Hampshire University.
March 2017.

♦  Invited Presenter: "Delicate Populations": Caring for Patients that have Experienced Sexual

Assault. Intimate Partner Violence. Elder Abuse. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center. March

2017.

♦  Invited Presenter: Transgender/LGTBQ: ED Visit Considerations. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical

Center. March 2017.

♦  Instructor: SANE Case Review: Trends in QA/QI Processes. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical

Center. March 2017.



Invited Presenter: Caring About Sexual Violence: A Civil Rights. Healthcare and Community

Issue. Geisel School of Medicine, Dartmouth College. January 2017.

Instructor: SANE Case Review: Care of the LGTBQ Patient Populations. Dartmouth-Hitchcock

Medical Center. November 2016.

Invited Presenter: Abuse in Healthcare. Monadnock Community Hospital. November 2016.

Invited Panelist: Intimate Partner Violence. Geisel School of Medicine, Dartmouth College.

October 2016.

Invited Presenter: Sexual Assault. University of New Hampshire. October 2016.

Instructor: SANE Case Review: Elder Abuse. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center. June 2016.

Invited Presenter: Survivors of Domestic and Sexual Violence in the Healthcare Setting: Ensuring

Privacy for Victims. Nursing Grand Rounds, Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center. May 2016.

Invited Panelist: Intimate Partner Violence. Geisel School of Medicine, Dartmouth College.

March 2016.

Invited Presenter: Abuse: Intimate Partner. Elder. Strangulation. Human Trafficking and Sexual

Assault. Nursing Grand Rounds. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center. March 2016.

Instructor: SANE Case Review: Intimate Partner Violence and the Role of the SANE Nurse.

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center. March 2016.

Instructor: History Taking for SANE Nurses. NH SANE Educational Review Day. February 2016.

Instructor: SANE Case Review: Suspect Exams. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center. December

2015.

Invited Presenter: First Responder (Law Enforcement) Training for Adult Sexual Assault. Sexual

Assault Resource Team Presentations. Grafton and Sullivan Counties. December 2015-present.

Invited Presenter: Nursing Grand Rounds: Clinical Care of the Sexual Assault Patient. Dartmouth

Hitchcock Medical Center. October 2015.

Instructor: Sexual Assault and the Role of the SANE Nurse for Psychiatry Residents. Geisel School

of Medicine, Dartmouth College. October 2015.

Instructor: Anal Anatomy and the SANE Exam. NH SANE Educational Review Day. September

2015.

Invited Presenter: Everything Law Enforcement Should Know About "The Sexual Assault Kit."

But Were Afraid to Ask. New Hampshire Attorney General's Conference 'Partnering for a Future

Without Violence', Southern New Hampshire University, June 2015.

Instructor: Experiential Testimony. State of NH SANE Program. Bi-annually March 2015-present.

Presenter: New Hampshire SANE Currency of Practice Guidelines. NH SANE Educational Review

Day, Concord NH. March 2015.

Invited Panelist: Intimate Partner Violence. Geisel School of Medicine, Dartmouth College,

March 2015.

Instructor: NH Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Comprehensive Adolescent/Adult Training. State

of NH SANE Program. Bi-Annually May 2015-present.

Instructor: NH Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Comprehensive Pediatric Training. State of NH

SANE Program. Annually April 2015-present.

Instructor: SANE Simulation Competency Exams. State of NH SANE Program. January 2015-

present.



Instructor: Clinical Care of the Sexual Assault Patient. New Hampshire Hospital Emergency

Departments. Monthly January 2015 - Present.

Instructor: What to Expect During a SANE Exam. New Hampshire Crisis Centers. January 2015-

Present.

Instructor: HIV PEP "101" Following Acute Sexual Assault, Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center.

December 2014.

Invited Instructor: Sexual Assault Medical- Forensic Exam for Emergency Medicine Residents.

Geisel School of Medicine, Dartmouth College. October 2014.

Invited Instructor: Mock SANE Exam Simulation and Pelvic Exam Instruction for the Experienced

SANE Nurse. State of New Hampshire SANE Program. October 2014.

Invited Instructor: Sexual Assault Medical-Forensic Examinations and the SANE Nurse Role.

River Valley Community College, Nursing Program. May 2014.

Invited Instructor: Documentation and Forensic PhotoRraphy, State of New Hampshire Sexual

Assault Nurse Examiner Adolescent/Adult Training. Bi-annually 2010-2015.

Invited Panelist: Domestic and Sexual Violence Panel Presentation, Center for Rural Emergency

Services and Trauma Convention. November 2013.

Poster Presentation: Sexual Assault Medical-Forensic Examinations, Center for Rural Emergency

Services and Trauma Convention. November 2013.

Invited Speaker: Sexual Assault Medical-Forensic Examination and The SANE Nurse Role-

Update for Law Enforcement Officers. Grafton County NH. August 2012.

Invited Presenter: Sexual Assault Medical-Forensic Examinations and Strategy Session, Praxis

International. June 2012.

Invited Instructor: Sexual Assault Medical-Forensic Examinations for Gvnecoloev and Obstetrics

Medicine Residents, Geisel School of Medicine, Dartmouth College. Annually March 2012-

present.

Invited Presenter: Sexual Assault Can Happen. Hanover High School. Yearly 2011-Present.

Invited Presenter: Medical-Forensic Sexual Assault Examinations. Hanover High School Intensive

Week. April 2011.

Invited Presenter: Caring for Sexual Assault Patients. Sullivan County NH EMS Training. June

2010.

Invited Instructor: Pelvic Exam Instruction, State of New Hampshire Sexual Assault Nurse

Examiner Trainings. Bi-annually 2008-Present.

Invited Presenter: Sexual Assault Medical-Forensic Examinations. Volunteer Advocate Training

for WISE of Grafton County and Turning Points Network of Sullivan County. Quarterly February

2008-Present.

PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITIES

♦  New Hampshire Human Trafficking Task Force- Victims Services Committee: Member. May
2017-Present.

♦  New Hampshire Attorney General's Elder and Incapacitated/Vulnerable Adult Fatality Review

Committee: Member. August 2016-Present.



♦  New Hampshire Attorney General's Domestic Violence Fatality Review Committee: Member.
March 2016-Present.

Orange County VT Special Investigation Unit Resource Team: Member. June 2014- Present.

Windsor County VT Domestic and Sexual Violence Task Force: Member. February 2014- Present.

Northern Grafton NH County Sexual Assault Resource Team: February 2015-Present.

New Hampshire Sexual Assault and SANE Advisory Board: Co-Chair &Member. January 2014-

Present.

Sullivan County NH Sexual Assault Resource Team: Member. January 2014-Present.

Windsor County VT Special Investigation Unit Resource Team: Member. January 2013-Present.

Southern Grafton County NH Upper Valley Sexual Assault Resource Team: Member. December

2012-Present.

Windsor County VT Special Investigation Unit Resource Team: Member. January 2014-Present.

Domestic and Sexual Violence Task Force at Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center: Member.

June 2008-Present.

CONTINUING EDUCATION (Not all incluslvel

International Association of Forensic Nurses: Scientific Assembly. October 2017.

Granite State Children's Alliance: Emerging Issues and Multidisclpllnary Response In Child

Abuse. September 2017.

Advanced Cardiac Life Support. September 2017.

NFI SANE Education Day: SANE-A and SANE-P Board Certification Review Course. August 2017.

Family Justice Centers Program: Webinar- Use of the Imaging Protocol in Nonfatal Strangulation

Cases. July 2017.

NH SANE Education Day: Forensic Case Review and Serving Transgendered Populations. May

2017.

Shield Our Children Conference. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center. April 2017.

International Association of Forensic Nurses: 2017 Webinar Series- The National Medical

Forensic Exam Response Protocols and Federal Funding (VOCA and VAWA). March 2017.

Tribal Forensic Healthcare: Intimate Partner Violence Examiner Course. March 2017.

NH SANE Education Day: Campus Response to Sexual Assault and NH Sexual Assault Evidence

Kit Update. March 2017.

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center: Emergency Department Nursing Update. March 2017.

Trauma Nursing Core Course. February 2017.

Emergency Department Nursing Update: Pediatrics. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center.

January 2017.

NH SANE Education Day: CurriculumVitae Writing and Adult Case Review. December 2016.

Intimate Partner Violence Examiner Training. October 2016.

Pediatric Advanced Life Support. October 2016.

International Association of Forensic Nurses: Scientific Assembly. September 2016.

NH SANE Education Day: NCA Standards and Case Review. September 2016.

VT SANE Education Day. September 2016.



Children's Safety Network: Webinar- Preventing Adolescent Dating Abuse: Research and

Practice. August 2016.

NH Attorney General's Task Force on Child Abuse and Neglect & NH Governor's Commission on

Domestic and Sexual Violence: Partnering for a Future Without Violence. June 2016.

Basic Life Support. June 2016.

NFI SANE Education Day: Victim Privacy, Case Review and Intimate Partner Violence. May 2016.

Shield Our Children Conference. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center. April 2016.

The 2016 Sexual Assault Resource Team (SART) Summit. April 2016.

SANE Intensive Preceptorship. University of Colorado, Memorial Hospital, Colorado Springs.

April 2016.

NH SANE Education Day: Currency of Practice and Case Review. February 2016.

NH SANE Education Day: Male Survivors and Case Review. December 2015.

International Association of Forensic Nurses: Scientific Assembly. October 2015.

NH SANE Education Day: Sexual Assault Update 2015. September 2015.

NH SANE Education Day: Focus on Pediatrics. June 2015.

NH Attorney General's Task Force on Child Abuse and Neglect & NH Governor's Commission on

Domestic and Sexual Violence: Partnering for a Future Without Violence. June 2015.

NH SANE Education Day: Experiential Testimony Training. May 2015.

NH SANE Education Day: Human Trafficking and Strangulation. March 2015.

SANE Sustainability Course Completion. lAFN Course. April-May 2013.

International Association of Forensic Nurses. Scientific Assembly. October 2013.

Monthly Pediatric SANE Case Review. Child Advocacy and Protection Program. 2013-Present.

Quarterly DHMC SANE Team Case Review. 2006-Present.

Regular attendance NH SANE Educational Days. 2006-Present.

Regular attendance VT SANE Educational Days. 2006-Present.

COURTROOM TESTIMONY/DEPOSITION

♦  State of New Hampshire vs. Thomas. November 2016.
♦  State of Vermont vs. Mullen. September 2013
♦  State of Vermont vs. Dall. May 2013
♦  State of Vermont vs. Sadis. May 2013
♦  State of New Hampshire vs. Jurado. December 2012
♦  State of Vermont vs. Wheeler. December 2011

♦  State of Vermont vs. Mullen. September 2011
♦  State of New Hampshire vs. Murgatroy. March 2011
♦  State of New Hampshire vs. Jordan. June 2010
♦  State of New Hampshire vs. Thomas. January 2010
♦  State of Vermont vs. Handy. January 2009

ADDITIONAL PROFESSIONAL NURSING CERTIFICATIONS

♦  Trauma Nurse Core Course (TNCC)-present
♦  Emergency Nurse Pediatric Course (ENPC)-past



♦  Advanced Cardiac Life Support (ACLS)-present
♦  Pediatric Advanced Life Support (PALS)-present
♦  Neonatal Resuscitation Provider (NRP)-past
♦  Basis Life Support (BLS)-present



S. Joi Smith

SKILLS SUMMARY:

Highly creative and enthusiastic community builder
Excellent communication and organizational skills
Aptitude for technology and innovation
Activist and passionate participant in the arts community

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY:

NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence - Program Director August 2020 - Present
Concord, NH

Provide leadership and oversight in the development and administration of member services, training and technical assistance,
statewide programs and other special projects of the NHCADSV in line with its mission, strategic plan and community needs.
Recruit, train and supervise program staff, as they implement and sustain initiatives of the NHCADSV. Oversee training and
technical assistance efforts of the NHCADSV. Develop and implement evaluation tools for statewide programs and special
projects. Provide high level management and support to the AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP.) Assist with grant
writing in response to federal, state, and private funding opportunities. Serve as liaison to the NHCADSV's 13 member programs
by identifying needed resources and training to improve direct service deiivery. Serve on statewide committees to assist in the
improvement of multi-disciplinary response to domestic vioience, sexual violence, stalking and human trafficking.

HAVEN - Manager of Client Services July 2015 - August 2020
Portsmouth, NH

Manage HAVEN client services program and supervise direct service staff. Serves as the Agency's AmeriCorps Victim Assistance
Program Advocate Coordinator and Internship Coordinator. Develop, organize and facilitate in-service and ongoing training
programs for all direct service staff, interns and volunteers. Maintain and continually develop an on-going effective ciient
services program using best practices for survivors of domestic and sexual violence through a 24 - hour hotline, office walk-ins,
and accompaniments to hospitals, police stations, courts and child advocacy centers. Engage and maintain excellent
relationships with victim service community partners both at the local and state level such as the NH State Attorney General's
office, NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence (NHCADSV), Rockingham & Strafford NH County Prosecutors and child
advocacy centers (CAC's), NH Department of Child, Youth and Family Services (DCYF), and local Law Enforcement, pro-bono
attorney programs, and district courts.

Sexual Assault Support Services (SASS) September 2011 - July 2015
Volunteer Advocate (Sept 2011 - July 2012) j Night Supervisor (July 2012- Sept.2013) j Client Services Coordinator (Sept. 2013 - July 2015)
Portsmouth, NH

Provide supportive services and referrals to victims and survivors of sexual violence through the 24 - hour hotline, hospital and
police accompaniments and peer support groups. Schedule and coordinate SASS's 24-hour services coverage. Provide
supervision to AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program members, direct service staff and volunteer advocates. Develop and
implement training and programming for trauma-informed sexual assault/abuse supportive services.

COMMITTEES & BOARDS SERVED:

NH Child Abuse & Neglect Task Force 2020 - Present
NH Child Fatality Review Committee 2020 - Present
NH Human Trafficking Collaborative Task Force 2017 - Present
NH Incapacitated & Vulnerable Adult Fatality Review Committee 2020 - Present
NH Lethality Assessment Program (LAP) Steering Committee 2018 - Present
NH Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) Advisory Board 2017 - Present
NH Weilness & Primary Prevention Council 2020- Present
Child Advocacy Center of Rockingham County MDT Advisory Board 2019 - 2020
Strafford County Child Advocacy Center Advisory Board 2017 - 2020
Strafford County Sexual Assault Resource Team (SART) 2016 - 2020
Rockingham County Sexual Assault Resource Team (SART) 2015 - 2020

OTHER RELATED EXPERIENCE:



S. Joi Smith

Back Alley Productions - Founder/Dlrector/Producer 2008 - Present
A cutting-edge, independent theater company focused on executing a clear, strong vision for quality theater programs, and
maintaining inclusivity, integrity and respect for all involved with each production.

Players' Ring Board of Director - Board Member/Producer Liaison/Marketing Chair 2013 - 2019
Portsmouth, NH

A non-profit, groundbreaking, black box theater whose mission is to provide an environment where artists can thrive, grow,
take risks and make daring choices. Responsible for training, coordinating, scheduling, supporting and mentoring
more than 25 production companies throughout the season, as well as planning and executing any fundraising efforts and
events for the theater. Manage and develop content for marketing, sociai media, and bi-weekly newsletters promoting each
production and event. Organize and facilitate community volunteer projects aimed at improving the theater space.

V-Day Portsmouth NH/V-Day Rochester NH/One Billion Rising - Organizer/Producer/Director 2001-2015
Organizing, producing and directing a yearly event focused on raising awareness and funds to end violence against women.
Organizing all aspects of these events, from casting, scheduling, staging, and directing, to securing donations and local
community support and creating content for and managing marketing and promotion of events. Fostering coilaboration with
local beneficiaries and other community V-Day organizers, to cross-promote causes and events, and ensure consistent
messaging. Responsible for completing and submitting required reports and reconciling budgets at the end of each event.

ADDITIONAL SKILLS:

Trainings 81 Group Facilitation: Experienced in developing and facilitating on-going required training for staff, community
partner professionals, as well as developing and faciiitating survivor support groups.
Technology: Proficient in both MAC and PC platforms. Expertise in Microsoft Office programs &. Office 365, Adobe Acrobat,
Adobe Photoshop, QuickBooks, and online project management and file share systems such as Freedcamp, Basecamp and
Dropbox, as well as Google docs.

Marketing: Additional expertise & aptitude for website design, social media management and email marketing. Skilied at
copywriting, editing and basic graphic design.

EDUCATION:

Plymouth Regional High School 1995

AWARDS 81 HONORS:

2019 Everyday Hero Award

Granite State Children's Alliance & the Stafford County Child Advocacy Center
2015 Champion for Children

The Child Advocacy Center of Rockingham County



Kathleen M. McDonald

Data Projects Coordinator 2020-present

NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence, Concord, NH

•  Coordinate data collection from the Coalition's 12 member programs and generate required reports to
the federal and state programs that fund the Coalition's work with survivors of domestic and sexual

violence

•  Coordinate Coalition-wide implementation of a new data management system enabling member

programs to collect and report data more efficiently and to use their data to better assist survivors

•  Support the Coalition's Programs and Public Affairs teams with data and statistics on the incidence of
domestic and sexual violence in New Hampshire and its impact on individuals, families, and

communities

Workshop Designer and Facilitator — Contract 2016-2020

Operation Horse Power (OMR) at Touchstone Farm, Temple, NH

Social Media Manager 2015-2020

Quilted Threads, Hennlker, NH

Communications Manager — Contract 2012-2016

Touchstone Farm, Temple, NH

•  Created and implemented a multi-channel communication strategy for equine-based educational
nonprofit

•  Set up templates and processes for efficient production of timely communications, from event
registration materials to grant applications and reports

•  Wrote daily content for two social media accounts, as well blog, website, and other outbound

communications; edited communications for other staff

•  Wrote and managed competitive grant applications

Director of Content Development 2007-2012

American Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals (ASPCA), New York, NY

•  Created and then managed ASPCApro.org, an educational website for animal-welfare professionals

•  Created web content, including how-to articles, interactive pieces, and downloadable job aids

•  Managed production and publishing schedules for ASPCApro.org, coordinating website content with

social media, webinars, eLearning courses, and other ASPCA websites

•  Planned and coordinated website design upgrades and platform migrations

Technical Writer— Contract 2006-2007

TAC, Inc. (now Schneider Electric), North Andover, fvIA

•  Updated print and online document sets for building control software products

Technical Writer— Contract 2004-2006

Imagine Humane, New York, NY

•  Wrote how-to articles and created related forms and samples for best practices in animal sheltering

•  After Hurricane Katrina, helped ASPCA manage lost and found pet databases created by other

agencies

Technical Writer and Instructional Designer — Contract 2002-2004

iDesign & Delivery, Norfolk, MA

•  Designed and developed HTML help system and interface spec for a laboratory data management
system

•  Participated in user interface development, including recommendations for user interface text



Kathleen McDonald resume, p. 2

Technical Writer and Instructional Designer — Contract 1998-2001

Autodesk, Inc., Manchester, NH

•  Designed and developed customer courseware and online tutorials for Autodesk engineering product
suite

•  Created information design strategy, writing guidelines, sample files, and style guide for the 1600+
page HTML help system for Autodesk's flagship architectural software

Instructional Designer— Contract 2000

Yantra Corporation, Acton, MA

•  Developed classroom training materials, including PowerPoint presentations and student guides, for

warehouse data management software

Technical Writer — Contract 1997-1998

Codman Group, Andover, MA

•  Developed documentation for data analytic software for the healthcare industry

Technical Writer and Instructional Designer — Contract 1988-1997

Bayer Diagnostics Corporation (now Siemens, and formeriy Chiron Diagnostics and Ciba Corning Diagnostics),

Norwood, MA

•  Developed online help and user interface text, operator's manuals, user's guides, quick reference

cards, and interface specifications for medical diagnostic devices and data management systems

•  Designed and developed an online customer training guide; designed and led train-the-trainer session

for technical service representatives

•  Managed concurrent writing projects, working with engineers and other product SMEs, marketing, field

service, technical Illustrators, other writers, and localization vendors

Other Work Experience

Adjunct Faculty, Bradford College, Bradford, MA

Programmer and Production Manager, Main Street Marketing, Scituate Harbor, MA

Proposal Speciaiist, Computervision Corporation, Bedford, MA

AWARDS

Society for Technical Communication (STC)

Distinguished Technical Communication Award and Nomination for Best of Show, 1996

Award of Achievement, 1991 and 1996

Award of Merit, 1991

EDUCATION

Smith College, Northampton, MA

Bachelor of Arts, English Literature

•  magna cum laude

•  Phi Beta Kappa



Meghan Jenks

EXPERIENCE

NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence, Concord, NH
Assistant SANE Director—February 2025 to Present

• Managed administration of specialized pediatric medical program, including coordination

with examiners, students, program staff, and supplies

•  Provided communications facilitation to the statewide Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner

(SANE) program

•  Provided training on topics related to sexual assault, domestic violence, and human

trafficking

• Organized trainings and conferences, including online learning system materials

•  Collaborated with statewide partners on best practice protocols and system response

• Developed grant application narratives and assisted with program budget

NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence, Concord, NH
Program Specialist—October 2023 to February 2025

•  Provided organization and training and communications facilitation to the statewide

Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) program

•  Served as NH Human Trafficking Collaborative Task Force Coordinator

•  Provided training on topics related to sexual assault, domestic violence, and human

trafficking

• Organized trainings and conferences, including online learning system materials

•  Collaborated with statewide partners on best practice protocols and system response

• Developed grant application narratives

•  Prepared meeting materials, facilitated meetings, and maintained detailed minutes

NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence, Concord, NH
Programs Coordinator—February 2021 to October 2023

•  Provided organization and training and communications facilitation to the statewide

Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) program

•  Provided training on topics related to sexual assault and the SANE Program

• Coordinated trainings and conferences, including online learning system materials

• Collaborated with statewide partners on best practice protocols and system response

•  Prepared meeting materials, facilitated meetings, and maintained detailed minutes

• Assisted with other projects as needed

NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence, Concord, NH
Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Program Assistant — May 2017 to February 2021



•  Provided organization and training and communications facilitation to the statewide

Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) program

•  Coordinated trainings and conferences, including online learning system materials

•  Prepared meeting materials, facilitated meetings, and maintained detailed minutes

NH Department of Education, Bureau of Special Education, Concord, NH
Clerk— June 2016-May 2017 and summers of 2012, 2014, 2015

Audited Catastrophic Aid applications and provided information to districts

Navigated online database and data entry systems

Trained and advised other clerks

Answered bureau and department phones and directed callers to resources

Prepared training and onsite meeting materials

Research and synthesized special education topics of state director as requested

Drafted and edited manuals and reports for education consultants

Keene State College Human Resources, Keene, NH
Student Assistant— 2013-2016

•  Entered data into an online database

• Maintained Excel spreadsheets

•  Assisted staff with technology and reviewed documents

•  Filed and maintained filing systems

•  Prepared training and other event materials

Local Government Center (now HealthTrust, Inc.), Concord, NH
Temporary Administrative Support Associate— 2013-2014
•  Utilized scanning system, Laserfiche

•  Organized scanned documents in database

•  Reviewed and categorized documents

• Maintained confidentiality

EDUCATION

Keene State College
B.A. Women's and Gender Studies/Communications, May 2016

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS & HONORS

•  Triota Women's and Gender Honor Society, Gamma Kappa chapter

•  Lambda Pi Eta Communications Honor Society, Zeta Mu chapter

•  Ann Britt Waling Women's Studies Recognition Award Winner, 2016

•  Presenter at Keene State College Academic Excellence Conference, 2016

•  Keene State College Honors Program 2013-2016



Rachel Duffy

Work Experience
Housing and Economic Justice Specialist
NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
August 2021 to Present
Oversee the HUD Domestic Violence Rapid Re-Housing grant through the Balance of State Continuum of
Care. Facilitate training and support to the 8 subrecipient agencies. Offer technical assistance to programs to
ensure they are HUD compliant. Offer monthly meetings for housing advocates across the state to increase
collaboration throughout the programs. Assist in completing annual grant application. Track grant
expenditures and complete monthly billing for the program. Manage the statewide VOCA funded Housing
First Program, including technical assistance and training to 12 member programs, process funding
requests, reporting on program outcomes. Develop and maintain statewide relationships to support housing
advocacy. Administer the Economic Empowerment Program of NH, including managing the Matched
Savings Program and training AmeriCorps Members and other advocates on financial empowerment
resources

AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program Manager
NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (NHCADSV)
August 2020 to August 2021
Effectively Managed NHCADSV AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP) by adhering to
mandated programmatic regulations including performing background checks on incoming AVAP
members, maintain member files, biannual grant progress reports, and ensuring members adhere to
service polices. Offered mentorship, training, and guidance to AVAP members throughout the service
year. Supported host sites in supervising their AVAP members through training and ongoing
communication across the service year. Participated in AmeriCorps days of service events such as MLK
day of service. Trained AVAP members in implementing the Allstate Moving Ahead curriculum for
survivors of domestic and sexual violence at their host sites. Offered educational and employment
guidance for AVAP members exiting the program.

Transitional Housing Advocate
Bridges Domestic and Sexual Violence Support - Nashua, NH
February 2017 to August 2020
Manage the cases of up to 10 families. Assist clients in searching for apartments. Negotiate fair rents with
landlords. Keep informed on housing laws and legislation. Cultivate strong community relationships to
enhance client supports. Provide finaneial literacy to clients through ongoing budget and savings, and
credit awareness seminars. Maintain confidential information. Track statistical data and complete grant
reports on a semiannual basis. Work with clear judgment in crisis situations and provide emotional
counseling. Directly supervised the Housing First Advocate.

Shelter Manager
Bridges Domestic and Sexual Violence Support - Nashua, NH
January 2013 to February 2017
Managed the cases of up to five families in a confidential domestic violence shelter. Provided direct
service and crisis counseling to all families. Maintained condition of shelter by keeping track of regular
maintenance and coordinating repairs. Lead weekly support groups at shelter. Participated biweekly on
the 24-hour crisis line. Maintained confidential documents. Tracked statistical data for quarterly reports.



AmeriCorps Member (court advocate)
Americorps Victim Assistance Program - Concord, NH
August 2012 to January 2013
Assisted survivors of domestic violence in preparing legal documents such as restraining orders, and ex
parte custody orders. Advocated for clients during court proceedings. Assisted clients in applying for
legal assistance. Participated on biweekly on our 24-hour support line. Become familiar with All State
Financial Empowerment Curriculum and provide this training to clients. Attended AmeriCorps training's
and social outreach events.

Education

Associates Degree in Behavioral Scicnce-2019
Granite State College - Concord, NH
Certificate in Human Scrvices-2014

Nashua Community College - Nashua, NH

UNH Supervisors Boot camp -University of New Hampshire Durham, NH (Completed 7/19/18)



Sarah R. Seeley

Education

Connecticut College New London, CT
Bachelor of Arts, Economics and Gender, Sexuality, & Intersectionality Studies Jan 2020 - May 2022
GPA 3.869/4.000

•  Dean's Honors (Spring 2020), Dean's High Honors (Fall 2020-Spring 2021)

St. Lawrence University Canton, NY
Bachelor of Arts Aug 2018 - Dec 2019
•  Advanced Studied Program Award (2018-2019), Dean's List (Fall 2018-Fall 2019)

Work Experience

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence Concord, NH
Public Affairs Coordinator July 2022 - Present
•  Creates content to update the Coalition's website, social media, and newsletters about survivor's rights

and resources to inform victims, member programs, legislators, and the public.

•  Coordinates direct fundraising appeals in the Spring and Winter, annual giving campaigns, maintains the
donor database, creates promotional materials for fundraising campaigns, and orchestrates timely

acknowledgments to donors. Additionally, supports in coordinating member program development
meetings and the Board of Directors Development Committee.

•  Supports public policy needs such as tracking relevant legislation, attending legislative hearings, and
assisting with the recruitment and management of the Coalition's legislative volunteer network.

Connecticut College Academic Resource Center New London, CT
Econometrics Tutor Aug 2020 - May 2021

•  Aided 40 students per semester by describing econometric concepts and addressing issues arising in
regressions to improve confidence in classwork material

•  Instructed tutees on Stata software to model and solve econometric problems through regression analyses,
proper use of .do files, and report results with output tables

Wayfarer Coffee Roasters, Laconia, NH May 2021 - August 2021
Barista

•  Promoted coffee and tea consumption by educating customers; selling coffee and coffee brewing
equipment, accessories, and supplies; preparing and serving a variety of drinks, along with house-made
liege waffles

•  Created and implemented new drink recipes for house specials, such as the Blue Moon Latte to celebrate
Wayfarer's 6*'' birthday

Internship Experience

DIS Copenhagen Media Team Copenhagen, Denmark
Photographer Aug 2021 - Dec 2021
•  Completed three individual photo assignments and six photo drops to document abroad experiences and

market towards future students

•  Generated new content monthly for blog and Instagram posts, highlighting DIS student life and Danish
culture to improve online presence and increase investment towards abroad programs

Co-curricular Activities

Women's Empowerment Initiative New London, CT
Member Jan 2020 - Present

•  Collaborated with 100+ other passionate activists to practice a monologue for a fundraiser performance
•  Allocated and managed time weekly to discuss upcoming events and new initiatives to enhance the

organization's structure



FORM NUMBER G-l (version 11/2021)

GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Identification and Definitions.

1.1. State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Justice
1.2. State Agency Address
1 Granite Place South, Concord, NH 03301

1.3. Grantee Name

Catholic Charities New Hampshire

1.4. Grantee Address 100 William Loeb Drive,

Manchester, NH 03109-5324

1.5 Grantee Phone #

(603) 663-0203

1.6. Account Number

02-20-20-201510-2601

-073-500581

1.7. Completion Date

09/30/2026
1.8. Grant Limitation

$73,270

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency
Kathleen Carr

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number
(603) 271-3658

If Grantee is a municipality or village district: "By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public
meetiiig requirement for acceptance of this grant, including if applicable RSA 31:95-b."

l.ll. Grantee Signature4>. 1.12. Name & Title of Grantee Signer 1
v/* Coo

Grantee Sign^re 2 Name & Title of Grantee Signer 2

Grantee Signature 3 Name & Title of Grantee Signor 3

1.13 State Agency Signature(s) 1.14. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)

7?. Thomas D. Kaempfer, Deputy Director of Admin

1.15. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

By: Assistant Attorney General, On: / / 10/15/25

1.16. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: / /

2. SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting
through the Agency identified in block l.I (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Grantee
identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as "the Grantee"), shall perform that work identified and
more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work
being hereinafter referred to as "the Project").

1 ofS Subrecipient Initials

Date



4.

4.1.

4.2.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

7.2.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

9.

9.1.

AREA COVERED. Except as otherwise specifically provided for herein, the
Grantee shall perform the Project in, and with respect to, the State of New
Hampshire. 9.2.
EFFECTIVE DATE: COMPLETION OF PROJECT.

This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become
effective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.16), or upon 9.3.
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 ("the Effective Date").
Except as othertvise specifically provided herein, the Project, including all reports 9.4.
required by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to the date in
block 1.7 (hereinafter referred to as "the Completion Date").
GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: PAYMENT.

The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C,
attached hereto. 9.5.

Tlie manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT C.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT C, and in consideration 10.
of the satisfactory performance of the Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Grantee the Grant Amount. The State shall withhold from the amount otherwise
payable to the Grantee under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums required, or
permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7-e.
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the complete
payment to the Grantee for all expenses, of whatever nature, incurred by the
Grantee in the performance hereof, and shall be the only, and the complete,
compensation to the Grantee for the Project. The State shall have no liabilities to 11.
the Grantee other than the Grant Amount. 11.1.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and nohvithstanding
unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all payments authorized, 11,1.1
or actually made, hereunder exceed the Grant limitation set forth in block 1.8 of 11.1.2
these general provisions. 11.1.3
COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH 1.AWS AND REGULATIONS. In 11.1.4

connection with the performance of the Project, the Grantee shall comply with all 11.2.
statutes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or municipal
authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the Grantee, including 11.2.1
the acquisition of any and all necessary permits and RSA 31-95-b.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years after the Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by the grant tenns or the Agency, the Grantee
shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in connection with the 11.2.2
Project, including, but not limited to, costs of administration, transportation,
insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials and services. Such accounts
shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and other similar documents.
Between the Eftective Date and the date seven (7) years after the Completion
Date, unless othet^vise required by the grant terms or the Agency pursuant to 11.2.3
subparagraph 7.1, at any time during the Grantee's normal business hours, and as
often as the State shall demand, the Grantee shall make available to the State all 11.2.4
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Grantee shall
permit the State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits 12.
of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data (as that 12.1.
term is hereinafter defined), and other information relating to all matters covered
by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, "Grantee" includes all persons,
natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common ownership
with, the entity identified as tlie Grantee in block 1.3 of these provisions
PERSONNEL.

The Grantee shall, at its osvn expense, provide all personnel necessary to perform 12.2.
the Project. The Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged in the Project shall
be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed and authorized
to perfonn such Project under all applicable laws.
The Grantee shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, subgrantee, 12.3.
or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort
to perform the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual relationship with
the State, or who is a State officer or employee, elected or appointed.
The Grant Officer shall be the representative of the State hereunder. In the event
of any dispute hereunder, the interpretation of this Agreement by the Grant 12.4.
Officer, and his/her decision on any dispute, shall be final.
DATA: RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS.

As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all information and things 13.
developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or developed by
reason of, this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video recordings, pictorial
reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations.

computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished.
Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Grantee shall grant to
the State, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access to all data for
examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any other
purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other country by
anyone other than the State.
On and after the Effective Date all data, and any property which has been received
from the State or purchased with fiinds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned to the State
upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, whichever
shall first occur.

The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, all data.
CONtilTlONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon
the availabil ity or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the State
be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those funds, the State shall
have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever, and
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Grantee notice of such termination.

EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the Grantee shall constitute
an event of default hereunder (hereinafter referred to as "Events of Default"):
Failure to perfonn the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hereunder; or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hereunder; or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreement.
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take any one, or more,
or all, of the following actions:
Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and requiring it
to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser specification of time,
thirty (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not
timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Grantee notice of termination; and
Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and suspending
all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the portion of the
Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Grantee during the period
from the date of such notice until such time as the State detennines that the

Grantee has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid to the Grantee; and
Set off against any other obligation the State may owe to the Grantee any damages
the State suffers by reason of any Event of Default; and
Treat the agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity,
or both.

TERMINATION.

In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Project, the Grantee shall deliver to the Grant Officer, not
later than fifteen (15) days after the date of termination, a report (hereinafter
referred to as the "Tennination Report") describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount earned, to and including the date of termination.
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall entitle
the Grantee to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and including
the date of termination.

In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall in no
event relieve the Grantee from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of the Grantee's breach of its obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either the State or,
except where notice default has been given to the Grantee hereunder, the Grantee,
may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days written notice.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the Grantee,
and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New Hampshire or of
the governing body of the locality or localities in which the Project is to be
performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the review or
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14.

15.

16.

17.

17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

approval of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall participate in 17.2.
any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal interest
or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he or she
is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have any personal or
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.
GRANTEE'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the performance of this
Agreement the Grantee, its employees, and any subcontractor or subgrantee of 18.
the Grantee are in all respects independent contractors, and are neither agents
nor employees of the State. Neither the Grantee nor any of its officers,
employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantees, shall have authority
to bind the State nor are they entitled to any of the benefits, workmen's
compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its employees.
ASSIGNMFTIT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee shall not assign, or 19.
otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior svritten
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted by the Grantee other than as set forth in Exhibit B without the prior
written consent of the State. 20.

INDEMNIFICATION The Grantee shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless
the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and all losses suffered
by the State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims, liabilities or
penalties asserted against the State, its officers and employees, by or on behalf 21.
of any person, on account of, based on, resulting from, arising out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the Grantee or
subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent of the Grantee. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the State.
This covenant shall survive the termination of this agreement. 22.
INSURANCE.

The Grantee shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or shall 23.
require any subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee performing Project work to
obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the following
insurance:

Statutory workers' compensation and employees liability insurance for all 24.
employees engaged in the performance of the Project, and
General liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries, death or property
damage, in amounts not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and $500,000 for property
damage in any one incident, and

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be the standard
form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters acceptable
to the State, and authorized to do business in the State ofNew Hampshire. Grantee
shall furnish to the State, eertificates of insurance for all rene\val(s) of insurance
required under this Agreement no later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration
date of each insurance policy.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof
after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to
that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Event of Default
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the Grantee.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certified mail, postage
prepaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
first above given.
AMENDMENT This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval of
such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the State
of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing Stale Agency.
CON.S TRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. I his Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
bind ing upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assignees. The captions and contents of the "subject" blank are used only as
a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a part of this Agreement or
to be used in determining the intend of the parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional or modifying provisions set forth in
Exhibit A hereto are incorporated as part of this agreement.

3 of 8 Subreclplent Initials
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EXHIBIT A

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

Catholic Charities New Hampshire as the Grantee (hereinafter referred to
as "Subrecipient") shall be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions, and specifications detailed
below, which are subject to annual review.

1  The Subrecipient must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful
access to any services provided by this program. National origin discrimination includes
discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). Meaningful access may
entail providing language assistance services, including oral and written translation when
necessary. The U.S. Department of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them
comply with these requirements. The guidance document can be accessed on the Internet at
www.lep.gov.

2  The Subrecipient assures that in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination within the three years prior to the
receipt of the federal financial assistance and after a due process hearing against the
Subrecipient on the grounds of race, color, religioh,-'national origin, sex, age, or disability, a
copy of the finding will be submitted to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants
Management Unit and to the U.S. Department of Justice, Office for Civil Rights, Office of
Justice Programs, 810 7th Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20531. For additional information
regarding your obligations under civil rights please reference the state website at
http://www.doj.nh.gov/grants-management/civil-rights.htm and understand if you are
awarded funding from this office, civil rights compliance will be monitored by this office,
and the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.

The Subrecipient will comply (and will require any subrecipients or contractors to comply)
3  with any applicable nondiscrimination provisions, which may include the Omnibus Crime

Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); the Victims of Crime Act (34
U.S.C. § 20110(e)); the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C.
§ II 182(b)); the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. § 12291(b)(13)); the Civil Rights
Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §2000d); the Indian Civil Rights Act (25 U.S.C. §§ 1301-1303); the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
(42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-34); the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681, 1683,
1685-86); and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-07). It will also
comply with Ex. Order 13279, Equal Protection of the Laws for Faith-Based and
Community Organizations; Executive Order 13559, Fundamental Principles and
Policymaking Criteria for Partnerships With Faith-Based and Other Neighborhood
Organizations; and the DOJ implementing regulations at 28 C.F.R. Part 38.

4  Compensation for individual consultant services is to be reasonable and consistent with that
paid for similar services in the marketplace. The current consultant limit is $650 per day or
$81.25 per hour. When the rate exceeds the limit for an 8-hour day, or a proportionate
hourly rate (excluding travel and subsistence costs), a written prior approval is required .
Prior approval requests require additional justification.

^  The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the NH
Department of Justice, that employee or their relative shall not perform work on or be billed

®  Subrecipient initiais

Date jD



EXHIBIT A

to any federal or state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly managed or
supervised while at the DOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express approval of the
DOJ.

6  The Subrecipient understands that grants are funded for the grant award period noted on the
grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in future
years.

7  The Subrecipient authorizes the DOJ and its representatives, access to and the right to examine
all records, books, paper or documents related to tliis subgrant.

8. The Subrecipient agrees that all services will be provided at no charge to victims unless a
program income waiver is obtained from the DOJ. If permission is granted, the Subrecipient
agrees that there must be a sliding scale that starts at zero (0), and that all program income will
be totally expended on grant allowable activities by the end of the funding cycle.

9. Equipment purchased with this subgrant shall be listed by the Subrecipient on the agency
inventory. The inventory must include the item description, serial number, cost, percentage of
state funds, and location.

10. The Subrecipient agrees that if a financial audit of the agency is performed, whether it be an
audit under 2 CFR or not, the Subrecipient agrees to provide a copy of the audit and any
associated management letters to the DOJ, Grants Management Unit. The Single Audit report
must be submitted to the Grants Management Unit within 9 months after the Subrecipient's
year-end or one month after the issuance of the audit

11. The Subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, agrees to make its financial statements
available online (either on the Subrecipient's website, or the DOJs, or another publicly available
website). Organizations that have Federal 501(c)(3) tax status are considered in compliance with
this requirement, with no further action needed, to the extent that such organization files IRS
Form 990 or similar tax document (e.g.. Form 990-EZ), as several sources already provide searchable
online databases of such financial statements.

12. The Subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, must certify their non-profit status by
submitting a statement to NH DOJ: 1) affirmatively asserting that the recipient is a non-profit
organization and 2) indicating that the Subrecipient has on file and available upon audit one of
the following:

• A copy of the organization's 501 (c)(3) designation letter, or;
• A letter from the State of New Hampshire stating that the Subrecipient is a non- profit

organization operating within the state, or;
• A copy of the Subgrantee's state certificate of incorporation that substantiates its non-profit

status.

Subrecipients that are local non-profit affiliates or state of national non-profits should also
have a statement by the parent organization that the Subrecipient is a local non-profit affiliate.

® ot ® Subrecipient Initials
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EXHIBIT B

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive a subgrant from the New Hampshire Department of Justice
as tlie State Agency (DOJ) for expenses incurred and services provided for specialized legal
services for victims of crime in New Hampshire, including but not limited to, expenses for

personnel, benefits, travel, supplies and indirect costs.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures

described in EXHIBIT C. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for

reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided. Expenditure
reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days following the end of
the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later than thirty (30) days
following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of compliance. For

example, with an award that begins on January 1, the first quarterly report is due on April
15''' or 15 days after the close of the first quarter ending on March 31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both
state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this
office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting documentation
shall be maintained for at least seven (7) years after the close of the Federal Grant.

4. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt

shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

5. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:

NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

I Granite Place South

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-7820 or Rhonda.J.Beauchemin@doj.nh.gov

®  ® Subrecipient Initials
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EXmSIT c

- PAYMENT TERMS-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure

reports as described in EXHIBIT B.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ's

approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient's account

receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not

exceed the price limitation set forth in form G-1 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $73,270 of
the total Grant Limitation upon Governor and Council approval or

01/01/2026, whichever is later, to 06/30/2026, with approved expenditure

reports. This shall be contingent on continued federal funding and program

performance.

3b. With sufficient reason and under limited circumstances, the Subrecipient

may apply for an extension of the grant period for up to three months, to

09/30/2026. The Subrecipient must submit the request in writing. No

extension is granted until approval is received by DOJ in writing.

^  ® Subrecipient initiais
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EXHIBIT D

-NON-SUPPLANTING CERTIFICATION -

Supplanting defined

Federal funds must be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and must not
replace those funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Supplanting shall be the
subject of application review, as well as pre-award review, post-award monitoring, and audit. If
there is a potential presence of supplanting, the Subrccipient or grantee will be required to supply
documentation demon,strating that the reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for reasons
other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds. For certain programs, a written
certification may be requested by the awarding agency or recipient agency stating that Federal
funds will not be used to supplant State or local funds. See the OJP Financial Guide (Part II,
Chapter 3)
htto://www.oiD.usdoi.gov/financialguide/part2/pa rt2chan3.htm.

Supplanting and job retention
A recipient or subrecipient may use federal funds to retain jobs that, without the use of the
federal money, would be lost. If the grantee is planning on using federal funds to retain jobs, it
must be able to .substantiate that, without the funds, the jobs would be lost. Substantiation can be,
but is not limited to, one of the following forms: an official memorandum, official minutes of a
county or municipal board meeting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produced
when making determinations about employment. The documentation must describe the
terminated positions and that the termination is because of lack of the availability of State or
local funds.

Catholic Charities New Hampshire (Subrecipient) certifies that any funds through this

award will not replace (supplant) any federal funds that have been appropriated for the

purposes and goals of the grant.

Catholic Charities New Hampshire (Subrecipient) understands that supplanting violations

may result in a range of penalties, including but not limited to suspension of future funds

under this program, suspension or debarment from federal grants, recoupment of monies

provided under this grant, and civil and/or criminal penalties.

Printed Name and Title of Authorized Signor:

Signature: / J . . , pOlVvM , U
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that CATHOLIC CHARITIES NEW

HAMPSHIRE is a New Hampshire Trade Name registered to transact business in New Hampshire on November 17, 2014.1

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 717711

Certificate Number: 0007148036

y

5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand tmd cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of April A.D. 2025.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



I.

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Peter Adam Coughlln
hereby certify that:

of the electee! Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1  I am a duly elected Clerk/SecretaryADfficer of New Hampshire r.flthnlic CharitiP" Cathnlio Charities NH.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on September 24,2025, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Tom Blonski. Dominique Rust, and David Hildenbrand (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of New Hampshire Catholic Charities dba CatholiCf Charities NH to enter into contracts
or agreements with the

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)
State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications hereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
positon(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind tfie corporation in contracts with th^tate of New H^iqpshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein. ^

Dated: 10/08/25

Signature of Elected Officer^
Name: Peter Adam Coug
Title: CCNH Board of Trustees Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DDATYYY)

03/03/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in iieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Porter & Curtis. A Division of Heffernan Insurance Brokers
225 State Road

Media, PA 19063

NAME*'"^ Suzanne Robotham
PHONE FAX
lA/C. No. Extl: lA/C. Nol:

ADDRESS- srabothanrKgportercurtis.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC«

INSURER A : the NATIONAL CATHOLIC RISK RETENTION GROUP, INC 10083

INSURED

NH CATHOLIC CHARITIES - ADMINISTRATION

100 William Loeb Drive

Unit 3

MANCHESTER. NH 03109

INSURER B ; CHURCH MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY 18767

INSURER C : MANFACTURERS ALLIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY 36897

INSURER D ;

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: C000254078 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AUUL

INSD

SUBR

WYD POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF
IMM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYYI LIMITS

A

X COMMERCIAL 6ENERAL LIABILITY

)E [X] OCCUR

RRG-04Q2025-1 03/01/2025 03/01/2026

EACH OCCURRENCE j  1,000.000

CLAIMS-MAE
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrerrce) $  Included

MED EXP (Any one person) j  Not Covered

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY 5  1,000,000

GEtJ'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY Q im LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE 3  None Applicable

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $  None Applicable

$

B

AU1

X

rOMOBILELIABIUTY

0500000 09-861983 03/01/2025 03/01/2026

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accident)

$  1,000.000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NONOWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident) $

$

A X

UMBRELLA LtAB

EXCESS LIAB

X
OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE XS-0402025-1 03/01/2025 03/01/2026

EACH OCCURRENCE j  14,000,000

AGGREGATE $  N/A

DED I RETENTIONS S

C

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y / N
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXeCUTIVE 1 1
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
tf yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A 202500 1594803 03/01/2025 03/01/2026

X  PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L EACH ACCIDENT
J  1,000,000

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
J  1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
J  1,000,000

B Auto Physical Damage 0500000 09-727898 03/01/2025 03/01/2026 Actual Cash Value Less $1,000 Ded. Comp & Coll

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space Is required)
The limits include applicable retentions. The certificate holder is included as an Additional Insured if required by written contract with regards to Grant and Loan agreement

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Justice

1 Granite Place South

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Trustees

New Hampshire Catholic Charities

Opinion

We have audited the combined financial statements of New Hampshire Catholic Charities, d/b/a Catholic
Charities New Hampshire (the Organization), which comprise the combined statements of financial position
as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, the related combined statements of activities, functional expenses and cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the combined financial statements (collectively, the
financial statements).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Organization as of March 31,2025 and 2024, and the results of their operations, their functional
expenses and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as
a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued or available to be issued.



To the Board of Trustees

New Hampshire Catholic Charities

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.



To the Board of Trustees

New Hampshire Catholic Charities

Other Matter

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying other financial information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the financial statements as a whole.

Ba^f ^1^5 LVC
July 17, 2025



NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

March 31, 2025 and 2024

ASSETS

(In thousands)

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Due from related entity
Pledges, contributions and grants receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Patient, tenant and other cash held in trust

Total current assets

Restricted cash

Fbced assets:

Land and improvements
Building and improvements
Equipment and vehicles
F umiture and fixtures

Leasehold improvements
Construction in process

Less accumulated depreciation

Fixed assets, net

Other assets:

Investments, at fair value
Operating lease right-of-use assets
Other assets held for restrictive purposes
Other

Total other assets

Total assets

2025

$ 17,075
6,336

2,744

356

1,148

612

508

2024

$ 15,249
6,548

1,291

753

1,220

290

499

28,779 25,850

163

2,648

63,770

10,006

2,985

2,614

6.091

88,114

144.2591

57,587

4,040

394

200

2,619

62,815

9,608

2,936

2,378

457

80,813

141.4941

43,855 39,319

58,683

4,280

396

123

62.221 63.482



LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

(In thousands)

2025 2024

Current liabilities:

Current portion of operating lease liabilities $ 182 $ 192
Accounts payable:

Trade 3,099 1,948

Other 727 779

Due to affiliates 114 114

Accrued salaries and wages 1,160 915
Employee benefits payable 1,427 1,307
Patient, tenant and other cash held in trust 508 499
Deferred revenue 260 361

Total current liabilities 7,477 6,115

Long-term debt 2,025 1,125
Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion 4.026 4.209

Total noncurrent liabilities 6.051 5,334

Total liabilities 13,528 11,449

Net assets:

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated 103,895 99,514
Board-designated for capital reserves 6.593 6.169

110,488 105,683

With donor restrictions:

Purpose restrictions 8,433 9,312
Restricted endowment appreciation 345 309
Restricted in perpetuity - endowment 2.061 2.061

10.839 11.682

Total net assets .121,327 117,365

Total liabilities and net assets $134,855 $128.814

See accompanying notes.



NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES

COMBINED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended March 31, 2025
(In thousands)

Revenues, gains and other support:
Patient and resident services

Program service fees - children's school
Annual appeal
Bequests, grants, donations and fundraising
In-kind donations

Net assets released from restrictions

Management fee income

Without Donor

Restrictions

$ 54,524
2,597
3,997
16,825
15,498
3,471
183

With Donor

Restrictions

$  -

2,178

(3,471)

Total

54,524
2,597
3,997
19,003
15,498

183

Developer fees 150 _ 150
Other 2.501 — 2.501

Total revenue, gains and other support 99,746 (1,293) 98,453

Expenses:
Program services:

Rehabilitation and nursing centers 47,267 _ 47,267
Family services 996 — 996
Parish and community services 1,491 — 1,491
Children's school 2,244 2,244
Senior living communities 1,298 1,298
Assisted living services 2,247 — 2,247
Liberty House 1,374 — 1,374
New Generation 1,219 1,219
St. Jacinta Healthcare Staffing 2,107 — 2,107
Food bank program 27,692 — 27,692
Food bank real estate 357 357
Our Place 517 — 517
Residence for infirmed priests, including interest of $34 437 — 437
Immigration 1,067 — 1,067
Employee leasing 607 — 607
Other programs 557 — 557

Fundraising:
Annual campaign and other events 3,049 — 3,049

Support services:
General and administrative, including interest of $9 4.099 — 4.099

Total expenses 98,625 - 98,625

Investment income, net 3.684 450 4.134

Total change in net assets 4,805 (843) 3,962

Net assets, beginning of year 105.683 11,682 117.365

Net assets, end of year $110,488 $10,839 $121,327

See accompanying notes.



NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES

COMBINED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended March 31, 2024
(In thousands)

Revenues, gains and other support:
Patient and resident services

Program service fees - children's school
Annual appeal
Bequests, grants, donations and lundraising
In-kind donations

Net assets released from restrictions

Management fee income
Other

Total revenue, gains and other support

Expenses:
Program services:

Rehabilitation and nursing centers,
including interest of $95

Family services
Parish and community services
Children's school

Senior living communities, including interest of $199
Assisted living services, including interest of $15
Liberty House
New Generation

St. Jacinta Healthcare Staffing
Food bank program
Food bank real estate

Our Place

Residence for infirmed priests, including interest of $43
Immigration
Other programs

Fundraising:
Annual campaign and other events

Support services:
General and administrative, including interest of $ 11
Total expenses

Investment income, net

Forgiveness of related-party debt

Total change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Without Donor

Restrictions

$ 51,596
2,032
3,526
13,800
22,594
2,727
177

2.100

98,552

44,581
982

1,431
1,954
1,444
1,894
1,218
1,059
2,729

33,673
349

483

403

1,077
682

2,490

3.704

100,153

7,976

375

6,750

98.933

$105.683

With Donor

Restrictions

$  -

1,317

(2,727)

(1,410)

1

1

774

(637)

12.319

$ 11.682

Total

:  51,596
2,032
3,526
15,117
22,594

177

2.100

97,142

44,581
982

1,431
1,954
1,444
1,894
1,218
1,059
2,729

33,673
349

483

403

1,077
682

2,490

3.705

100,154

8,750

375

6,113

111.252

$117.365

See accompanying notes.



NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Ended March 31,2025
(In thousands)

Without Donor Restrictions

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Professional fees

Fundraising costs
Purchased services - healthcare

Other purchased services
Advertising and promotion
Recruiting advertising
Office supplies
Healthcare supplies
Other supplies
Postage and shipping
Program materials
Printing
Telephone
Dues and subscriptions
Information technology
Rent and occupancy costs
Equipment maintenance, repair and rentals
Travel

Hospitality
Conferences and meetings
Education and activities

Interest

Depreciation
Insurance

Miscellaneous

Grants and awards

Food purchases and vending
Food donations

Nursing facility assessment tax
Gain on dispo^ of fixed assets
Bad debts

Administration costs

RCB sponsorship
Bank service chvges

Parish and

Family Community
Services Services

Our

Residence

for

Infirmed

Priests

Immi

gration

$  597 $  717 $  285 S  158 $  659
113 165 42 17 129

43 51 20

-

46

11 11 23

I

3

30 2

1 2 1 -

1

2

2 3
1

2 11 2
1

- 38
-

1

1

7 7 2 2 3
1 — 3 1 27

22 23 4 5 17

34 47 7 51 22

1 2 - 2 2

5 4 2 -
1

1
- - -

11

_ _ _ 34 _

_ — 8 51 —

7 9 5
1

11 6

8 280

1

I _

- -

1 29

-

140 166 70 31 134

2 1 1 2

S  996 $  1-491 S. ^ s m S  1.067

Liberty
House

$  601

122

2

15

96

85

6

14

5

19

56

50

5

St.

Jacinta

Healthcare

Staffing

S  1,752
6

135

161

188

12

5

86

New

Gen- Empl^ee
eration Leasing

1

12

I

14

2

13

Total

Programs/
Other Home

Programs Office

J.

633

102

46

4

18

34

1

2

19

6

42

18

3

22

57

3

3

56

13

4

125

4

504

72

31

288

(7)
16

3

50

4

5

1

1

4

1

5

68

352

66

2

25

27

$ 6,194
761

388

7

166

160

136

14

10

129

17

81

33

34

33

131

342

60

22

15

34

657

142

13

315

34

787

_14

Food
Bank

$ 2,153
450

154

628

84

18

11

63

336

67

493

17

27

133

645

184

63

I

16

282

99

23

436

6,585
14,522

(<5)

623

79

$  1.374 S 2.107 S 1.219 $ g22 S 914 S 10,729 S 28.186



Without Donor Restrictions

St.

Charles
School

Six Reha

bilitation

and Nursing
Centers

Senior

Living
Commun

ities

Warde

Assisted

Livine

Total

Program
Services

Total

Fund-

raising

General and

Administration F.limination.s

Total

Without

Donor

Restrictions

With

Donor

Restrictions Total

Salaries and wages $  1,460 $ 22,857 $  223 $  1,318 $34,205 $  1,340 $ 2,762 S $ 38,307 $ $ 38,307

Employee benefits 292 4,319 94 151 6,067 219 542 — 6,828 — 6,828

Payroll taxes 106 1,680 19 98 2,445 97 193 - 2,735 — 2,735
Professional fees 5 132 3 1 148 11 354 — 513 - 513

Fundraising costs - - - - - 940 - - 940 - 940

Purchased services - healthcffl"c - 8,636 1 21 8,824 — - (2,227) 6,597 - 6,597
Other purchased services 124 159 72 116 1,259 - 17 — 1,276 - 1,276
Advertising and promotion - 9 4 2 235 9 2 - 246 - 246

Recruiting advertising 6 363 — - 401 - 18 — 419 - 419

OfTice supplies 7 61 2 5 96 3 7 — 106 — 106

Healthcare supplies - 1,127 — 2 1,129 - - - 1,129 — 1,129
Other supplies 21 506 16 55 790 1 18 - 809 - 809

Postage and shipping - 7 - - 360 91 6 - 457 - 457

Program materials 8 - 1 1 158 - — - 158 - 158

Printing - 1 - - 527 101 4 - '  632 - 632

Telephone 6 141 6 9 213 7 20 - 240 - 240

Dues and subscriptions - 111 1 6 178 5 35 - 218 — 218

Information technology 17 395 17 15 708 59 442 — 1,209 — 1,209
Rent and occupancy costs 58 1,490 364 229 3,128 - 434 (494) 3,068 — 3,068

Equipment maintenance, repair and rentals 5 107 7 1 364 5 17 — 386 — 386

Travel 1 11 1 1 99 3 45 — 147 — 147

Hospitality - - - - I 6 13 - 20 - 20

Conferences and meetings 8 49 — 2 90 15 91 — 196 — 196

Education and activities 6 - — - 6 — - - 6 - 6

Interest _ - — _ 34 — 9 - 43 - 43

Depreciation 95 1,427 411 57 2,929 - 201 - 3,130 - 3,130
Insurance 22 875 44 28 1,210 - 52 — 1,262 — 1,262

Miscellaneous 2 101 7 3 149 1 72 — 222 — 222

Grants and awards _ _ - - 751 20 228 — 999 — 999

Food purchases and vending 14 1,375 - 117 8,125 - 1 - 8,126 - 8,126

Food donations - — - 14,522 — — — 14,522 - 14,522
Nursing facility assessment tax - 2,633 — - 2,633 — - - 2,633 - 2,633
Gain on disposal of fixed assets (20) (I) — - (27) - - — (27) - (27)
Bad debts - 898 — 7 905 - - — 905 - 905

Administration costs - - — 1,410 93 (1.503) — - — -

RGB sponsorship - — — - - — 18 — 18 — 18

Bank service charges 1 25 5 2 126 23 1 — 150 — 150

See accompanying notes.

S 2.244 S 49.494 $  1.298 S 2.247 $94.198 $ 3.049 $ 4.099 $ f2.721) $ 98,625 S ^ S 98.625



NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Ended March 31,2024
(In thousands)

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Professional fees
Fundraising costs
Purchased services - healthcare
Other purchased services
Advertising and promotion
Recruiting advertising
Office supplies
Healthcare supplies
Other supplies
Postage and shipping
Program materials
Printing
Telephone
Dues and subscriptions
Information technology
Rent and occupancy costs
Equipment maintenance, repair and rentals
Travel

Hospitality
Conferences and meetings
Education and activities
Interest

Depreciation
Insurance

Miscellaneous

Grants and awards

Food purchases and vending
Food donations

Nursing facility assessment tax
Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Bad debts (recoveries)
Administration costs

RCB sponsorship
Bardc service charges

Without Donor Restrictions
Residence St, Total

Family
Parish and for Jacinta New Programs/
Community Our Infinned Immi Liberty Healthcare Gen- Other Home Food

Services Services Place Priests gration House Staffing eration Procrams Office Bank

$  578 $  721 $  252 $  145 S  649 S  520 $ 2.006 S  618 $  323 $ 5,812 $ 2,084
100 153 40 11 142 106 68 67 I 688 409
41 51 18 - 46 - 159 45 17 377 148
~ — - - - 1 - 1 10 12 28
— — — — — — — _ _ _ _

— — — 3 - _ 442 _ _ 445 _

10 13 17 29 2 20 33 49 173 700
6

- - - - 75 4 9 3 97 76
1 — — — 1 — 17 2 _ 21 5
2 3 3 I 3 1 - 1 2 16 14
— — — — — — _

—
_ _ _

4 4 5 10 4 114 _ 18 5 164 79
I 2 — — 1 2 — 2 1 9 352
- — 39 - - - — 2 — 41 17
— 1 — — 1 7 — 5 _ 14 496
8 10 4 I 5 6 2 2 4 42 18
1

17

— 3 1 21 1 — 1 1 29 17
20 4 3 15 15 16 12 3 105 122

34 56 7 46 24 40 - 68 121 396 670
2 3 - 1 3 41 - 7 _ 57 189
6 4 2 - 1 5 1 4 - 23 74
— — — — — — — _ _ _ _

5 - 2 - 5 - - 3 - 15 38
— — — — — — — _ _ _ _

— - — 43 — _ _ _ _ 43 _

— — 10 49 — 193 2 54 360 668 183
6 8 4 8 5 12 11 12 56 122 85
- (5) — - 1 1 — 5 3 5 19
- 191 — - — - — - 25 216 264
- — — 28 - 2 — 2 - 32 5,860
- - - - - - - - - - 21,644
— — — — — — — _ _ _ _

- - - - - (2) - - - (2) -

— — — — — —

158 196 72 23 146 55
-

83 47 780 494

-) _ 1 1 3 I 3 13 82

s m S  1-431 $ ^ $ ^ i  1-077 S  1.218 S 2,729 S  1-059 S  1.031 S 10.413 S 34.167
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Without Donor Restrictions

St.

Charles
School

Six Reha

bilitation

and Nursing
Centers

Senior

Living
Commun

ities

Warde

Assisted
Livina

Total

Program
Services

Total

Fund-

raising
General and

Administration Eliminations

Total

Without

Donor

Restrictions

With

Donor

Restrictions Total

Salaries and wages $  1,344 5 19,078 $  206 5  1,015 $29,539 $  1,364 $ 2,643 $ $ 33,546 $ $ 33,546

Employee benefits 204 3,734 100 129 5,264 210 517 - 5,991 - 5,991

Payroll taxes 93 1,403 17 68 2,106 97 185 — 2,388 — 2,388

Professional fees 3 117 2 1 163 - 158 — 321 — 321

Fundraising costs - - - - - 293 - - 293 - 293

Purchased services - healthcare — 11,478 2 36 11,961 — — (2,659) 9,302 — 9,302
Other purchased services 45 121 65 114 1,218 — 32 - 1,250 — 1,250

Advertising and promotion _ 4 3 4 184 9 4 — 197 — 197

Recruiting advertising 4 262 1 - 293 - 45 — 338 — 338

Office supplies 5 58 2 3 98 5 9 — 112 — 112

Healthcare supplies - 1,160 - 4 1,164 - — - 1,164 — 1,164

Other supplies 21 475 16 50 805 I 17 - 823 - 823

Postage and shippir® 1 7 - - 369 105 7 - 481 - 481

Program materials 8 - 1 2 69 — — - 69 - 69

Printing — 7 I 1 519 155 4 - 678 - 678

Telephone 5 135 2 7 209 7 38 - 254 — 254

Dues and subscriptions 2 101 - 8 157 4 30 - 191 — 191

Information technology 14 295 16 13 565 51 415 - 1,031 - 1,031

Rent and occupancy costs 57 1,508 359 225 3,215 - 380 (494) 3,101 I 3,102

Equipment maintenance, repair and rentals 4 102 3 3 358 5 17 - 380 - 380

Travel 1 34 1 1 134 3 43 — 180 — 180

Hospitality - - - - - 1 17 - 18 - 18

Conferences and meetings 4 43 - - 100 17 65 - 182 — 182

Education and activities 3 - - - 3 — — - 3 — 3

Interest 95 199 15 352 — 11 - 363 — 363

Depreciation 101 1,381 409 56 2,798 - 229 - 3,027 - 3,027

Insurance 21 756 36 24 1,044 - 29 - 1,073 - 1,073
Miscellaneous 1 87 (2) 2 112 - 62 — 174 - 174

Grants and awards - - — 480 24 125 — 629 - 629

Food purchases and vending 12 1,257 - 112 7,273 - 1 - 7,274 - 7,274
Food donations — — - — 21,644 — - — 21,644 — 21,644
Nursing facility assessment tax - 2,530 - 2,530 - - - 2,530 - 2,530
Gain on disposal of fixed assets - - - - (2) — — - (2) — (2)
Bad debts (recoveries) - 980 - (1) 979 — — — 979 — 979

Administration costs — - — 1,274 122 (1,396) — - — -

RGB sponsorship - - - - - - 15 - 15 - 15

Bank service ch^ges 1 32 5 2 135 17 2 — 154 — 154

S  1.954 S 47.240 S  1,444 S  1.894 £97.112 £ 2.490 £ 3.704 £100.153 S  1 £100.154

See accompanying notes.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended March 31, 2025 and 2024
(In thousands)

2025 2024

Operating activities;
Change in net assets $  3,962 $  6,113

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Restricted donations (2,178) (1,317)
Depreciation 3,130 3,027

Amortization of bond issuance costs - 2

Write-off of unamortized bond issuance costs - 40

Noncash lease expense 47 59

Forgiveness of related-party debt - (375)

Gain on disposal of fixed assets (27) -

Realized and unrealized gains on investments, net (1,628) (6,484)

Net investment income reinvested (2,490) (2,271)

Food donations received (14,906) (22,410)

Food donations distributed 14,522 21,644

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 212 (1,443)

Inventory 456 517

Prepaid expenses (322) (74)
Pledges, grants and contributions receivable 397 (593)

Due to affiliates - (23)

Other assets (75) 64

Accounts payable and accmed expenses 1,342 77

Deferred revenue flOl) 211

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 2,341 (3,175)

Investing activities:
Due from related entity (1,453) (1,291)

Purchases of fixed assets, net (7,517) (2,269)

Sales of investments, net 5.214 14.181

Net cash (used) provided by investing activities (3,756) 10,621

Financing activities:
Principal payments on long-term debt — (13,693)

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 900 —

Restricted donations 2.178 1.317

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 3.078 112.3761

Increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 1,663 (4,930)

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year 15.412 20.342

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year S 17.075 S 15.412
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NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Years Ended March 31, 2025 and 2024
(In thousands)

2025 2024
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Interest paid $ ^ S 361

Noncash investment and financing activities:
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for

new operating lease liabilities $ - S 20

Fixed asset purchases financed by accounts payable 122 -

$  122 S 20

Reconciliation of the combined statements of cash flows to
the combined statements of financial position:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,075 $ 15,249
Restricted cash - 163

$  17.075 !i; 15.412

See accompanying notes.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2025 and 2024
(In Thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Orsanization

New Hampshire Catholic Charities d/b/a Catholic Charities New Hampshire (the Organization) is a
nonprofit organization which provides health and social service programs to individuals throughout the
State of New Hampshire. As of March 31, 2025, the Organization owns and operates the following
wholly-owned agencies: six licensed rehabilitation and nursing centers, one assisted living facility, four
senior living communities, a food bank and a children's school, all of which are located in New
Hampshire. As further discussed in Note 16, CC Vose Farm Phase 1 GP, Inc., was formed in January
2024 and is 100% owned by the Organization. CC Vose Farm Phase 1 GP, Inc. is the sole General
Partner of Vose Farm Phase 1 Limited Partnership. CC Vose Farm Phase 1 GP, Inc., has a 0.01%
ownership interest in the Vose Farm Phase 1 Limited Partnership but oversees certain management and
operational aspects of the Vose Farm Phase 1 Limited Partnership subject to the terms set forth in the
limited partnership agreement. Assets, liabilities and related activity of CC Vose Farm Phase 1 GP, Inc.
were not material for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024.

The combined financial statements include the accounts of the social service activities of the

Organization and its wholly-owned agencies and funds: Mount Carmel, St. Vincent de Paul, St. Arm,
St. Francis, St. Teresa, and Warde Rehabilitation and Nursing Centers (collectively the Rehabilitation
and Nursing Centers); Warde Assisted Living; Bishop Bradley, Bishop Primeau and Bishop Gendron
Senior Living Communities and Searles Place at Warde (collectively the Senior Living Communities);
St. Charles School; the New Hampshire Food Bank (the Food Bank); and the associated donor-restricted
funds. Warde Rehabilitation and Nursing Center, Warde Assisted Living and Searles Place at Warde
are collectively referred to herein as Warde Health Center. All significant interagency balances and
transactions have been eliminated in the aceompanying combined financial statements.

The Food Bank's assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues and expenses are separately stated in the
combining information. Any revenue received from and expenses resulting from the capital campaign
initiated by the Organization on behalf of the Food Bank were considered fundraising revenue or
expense. The capital campaign funds were used to defray costs associated with the purchase and
renovation of a warehouse used by the Food Bank, land improvements to the property, and fixed
equipment. These assets are considered to be owned by the Home Office. The related expenses and
depreciation expense for these assets are included in the Home Office accounts. Included in the Food
Bank accounts is rent expense of $494 for 2025 and 2024 for the use of the facility, which has been
eliminated in the combined totals.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying combined financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(U.S. GAAP), the Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions
and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization.
These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and the Board of
Tmstees.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March31, 2025 and 2024
(In Thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies fContinuedl

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and grantors.
Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization, or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby
the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers certificates of deposit and other highly liquid debt instruments with a
maturity of three months or less from the date of purchase to be cash equivalents.

The Organization considers money market accounts and other highly liquid debt securities managed by
its investment advisors as investments and not as cash equivalents, since it is the Organization's intention
to invest these funds for long-term purposes.

The Organization customarily maintains amounts on deposit in various bank and brokerage accoimts
which, at times, may exceed the limit of federal deposit insurance coverage. The Organization has not
experienced any losses on such accounts.

Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable for which the unconditional right to payment exists are receivables if the
right to consideration is unconditional and only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. Accounts receivable at March 31,2025 and 2024 reflect the fact that any estimated
uncollectible amounts are generally considered implicit price concessions that are a direct reduction to
accounts receivable rather than allowance for doubtful accounts. Certain imcollectible amounts that are

not deemed to be price concessions may continue to be reported as bad debts in the accompanying
combined statements of activities. At March 31,2025 and 2024, estimated implicit price concessions of
$1,942 and $1,310, respectively, have been recorded as reductions to accounts receivable balances to
enable the Organization to record revenues and accounts receivable at the estimated amounts expected
to be collected. Patient accounts receivable totaled $5,172, $5,520 and $4,389 at March 31, 2025, 2024
and 2023, respectively.

A substantial portion (approximately 82% in 2025 and 84% in 2024) of accounts receivable arose from
the operations of the Rehabilitation and Nursing Centers, and are primarily due from the Federal
Government and the State of New Hampshire. The Organization does not generally require collateral
for the extension of credit.

Pledses. Contributions and Grants Receivable

Pledges receivable are recognized as revenue when the unconditional promise to give is made. Pledges
are recorded at the net present value of estimated future cash flows. The Organization estimates the
allowance for uncollectible pledges based on specific review, current economic conditions and historical
loss factors, if applicable. The Organization records other contributions receivable when there is
sufficient evidence in the form of verifiable documentation that an unconditional promise was received.
See Note 11.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31,2025 and 2024
(In Thousands)

L  Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies fContinuedl

The Organization receives grant funding from various federal, state, and local governments to provide a
variety of program services to the public based on specific requirements included in the agreements.
Such grants are nonreciprocal transactions and include conditions stipulated by the agencies and are,
therefore, accounted for as conditional contributions. Such grants are recognized as conditions are
satisfied, primarily as expenses are incurred. See Note 11.

Inventory

Inventory consists primarily of food and products which are purchased for resale by the Organization
and product which is donated. Inventory items are valued at the estimated average wholesale value of
one pound of donated product as outlined in the "Product Valuation Survey Methodology," prepared by
Feeding America, of which the Food Bank is a member. The Organization may provide for an allowance
for obsolescence based on specific review and historical loss factors. Management determined that no
allowance for inventory obsolescence was required at March 31, 2025 and 2024.

Fixed Assets

It is the Organization's policy to capitalize fixed assets over five hundred dollars. Lesser amounts are
charged to operations. Fixed assets are capitalized at cost if purchased or at their estimated fair value if
the assets are donated. Construction in process at March 31, 2025 and 2024 was $6,091 and $457,
respectively, and consisted primarily of amounts related to the Phase II construction of the affordable
housing project further discussed in Note 16, as well as $785 associated with the development of an
additional affordable housing project in Rochester, New Hampshire, for which the Organization serves
as both sponsor and developer.

The Organization provides for depreciation of its fixed assets on the straight-line method by charges to
expense in amounts estimated to recover the initial carrying value of the assets over their estimated
useful lives. Depreciation expense was $3,130 in 2025 and $3,027 in 2024.

Investments

Investments are carried at fair value in the accompanying combined statements of financial position. See
Note 12 for fair value measurement disclosures for investments. The Organization classifies its
investments as trading securities. Investment income (including realized and unrealized gains and losses
on investments, interest and dividends) is included as a component of the change in net assets without
donor restrictions unless the income is restricted by donor or law.

The Organization invests in various investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to various
risks such as interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain
investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment securities
will occur in the near-term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the
accompanying combined financial statements.
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2025 and 2024
(In Thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies IContinuedl

Bond Issuance Costs

Bond issuance costs incurred to obtain financing for capital projects are amortized to interest expense
using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method, over the life of the
bonds. See Note 10.

Functional Allocation ofExpenses

The Home Office allocates employee salaries to various salary expense classifications. This allocation
is based on management estimates of the percentage of time each individual devotes to each type of
service. The Home Office also allocates administrative expenses to the various programs based on
estimates made by management of the Organization.

Patient and Resident Services Revenue

Patient and resident services revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Organization expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient and resident care. These
amounts are due from patients, third-party payors and others. Revenue is recognized as the performance
obligations are satisfied. The Organization determined that the services provided under the contracts
with patients and residents are considered one performance obligation. Revenue is recognized when the
performance obligation is satisfied by transferring control of the service provided to the resident or
patient, which is generally when services are provided over the duration of care. The Organization also
provides certain ancillary services which are treated as a separate performance obligation satisfied at a
point in time, if and when those services are rendered.

Patient and resident services revenue includes income earned from the care of private paying residents
and residents covered under the Federal Medicare Program or the State of New Hampshire Medicaid
Program as reimbursement of costs incurred in the care of residents in the Rehabilitation and Nursing
Centers. The Federal Government and the State of New Hampshire set the rate of reimbursement for
the care of residents eligible under the Medicare and Medicaid Programs, respectively. These rates may
be less than the actual costs incurred by the facilities to care for the residents. Approximately 64% and
66% of patient and resident services revenue was derived from the Medicaid and Medicare programs for
the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. Total patient and resident services revenue of
the Rehabilitation and Nursing Centers was $49,816 in 2025 and $47,371 in 2024.

For the skilled nursing facility (SNF) services provided, the Organization is paid a predetermined fixed
daily rate for private pay residents. The Organization is also paid fixed daily rates from Medicare and
Medicaid. Rate adjustments from Medicare or Medicaid are recorded when known (without regard to
when the assessment is paid or withheld), and subsequent adjustments to these amounts are recorded in
revenues when known. Billings under certain of these programs are subject to audit and possible
retroactive adjustment, and related revenue is recorded at the amount the Organization ultimately expects
to receive, which is inclusive of the estimated retroactive adjustments or refunds, if any, under
reimbursement programs. Retroactive adjustments are recorded on an estimated basis in the period the
related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods or as final settlements are determined. Such
adjustments were not significant for 2025 and 2024.
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March3I, 2025 and 2024
(In Thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The State of New Hampshire imposes a 5.5% assessment on the patient and resident services revenue of
nursing facilities as a means to potentially increase Medicaid reimbursement rates through quality
incentive revenue payments. The accompanying combined statements of activities include the following
amounts related to this legislation:

2025 2024

Quality incentive revenue (included in patient and resident
services revenue) $ 4,850 $ 5,239

Nursing facility assessment tax (included in rehabilitation
and nursing centers expenses) ('2.633) (2.530)

Net effect on combined statements of activities S 2.217 S 2.709

At March 31, 2025 and 2024, the Rehabilitation and Nursing Centers were due $2,007 and $2,122,
respectively, in quality incentive revenue and owed $667 and $710, respectively, for nursing facility
assessment tax. These amounts are included in accounts receivable and accounts payable, respectively,
in the accompanying combined statements of financial position.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates may change
by a material amount in the near term.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from federal and state income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been recorded in the accompanying
combined financial statements. Management evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded
the Organization has maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant unrelated business
income and has taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to the accompanying combined
financial statements.

Donated Goods and Services

Donated goods and services are reported as support at estimated fair value at the date of the gift. During
the years ended March 31,2025 and 2024, the Food Bank received approximately $14,906 and $22,410,
respectively, of donated product. The approximate average wholesale value of one pound of donated
product at the national level, which was determined to be $1.97 in 2025 and $1.93 in 2024, was based on
a study performed by Feeding America, of which the Food Bank is a member.

Food donations are reported as a program expense when the food is distributed to local distribution
centers and needy individuals. During the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, the Food Bank
distributed approximately $14,522 and $21,644, respectively, of donated product.
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2025 and 2024
(In Thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (ContinuedI

Exclusive of the donated food, other in-kind donations and services for which fair value can be validated
and requiring special expertise have been reflected in the accompanying combined financial statements
at their estimated fair value. For the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, the Organization received
approximately $592 and $184 in other donated goods and services, respectively.

In addition, a number of individuals and organizations have volunteered their serviees to the
Organization. For those services that do not require special expertise, the estimated value of such
donated services has not been recorded in the accompanying combined financial statements.

All donated services and assets were utilized by the Organization's programs and supporting services.
There were no donor-imposed restrictions associated with the donated services and assets.

Restricted Support

The Organization reports gifts of cash, fixed assets and other assets as donor-restricted support if they
are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets
with restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions in the combined statements of

activities as net assets released from restrictions. In the absence of donor-imposed stipulations regarding
how long donated fixed assets must be used, the Organization has adopted a policy of reporting the
expiration of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.
The Organization has adopted a policy of treating donor-restricted donations, whose restrictions are met
within the same year, as donations within net assets without donor restrictions in the accompanying
combined statements of activities.

Net assets with donor restrictions were available for the following purposes at March 31:

2025 2024

Subject to expenditure for specified purposes:
Educational scholarships $ 388 $ 364
Benefit of children 1,341 942
Benefit of elderly 3,283 3,073
Food bank 1,865 2,509
Other 1.556 2.424

$8.433 $9.312

Restricted endowment:

Benefit of elderly $ 538 $ 540
Benefit of children 692 696

Charitable programs 1,128 1,089
Other 48 45

$2.406 $2.370

19



NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES
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March 31,2025 and 2024

(In Thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies IContinued)

Net assets were released from donor restrictions as follows for the years ended March 31:

2025 2024

Satisfaction of donor restrictions $ 3,126 $ 2,5 87
Release of appropriated endowment funds 345 140

S 3.471 $ 2.727

In June 2022, the Food Bank was notified that it had been awarded approximately $880 in grant funding
under the Local Food Purchase Assistance Cooperative Agreement Program (the Program). Under the
Program, the NH Department of Agriculture, Markets and Food (NHDAMF) will collaborate with the
Food Bank and its partners on the expansion of NH Feeding NH. NHDAMF will subaward procurement
activities for this grant to the Food Bank, which will use its NH Feeding NH program to distribute funds
to its network of more than 400 partner agencies. The Program's funding is expected to be expended
over a multi-year period and the funding is received on a reimbursement basis. In December 2023, the
Food Bank was awarded approximately S9I9 in additional funding under the Program through May 31,
2025. The Food Bank expended and recognized approximately $906 and $378 in funding related to this
award during fiscal years 2025 and 2024, respectively!

During fiscal year 2023, the Food Bank was notified that it had been earmarked for approximately $947
in federal grant funding under the Administration for Children and Families Congressionally Directed
Community Projects to be used for the Food Bank's mobile pantry program. The Food Bank formally
applied for the earmarked funds in fiscal year 2024 and the funding is received on a reimbursement basis.
The Food Bank expended and recognized approximately $620 and $327 in funding related to the award
during fiscal years 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Use ofEstimates

The preparation of combined financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the combined financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ fi-om
those estimates.

Annual Camvaisn

The Organization solicits donations from the general public during its annual campaign. Pledges from
the annual campaign that remain uncollected as of the end of the year are recorded in the accompanying
combined financial statements at their estimated net collectible amounts.

Board Designated Net Assets

The Organization's Board of Trustees has designated certain assets be held and used for future long-term
capital expenditures of the Rehabilitation and Nursing Centers and the Senior Living Communities.
These assets totaled $6,593 and $6,169 at March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and are included in
investments in the accompanying combined statements of financial position.
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2025 and 2024
(In Thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued!

Advertisins Costs

It is the Organization's policy to expense advertising and promotion costs as incurred. Advertising and
promotion costs were $246 and $197 in 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Organization determines if a contract meets the definition of a lease. A
lease is a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to control the use of identified property,
plant, or equipment (an identified asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The
Organization determines if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time. The Organization assesses throughout the period of use whether the Organization has
both of the following: (1) the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of
the identified asset and (2) the right to direct the use of the identified asset. This determination is
reassessed if the terms of the contract are changed. Leases are classified as operating or finance leases
based on the terms of the lease agreement and certain characteristics of the identified asset. Right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are recognized at lease commencement date based on the present value of
the minimum future lease payments.

The Organization leases office space for its headquarters and land for its warehouse, as well as various
vehicles and other warehouse space under noncancellable operating leases. The Organization's policy is
to not record leases with an original term of twelve months or less on its combined statement of financial
position. The Organization recognizes lease expense for these short-term leases on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Certain lease agreements may include rental payments that are adjusted periodically for inflation or other
variables. In addition to rent, the leases may require the Organization to pay additional amounts for
taxes, insurance, maintenance and other expenses, which are generally referred to as non-lease
components. Except for when the costs are fixed, such adjustments to rental payments and variable non-
lease components are treated as variable lease payments and recognized in the period in which the
obligation for these payments was incurred. Variable lease components and variable non-lease
components are not measured as part of the right-of-use asset and liability. Only when lease components
and their associated non-lease components are fixed are they accounted for as a single lease component
and recognized as part of a right-of-use asset and liability. Total contract consideration is allocated to
the combined fixed lease and nonlease component. This policy election applies consistently to all asset
classes under lease agreements.
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1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Organization's leases may contain clauses for renewal at the Organization's option with renewal
terms. Payments to be made in option periods are recognized as part of the right-of-use lease assets and
lease liabilities when it is reasonably certain that the option to extend the lease will be exercised or the
option to terminate the lease will not be exercised, or is not at the Organization's option. The
Organization determines whether the reasonably certain threshold is met by considering contract, asset,
market, and entity based factors.

The Organization's lease agreements do not contain any significant residual value guarantees or material
restrictive covenants imposed by the leases. Sublease activity is not material to the combined financial
statements.

Reclassifications

Certain 2024 amounts have been reclassified to permit comparison with the 2025 combined financial
statements presentation format.

Subsequent Events

Events occurring after the combined statement of financial position date are evaluated by management
to determine whether such events should be recognized or disclosed in the combined financial
statements. Management has evaluated subsequent events through July 17, 2025, which is the date the
combined financial statements were available to be issued.

On June 4, 2025, the Governor and Executive Council (G&C) authorized the approval of a Drinking
Water State Revolving Fund loan agreement with the Organization in an amount not to exceed $1,414
to finance water system improvements at Warde Health Center. The G&C further authorized a grant to
the Organization in an amount not to exceed $471 for drinking water improvements. The interest rate
on the loan is 1% until the earlier of the (i) the date of substantial completion of the improvements, as
defined or (ii) December 1, 2027. Commencing on the Interest Rate Change Date, as defined, the
interest shall be charged at the lower of (A) the annual rate of 3.072% or (B) 80% of the established
market rate, as defined. Commencing on the first day of the sixth month after the Interest Rate Change
Date, interest only shall be paid in six consecutive monthly installments on the first day of each month.
Commencing with the first day of the twelfth month after the Interest Rate Change Date, the principal
and interest of the loan shall be repaid in 240 consecutive equal monthly installments of principal and
interest, with the option to capitalize interest. The loan is secured by all the Organization's goods,
machinery, equipment, including without limitation, all water storage, collection, distribution and
treatment equipment, furnishings and fixtures and tangible personal property located at Warde Health
Center, as well as a collateral assignment of leases and rents. The Organization is eligible for forgiveness
of a portion of the principal of the loan. Under the agreement, $943 of the loan is eligible for 100%
principal forgiveness and $471 of the loan is eligible for 20% principal forgiveness.

22



NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31,2025 and 2024
(In Thousands)

2. Liquidity and Availability

At March 31, 2025, the Organization has $23,271 of financial assets available within one year of the
combined statement of financial position date to meet cash needs for general expenditure. These
financial assets consist of cash without restrictions of $14,191, accounts receivable of $6,336 and due
from related entity of $2,744. None of these financial assets are subject to donor or other contractual
restrictions that make them unavailable for general expenditure within one year of the statement of
financial position date. The Organization's goal is generally to structure its financial assets to be
available as its general expenditures, liabilities and other obligations become due. As part of its liquidity
plan, excess cash is invested in higher yield cash and cash equivalents, including time deposit accounts.
In addition, as previously discussed, the Organization has board designated net assets without donor
restrictions totaling $6,593 at March 31, 2025 that may be utilized to help fund both operational needs
and/or capital projects, as necessary.

The Organization's endowment funds consist of donor-restricted endowments. Income from donor-
restricted endowments is restricted for specific purposes and is not available for general expenditures.

3. Annual Campaign

The annual campaign to raise fimds by voluntary contributions from individuals and businesses
throughout the State of New Hampshire begins in April of each year. For the years ended March 31,
2025 and 2024, recorded contributions of $3,997 and $3,526, respectively, included amounts collected
by parishes of the Diocese of Manchester, New Hampshire (the Diocese) on behalf of the Organization.
Starting in fiscal year 2023, the parish appeal portion of the annual campaign changed, which could
impact the amount of funds raised by the Organization going forward.

4. Investments

The Organization and its wholly-owned agencies deposit money into the Catholic Charities Investment
Fund (the Fund). The Fund pools all of the money received and invests in various securities in
accordance with the Organization's investment policy. The investment income (loss) of the Fund is
allocated to each agency based on their percentage share of the total Fund. The Food Bank also maintains
its own investment fund.

The investments reported in the accompanying combined statements of financial position include the
securities held in the Fund and by the Food Bank, in addition to other investments held by the
Organization, including investments held in the donor-restricted funds.

Investments that individually exceed 10% of total investments include the State Street Russell 3000
Screened Index Non-Lending Common Trust Fund and the Fidelity Investments Money Market
Government Portfolio at March 31,2025. Investments that individually exceed 10% of total investments
include the State Street Russell 3000 Screened Index Non-Lending Common Trust Fund at March 31,
2024.
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5. Related Party Transactions

The Organization pays premiums for property, liability and automobile insurance to the Diocese, an
organization related through common governance. The Diocese is self-insured up to a maximum amount
per occurrence and has secured insurance to provide for losses over this amount. The premiums are
expensed by the Organization over the term of coverage. Total property, liability and automobile
insurance billed by the Diocese was $1,262 and $1,073 in 2025 and 2024, respectively.

The Organization's professional liability insurance provides coverage on a claims-made basis. As of
March 31, 2025, there were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, in the opinion of
management, will be settled for amounts in excess of insurance coverage nor are there any unasserted
claims or incidents for which a loss accrual has not been made. The Organization intends to continue
this coverage through the Diocese and anticipates that such coverage will remain available.

The Organization has $2,744 and $1,291 due from a related entity at March 31, 2025 and 2024,
respectively, as further discussed in Note 16.

6. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a contributory defined contribution retirement plan. The Organization's eligible
employees may participate in this plan by deferring a portion of their pay as plan contributions. The
Organization also makes contributions to the plan equal to 3% of the eligible employees' gross wages.
The total expense for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 was $841 and $746, respectively.

7. Leases

Overatins Leases

The Organization leases office space for its headquarters in Manchester, New Hampshire under a lease
agreement with monthly payments ranging from approximately $18 to $28 through November 2041.
The Organization leases land for a warehouse in Manchester, New Hampshire under a lease agreement
with monthly payments of approximately $2 per month through December 2083. The Organization also
leases various office space under tenant at will arrangements.

The Organization also leases various vehicles and other warehouse space under noncancellable operating
leases. The monthly payments on the vehicles were approximately $2 per vehicle during 2024 and expire
at various dates through June 2029. The monthly payments on the other warehouse space total
approximately $1 through December 2025.
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7, Leases IContinued)

Right-of-use lease assets and lease liabilities are reported in the Organization's combined statements of
financial position as follows;

2025 2024

Operating lease right-of-use assets $4,280

Current portion of operating lease liabilities
Operating lease liabilities, less current portion

$  182

4,026

$  192

4,209

Total operating lease liabilities S 4.208 $4.401

The components of operating lease costs for fiscal years 2025 and 2024 were as follows:

2025 2024

Operating lease costs
Short-term lease costs

$412

77

$425

85

Total lease costs $489 $510

Supplemental cash flow information is as follows for the years ended March 31:

2025 2024

Operating lease - operating cash flows (fixed payments)
Operating leases - right-of-use assets obtained in exchange

for new operating lease liabilities

$364 $  304

20

Lease Term and Discount Rate

Lease terms and discount rates are as follows as of March 31:

2025 2024

Weighted-average remaining lease term years
Weighted-average discount rate

21.86

4.0%

22.33

4.0%

At the lease commencement date, the discount rate implicit in the lease is used to discount the lease
liability if readily determinable. If not readily determinable or leases do not contain an implicit rate, the
Organization uses its incremental borrowing rate.
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7. Leases fContinued)

As of March 31, 2025, maturities of operating lease liabilities for each of the following five years and a
total thereafter were as follows:

2026 $ 348

2027 325

2028 333

2029 341

2030 296

Thereafter 4.897

Total minimum future lease payments 6,540

Less imputed interest (2.332)

Total lease liabilities S 4.208

8. Compensated Absences

It is the Organization's policy to accrue for compensated absences as time is earned based upon length
of employment. The maximum accrual for most employees at the Organization is capped at one year of
accrued and unused compensated absences. An accrual for compensated absences, inclusive of vacation,
earned but not taken, of $1,427 in 2025 and $1,307 in 2024 has been included in the accompanying
combined statements of financial position.

9. Other Assets Held for Restrictive Purposes

Other assets held for restricted purposes are to be held in perpetuity and consisted of the following at
March 31:

2025 2024

Cash - operating account $ 394 $ 3 94
Certificate of deposit - 2

$394 $396
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10. Long-Term Debt

In August 2015, the New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority (NHHEFA) issued
SI5.5 million of bonds which were purchased by a local bank in a private placement. The proceeds of
the bonds were then loaned to the Organization. The loan was collateralized by a security interest in all
of the business assets of the Organization, as defined, which included accounts receivable, inventory,
equipment, furniture and gross receipts. The loan was also collateralized by a mortgage lien on the land
and buildings of Mt. Carmel, St. Aim and St. Teresa. The loan carried an initial fixed interest rate of
2.93% through August I, 2030 and required monthly installments for principal and interest based on a
25-year amortization period. The maturity date of the bond was August 1, 2045, however, the bond
provided for a tender date on August 1, 2030. On May I, 2021, the Organization reissued the 2015
NHHEFA Bonds at the amounts outstanding as of that date totaling $12,181. The interest rate was reset
effective May 14, 2021 to 2.21%, with an interest reset date and tender date of May 14, 2026. At the
tender date, the bank that purchased the bond could have renegotiated the interest rate or other terms of
the bond. The bank could have waived the mandatory tender, at its discretion, if the Organization had
submitted a request not earlier than two years prior to the mandatory tender date. The bond could be
repaid at any time provided the Organization gave the bank 30 days' notice. In March 2024, the
Organization repaid the bonds in full at the then outstanding principal balance of $10,337, plus accrued
interest. No amounts remained outstanding as of March 31,2024. The remaining debt issuance costs at
the time of repayment totaling approximately $28 were written off during 2024.

In October 2018, NHHEFA issued revenue bonds not to exceed $3.1 million, which were purchased by
a local bank in a private placement. The bonds were structured as draw-down bonds and the final draw
was to be made no later than April 1, 2020. The bonds were issued to assist the Organization in the
funding of certain construction projects at Warde Health Center, including the construction of twenty-
one independent living units, and to pay certain costs of issuing the bonds. The bonds were collateralized
by a security interest in substantially all of the business assets of the Organization, as defined, which
included accounts receivable, inventory, equipment, furniture and gross receipts. The bonds were also
collateralized by a mortgage lien on the land and buildings of St. Vincent de Paul. The bonds carried an
initial fixed interest rate of 4.11% through October 1, 2028 and required monthly installments for
principal and interest beginning April 1, 2020. The maturity date of the bonds was October 1, 2048,
however, there was an initial mandatory tender date on October 1, 2028. On May 1, 2021, the
Organization reissued the 2018 NHHEFA Bonds at the amounts outstanding as of that date totaling
$3,302. The interest rate was reset effective May 14,2021 to 2.20% through an initial mandatory tender
date of May 14,2026. At the tender date, the bank that purchased the bond could have renegotiated the
interest rate or other terms of the bonds. The bank could have waived the mandatory tender, at its
discretion, if the Organization had submitted a request not earlier than two years prior to the mandatory
tender date. The bond could be repaid at any time provided that the Organization gave the bank 30 days'
notice. In March 2024, the Organization repaid the bonds in full at the then outstanding principal balance
of $2,853, plus accrued interest. No amounts remained outstanding as of March 31, 2024. The
remaining debt issuance costs at the time of repayment totaling approximately $12 were written off
during 2024.
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10. Long-Term Debt IContinuedl

In January 2019, the Organization entered into a loan agreement with the Roman Catholic Bishop of
Manchester (RCBM). As discussed above, the Organization had an ongoing construction project at
Warde Health Center, which included providing new residences for retired Roman Catholic priests.
RCBM has agreed to assist in funding this renovation by lending the Organization up to $1.5 million.
The term of the loan is for 20 years, with the final payment due and payable on December 31,2038. The
interest rate is fixed at 3%. Every five years during the term of the loan, one-quarter of the loan principal
balance will be forgiven by RCBM. If, at any future date, the Organization ceases to operate the
residences for retired priests at Warde Health Center during the term of the loan, the then outstanding
principal and interest balance will become immediately due and payable to RCBM. As of March 31,
2025 and 2024, the outstanding note payable to RCBM is $1,125, which is reflected within long-term
debt in the accompanying combined statements of financial position. During 2024, one quarter of the
principal balance of the outstanding loan balance totaling $375 was forgiven by the Diocese in
accordance with the loan agreement. The Organization recognized $375 as revenue related to the
forgiveness in the accompanying 2024 combined statement of activities. No amounts were forgiven in
2025.

In October 2024, the Organization entered into an Affordable Housing Gap Loan Pilot Program
Agreement with Catholic Charities USA totaling $900. The purpose of this loan is to fund a portion of
the $2 million housing project further discussed in Note 16. The loan accrues interest at a rate of 2%
and the full amount of the loan plus accrued interest must be repaid no later than the fifth anniversary of
the funding date (September 2029). If the full amount of the loan and accrued interest is paid before the
third anniversary of the funding date (September 2027), the Organization will be entitled to a reduced
rate of 1.5%. The loan is unsecured.

II. Pledges. Contributions and Grants Receivable

Pledges, contributions and grants receivable at March 31,2025 and 2024 include unconditional promises
to give in subsequent years. Management has evaluated the outstanding pledges based on the history of
the relationship with the donor and the status of the pledges and has deemed all pledges to be collectible.
All pledges and contributions receivable are classified as current in the accompanying combined
statements of financial position as of March 31, 2025 and 2024 and totaled $105 and $396, respectively.
Included within pledges, contributions and grants receivable on the accompanying combined statements
of financial position are grants receivable totaling $251 and $357 at March 31, 2025 and 2024,
respectively.

12. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received upon sale of an asset or paid upon transfer of a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date and in the principal or most
advantageous market for that asset or liability. The fair value should be calculated based on assumptions
that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, not on assumptions specific to the
entity. In addition, the fair value of liabilities should include consideration of nonperformance risk
including the Organization's own credit risk.
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12. Fair Value Measurements fContinuedl

The fair value hierarchy for valuation inputs prioritizes the inputs into three levels based on the extent
to which inputs used in measuring fair value are observable in the market. Each fair value measurement
is reported in one of the three levels which is determined by the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement in its entirety. These levels are:

Level 1 - inputs are based upon unadjusted quoted prices for identical instruments traded in active
markets.

Level 2 - inputs are based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices
for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, and model-based valuation
techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market or can be corroborated
by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 - inputs are generally unobservable and typically reflect management's estimates of
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. The fair values are
therefore determined using model-based techniques that include option pricing models, discounted
cash flow models, and similar techniques.

For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, the application of valuation techniques applied to
similar assets has been consistent. The following presents the balances of assets measured at fair value
on a recurring basis at March 31:

2025

Cash and cash equivalents
Common equity securities
Equity mutual funds
International equity mutual funds
Fixed income mutual funds

Exchange traded funds - other
Exchange traded funds - equity

Investments measured at fair value

Investments measured at net asset value

Total investments

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

$ 6,601
20

11,470
5,347

11,635

2,188

6.366

$  - $ -

$43.627 S - $ -

$ 6,601
20

11,470

5,347

11,635

2,188

6.366

43,627

13.960

$57.587
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12. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

2024

Cash and cash equivalents
Common equity securities
U.S. Government and agency obligations
Equity mutual flmds
International equity mutual funds
Fixed income mutual funds

Exchange traded funds - other
Exchange traded funds - equity

Investments measured at fair value

Investments measured at net asset value

Total investments

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

$ 2,336
20

14,549

9,522

8,904

2,381

6.766

$ -

1,336

S44.478 S1.336 $ -

Total

$ 2,336
20

1,336

14,549
9,522

8,904

2,381

6.766

45,814

12.869

SIMM

Investments measured at net asset value (NAV) include an equity mutual fund at March 31, 2025 and
2024 and a limited partnership managed by Catholic Investment Services, Inc. at March 31, 2025. The
NAV is used as a practical expedient to estimate fair value and is generally determined using audited
financial statements of the fund and/or recently settled transactions. The equity mutual fund invests with
the objective of approximating, before expenses, the Russell 3000 Index, over the long term and
implements a screen of certain social and environmental criteria. The limited partnership was organized
to operate as a private investment partnership designed for institutions, endowed charitable organizations
and certain other Roman Catholic nonprofit organizations under an investment program designed to
reflect the teachings of the Roman Catholic Church.

The following table summarizes investments for which fair value is measured using the NAV per share
practical expedient as of March 31:

2025

Equity market fund
Limited partnership

2024

Equity market fund

Fair

Value

$12,569
1,391

$12,869

Unfunded Redemp-
Commit- tion

ment Freauencv

$ - Daily
-  Monthly

$- Daily

Redemption
Notice Period

N/A

95 days*

N/A

* Limited to a 50% withdrawal as of the last day of any calendar month. Not more than 50% can be
withdrawn in a rolling three-month period. During the first 12 months of investment, 180 calendar days'
notice is required for substantial withdrawals (as defined under the limited partnership).
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13. Donor-Designated Endowments

The Board of Trustees has determined that the majority of the Organization's net assets with donor
restrictions restricted in perpetuity meets the definition of endowment funds under the Uniform Prudent
Management ofInstitutional Funds Act of2006 (UPMIFA). The Organization's endowments consist of
six individual funds established for a variety of purposes. The net assets associated with these
endowment funds are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions.

The Board of Trustees of the Organization has interpreted the State Prudent Management of Institutional
Funds Act (SPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the date of
the donor-restricted endowment fimds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of
this interpretation, the Organization retains in perpetuity (a) the original value of gifts donated to the
endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the endowment, and (c) accumulations to the
endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the
accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that
is not retained in perpetuity is subject to expenditure by the Organization in a manner consistent with the
standard of prudence prescribed by SPMIFA. In accordance with SPMIFA, the Organization considers
the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted
endowment funds: (l)the duration and preservation of the various funds, (2) the purposes of the
donor-restricted endowment funds, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the possible effect of inflation
and deflation, (5) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments, (6) other
resources of the Organization, and (7) the Organization's investment policies.

All of the Organization's endowment funds are donor-restricted. The Organization does not have any
board-designated or endowments without donor restrictions at March 31, 2025 and 2024. The
endowment net assets as of March 31, 2025 and 2024 are as follows:

With Donor

Restrictions
2025

Original donor-restricted gift amount and amounts
required to be maintained in perpetuity by donor $ 2,061

Accumulated investment gains 345

2024

Original donor-restricted gift amount and amounts
required to be maintained in perpetuity by donor $ 2,061

Accumulated investment gains 309
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13. Donor-Designated Endowments IContinuedl

The changes in endowment net assets for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 are as follows:

With Donor

Restrictions

Endowment net assets, March 31, 2023 $ 2,228

Investment income, net 282
Amounts appropriated for expenditure 1140)

Endowment net assets, March 31, 2024 2,370

Investment income, net 172
Amounts appropriated for expenditure (136)

Endowment net assets, March 31, 2025 S 2.406

Investment Return Objectives, Risk Parameters and Strategies: The Organization has adopted, with the
approval of the Board of Trustees, investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt
to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment funds while also
maintaining the purchasing power of those endowment assets over the long-term. Accordingly, the
investment process seeks to achieve an after-cost total real rate of return, including investment income
as well as capital appreciation, which exceeds the annual distribution with acceptable levels of risk.
Endowment assets are invested in a well-diversified asset mix, consisting mainly of mutual funds that
are intended to result in a consistent inflation-protected rate of return that has sufficient liquidity to make
an annual distribution not exceeding 7%, while growing the funds if possible. Therefore, the
Organization expects its endowment assets, over time, to produce a rate of return sufficient to provide
for the annual distribution. Investment risk is measured in terms of the total endowment funds.

Investment assets, and allocation between asset classes and strategies, are managed so the fund is not
exposed to unacceptable levels of risk.

Spending Policy: The Organization has a policy of appropriating for distribution each year an amount
not to exceed 7% of its endowment fund's average fair value of the prior 12 quarters through the fiscal
year end preceding the fiscal year in which the distribution is planned. In establishing this policy, the
Organization considered the long-term expected retum on its investment assets, the nature and duration
of the individual endowment funds, some of which must be maintained in perpetuity because of donor-
restrictions, the possible effects of inflation, and the provisions of SPMIFA. The Organization has
interpreted SPMIFA to permit spending from underwater endowments in accordance with prudent
measures required by law. No such spending occurred in 2025 and 2024.

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level that the donor requires the Organization to retain as a fund of permanent
duration. Deficiencies of this nature are reported in net assets with donor restrictions. At March 31,
2025 and 2024, there were no deficiencies in individual donor-restricted endowment funds.
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14. Major Suppliers

As a member of Feeding America, the national network of food banks, the Food Bank gains access to
otherwise unattainable food donations and potential funding. The Food Bank is able to use the national
resources of Feeding America to negotiate wholesale food prices and supply their agencies with high-
value items at a substantial discount. Partner retailers who only donate to Feeding America members
made food donations to the Food Bank totaling approximately $8,198 and $12,139 for the years ended
March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. These donations represented approximately 55% and 54% of
the total donated food received for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

15. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

Various legal claims, generally incidental to the conduct of normal business, are pending or have been
threatened against the Organization. The Organization intends to defend vigorously against these claims.
While ultimate liability, if any, arising from any such claim is presently indeterminable, it is
management's opinion that the ultimate resolution of these claims will not have a material adverse effect
on the financial condition of the Organization.

Employee Service Agreement

Effective Febmary 1, 2025, the Organization entered into an employee service agreement with Catholic
Medical Center (CMC). Under the terms of the agreement, the Organization became the legal employer
of CMC personnel assigned to the Healthcare for the Homeless, Poisson Dental, and Doorway of Greater
Manchester programs. The Organization provides compensation and benefits to these employees
consistent with those provided to its own staff and provides the employees back to CMC. CMC
reimburses the Organization for the full cost of salaries, benefits and taxes incurred, plus a 10%
administrative service fee. The agreement is being accounted for as a service agreement and terminated
on June 30, 2025 for the Doorway of Greater Manchester program and continues for the Healthcare for
the Homeless and Poisson Dental programs until the Organization either terminates the agreement or
acquires the programs.

16. Affordable Housing Proiect

In March 2023, the Organization entered into an option agreement to purchase a certain parcel of land
to constmct an affordable housing project. The purchase price for the property was $2.8 million. On
March 1,2024, the Organization exercised the purchase option, and in fiscal year 2025, the Organization
closed on the land purchase at the $2.8 million purchase price.
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16. Affordable Housing Project (Continued)

Fose Farm Phase 1 Limited Partnership

Vose Farm Phase I Limited Partnership (the Partnership) was formed in January 2024 as a limited
partnership under the laws of the State of New Hampshire. The Partnership's purpose is to acquire, own,
develop, construct and/or rehabilitate, lease, manage, and operate Phase I of an apartment complex to
be constructed and located at 10 and 12 Vose Farm Road in Peterborough, New Hampshire, comprised
of 64 residential apartments benefiting low to moderate-income households (the Project). The Project
is expected to be operational in 2026. The Partnership's equity was contributed by its General Partner,
CC Vose Farm Phase I GP, Inc., of which the Organization is the sole owner, and Housing New England
Fund VI, a limited partner and unrelated party. The Partnership agreement provides for the allocation
of profits and losses to the partners, proportionate to the equity contributed, as follows:

General Partner, CC Vose Farm Phase I GP, Inc. (wholly-owned by the Organization) 0.01%
Limited Partner, Housing New England Fund VI (an unrelated party) 99.99%

Capital Contributions

In 2024, the Organization, as the then sole owner of the General Partner, CC Vose Farm Phase I GP,
Inc., made an insignificant capital contribution in order to obtain its 0.01% interest.

Deferred Developer Fee

On August 29 2024, the Organization entered into a Development Services Agreement for the Project,
in which the Organization will earn up to $2,670 as a development fee for its services in connection with
the construction and development of the Project. Under the Development Services Agreement, SI50
was earned and recognized as other revenue by the Organization in developer fees in the accompanying
2025 combined statement of activities. The balance of the development fee will be earned on the date
that the construction and development of the Project is substantially complete, and all dwelling units
have been completed and are placed in service, with all balances to be paid prior to December 31, 2041.

Sponsor Loan and Terms

On September 12,2024, in order to provide additional funding to the Partnership for upcoming site work
and construction costs, the Organization entered into a $2.0 million loan agreement with the Partnership.
This loan bears interest at the rate of 0% and, at March 31,2025, $73 had been drawn on the loan by the
Partnership. If not paid earlier, all outstanding principal and interest accrued must be repaid to the
Organization on June 30, 2054. Payments of principal and interest are to be made to the extent of
available cash flow, as defined in the agreement. If repayment is not made within thirty days of the
maturity date, or if any payment due is not paid within thirty days of the due date, then interest will be
payable on any unpaid sum at the rate of 12% per annum, compounded annually, until such amount is
paid, or another means of payment is arranged. The note receivable is recorded in other long-term assets
in the accompanying 2025 combined statement of financial position.
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16. Affordable Housing Project (Continued)

Reimbursement Asreements

On September 12,2024, the Organization entered into a Reimbursement Agreement with the Partnership
to reimburse the Organization for all predevelopment expenses incurred by the Project that were paid by
the Organization. The Partnership acknowledged and agreed that the Partnership is solely responsible
to pay all project expenses not later than the date of the closing of the Partnership's construction loan for
the Project, which was September 12, 2024. At March 31, 2025 and 2024, the Organization was owed
$2,744 and $1,291, respectively, by the Partnership, which amount is recorded within due from related
entity in the accompanying combined statements of financial position.

Further, the Organization will be paid certain amounts under a Partnership Administration Agreement,
dated as of August 29, 2024 between the Organization and the Partnership, whereby the Organization
will provide various administrative services in exchange for fees of approximately $5 per year beginning
in 2026, increasing 3% annually beginning January 1, 2027. The administration fee is payable solely if
cash flow is available and otherwise the unpaid portion is accrued and payable on a cumulative basis in
the first year in which there are sufficient cash flows. No amounts were paid under this agreement in
2025.

Risht ofRefusal and Option Agreement

Through a Right of Refusal and Option Agreement dated August 29, 2024, the Partnership granted to
the Organization certain rights of first refusal and options to purchase the Project, which, if elected,
would include the 99.99% interest in the Project held by Housing New England Fund VI. As a result,
the Organization has been granted an irrevocable, successive, and exclusive right of refusal to purchase
the Project. Such right is exercisable for a period of 36 months beginning upon expiration of an initial
15-year compliance period, and continuing until the Partnership otherwise sells the Project.

Housing New England VI has the option to give written notice to CC Vose Farm Phase 1 GP, Inc., at
any time following the end of the Credit Period, as defined, to require CC Vose Farm Phase 1 GP, Inc.,
to purchase the interest of Housing New England VI for a price equal to the sum of: (i) $100, (ii) the
amount of federal, state or local tax liability required to be paid (including, without limitation, any real
estate transfer or franchise taxes), (iii) any costs incurred by housing New England Fund VI in
connection with the transfer of its interest and (iv) all amounts then due and owing to Housing New
England Fund VI or its affiliates under the agreement. Upon receipt of such written notice of the put
option, CC Vose Farm Phase 1 GP, Inc. shall purchase such interest and make all payments required
within 30 days. At the date of these combined financial statements, the put option was not eligible to be
exercised by Housing New England Fund VI.
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16. Affordable Housing Project (Continued)

Guaranty A sreement

On August 29, 2024, the Organization unconditionally guaranteed due payment, performance, and
fulfillment of certain obligations of the Partnership and CC Vose Farm Phase 1 GP, Inc. The
Organization's liability is generally limited and shall not exceed $517 in the aggregate, and the guaranty
terminates upon the later of the 60* month anniversary of the stabilization date, as defined, and the date
that the Partnership has achieved stabilized occupancy for five consecutive calendar years. However,
should an operating deficit arise before the latest of permanent mortgage commencement or cost
certification, as defined in the agreement, or the date the Project achieves 100% occupancy, then the
Organization's obligation to advance funds to pay operating deficits shall be unlimited. At the date of
these combined financial statements, no events or conditions have occurred that would trigger the
Organization's performance under the guaranty agreement.

Phase II

Phase II of the affordable housing project at the 10 and 12 Vose Farm property will include an additional
32 units. Phase II is a privately-funded and constructed project by the Organization. At March 31,2025,
the Organization has recorded approximately $3.2 million in construction in process related to Phase II
of the affordable housing project.
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Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Due from related entity
Due from affiliates

Pledges, contributions and grants receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Patient, tenant and other cash held in trust

Total current assets

Fixed assets:

Land and improvements
Building and improvements
Equipment and vehicles
Ftimiture and fixtures

Leasehold improvements
Construction in process

Less accumulated depreciation
Fixed assets, net

Other assets:

Investments, at fair value
Operating lease right-of-use assets
Other assets held for restrictive purposes
Other

Total other assets

Total assets

NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

March 31, 2025

ASSETS

(In Thousands)

Without Donor Restrictions

Six Elimina

Programs/ St. Rehabilitation Senior Warde With tions and

Home Food Charies and Nursing Living Assisted Donor Reclass-

Office Bank School Centers Commiinittes Living Total Restrictions ifications Total

$  3,452 $  961 $  38 S  6,842 $  2,897 S  1 $  14,191 S  2,884 $ $  17,075
774 53 282 5,172 5 50 6,336 - 6,336

2,744 - - - - - 2,744 - _ 2,744
1,500 - 1,950 10,157 6,977 - 20.584 - (20,584) -

5 304 - - - _ 309 47 _ 356
- 1,148 - - - - 1,148 - - 1,148
502 47 - 59 1 3 612 _ _ 612

205 _ 3 85 191 24 508 _ 508

9,182 2,513 2,273 22,315 10,071 78 46,432 2,931 (20,584) 28,779

988 10 178 1,151 61 248 2,636 12 2,648
14,394 - 1,857 30,683 15,185 1,550 63,669 101 _ 63,770
1,985 1,667 310 5,624 295 125 10,006 - - 10,006
360 33 52 2,387 146 7 2,985 _ _ 2,985
852 1,751 - 11 - - 2,614 - 2,614

4.058 _ 108 1.779 146 _ 6.091 — 6.091

22,637 3,461 2,505 41,635 15,833 1,930 88,001 113 - 88,114
r9.243) fi.34n (1.697) (25.054) (6.428) (416) (44.179) (80) _ (44.259)

13,394 2,120 808 16,581 9,405 1,514 43,822 33
-

43,855

19,239 11,620 1,956 14,775 2,380 49,970 7,617 57,587
3,770 270 - - - - 4,040 - - 4,040
- - - - - - - 394 - 394

73 _ 117 _ 10 200 _ _ 200

23.082 11.890 1.956 14.892 2.380 10 54.210 8.011 _ 62.221

S 45.658 S  16.523 S  5.037 S 53.788 S 21.856 %  1.602 S 144.464 S  10.975 $ (20.584) S 134.855
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS rPEFICm

(In Thousands)

Without Donor Restrictions

Programs/
Home

Office

Food
Rank

Current liabilities:

St.

Charies

School

Six

Rehabilitation

and Nursing
Centers

Senior

Living
Communities

Warde

Assisted
1 ivinp

Net assets (deficit):!
Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets (deficit)

Total liabilities and net assets (deficit)

35^27

35.227

15,697

15.697

4,714

4.714

43,659

43.659

13,476

13.476

Total

Current portion of operating lease liabilities S  100 s

00

- $ $ $ S  182
Accounts payable:

Trade 1,631 283 69 1,029 60 27 3,099
Other 12 46 - 669 _ — 727

Due to affiliates 1,978 - - 6,688 8,124 3,772 20,562
Accrued salaries and wages 128 93 38 864 2 35 1,160
Employee benefits payable All 113 70 738 - 29 1,427
Patient, tenant and other cash l^ld in trust 205 - 3 85 191 24 508

Deferred revenue 50 8 143 56 3 260

Total current liabilities 4,581 625 323 10,129 8,380 3,887 27,925

Long-term debt 2,025 _ _ _ _ _ 2,025
Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion 3.825 201 _ _ _ _ 4.026

Total noncurrent liabilities 5.850 201 _ _ _ _ 6.051

* Total liabilities 10,431 826 323 10,129 8,380 3,887 33,976

With

Donor

Elimina>

tions and

Reclass-

Restrictions ifications

136 (20,584)

(2,285) 110,488

(2.285^ 110.488 10.839

136 (20.584)

136 (20,584)

10.839

Total

182

3,099
727

114

1,160
1,427
508

7,477

2.025
4.026

6.051

13,528

110,488
10.839

121.327

^ 4i.658 i 16.523 I S.037 S 53.788 S 21.856 S 1.602 S 144.464 S 10.975 S r20.5g4> S 134.855
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NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES
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March 31.2024

ASSETS

(In Thousands)

Without Donor Restrictions

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Due from related entity
Due from affiliates

Pledges, contributions and grants receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Patient, tenant and other cash held in trust

Total current assets

Restricted cash

Fixed assets:

Land and improvements
Building and improvements
Equipment and vehicles
Furniture and fixtures

Leasehold improvements
Construction in process

Less accumulated depreciation
Fixed assets, net

Other assets:

Investments, at frur value
Operating lease right-of-use assets
Other assets held for restrictive purposes
Other

Total other assets

Total assets

Six Elimina-

Programs/ St. Rehabilitation Senior Waide With tions and

Home Food Charles and Nursing Living Assisted Donor Reclass-

Office Rank School Centers Communities Livinn Total Restrictions ificatiotis Total

$  373 $  601 $  364 $  7,847 $  2,498 $  111 I  11,794 $  3,455 $ $  15,249
390 131 456 5,520 7 44 6,548 - - 6,548
U91 - - - - - 1,291 - - 1,291

1,000 - 54 10,182 6,677 - 17,913 - (17,913) -

_ 594 - - — - 594 159 — 753

- 1,220 - - - - 1,220 -
— 1,220

130 107 - 52 (2) 3 290 - — 290

199 _
_ 90 185 25 499 _ — 499

3,383 2,653 874 23,691 9,365 183 40,149 3,614 (17,913) 25,850

- - - - - - -

163
-

163

985 9 178 1,126 61 248 2,607 12 2,619

14,358 - 1,845 29,852 15,114 1,545 62,714 101 - 62,815

1,838 1,674 336 5,345 290 125 9,608 -
- 9,608

336 33 52 2,364 146 5 2,936 - - 2,936

841 1,526 - 11 - - 2,378 - - 2,378

27 ,  107 4 319 -
— 457 - — 457

18,385 3,349 2,415 39,017 15,611 1,923 80,700 113 - 80,813

f8.3881 fl.2681 11.6591 123.7231 16.0171 13591 141.4141 1801 — 141.4941

9,997 2,081 756 15,294 9,594 1,564 39,286 33
-

39,319

21,637 10,943 2,423 13,837 2,227 51,067 7,616 58,683

3,908 372 - - - - 4,280 -
- 4,280

_ _ - - - - - 396 - 396

141 _
.. 117 _ 10 123 _ _ 123

25.541 11.315 2.423 13.954 2.227 10 55.470 8.012 _ 63.482

S 38.921 S  16.049 S  4 053 $ 52.939 S 21 186 S  1.757 $ 134.905 S  11.822 S 117.9131 S 128.814
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS fPEFlCm

(In Thousands)

Without Donor Restrictions

Six Elimina

Programs/ St. Rehabilitation Senior Wardc With tions and

Home Food Charles and Nursing Living Assisted Donor Reclass-

Office Bank School Centers Communities I.iving Total Restrictions ifications

Current liabilities;

Current portion of operating lease liabilities S  91 $  101 $ $ $ $ $  192 $ $

Accounts payable:
Trade 446 379 14 1,054 31 24 1,948 - -

Other 13 56 - 710 - - 779 - -

Due to affiliates 1,453 - - 4,708 8,654 3,072 17,887 140 (17,913)

Accrued salaries and wages 73 46 23 743 1 29 915 - -

Employee benefits payable 384 111 70 722 - 20 1,307 -

Patient, tenant and other cash held in trust 199 - — 90 185 25 499 — —

Deferred revenue 132 178 27 13 11 — 361 — —

Total ciirrent liabilities 2,791 871 134 8,040 8,882 3,170 23,888 140 (17,913)

Long-term debt 1,125 _ _ _ _ _ 1,125 _ -

Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion 3.925 284 _ _ _ _ 4.209 — _

Total noncurrent liabilities 5.050 284 _ _ _ _ 5.334 _ _

Total liabilities 7,841 1,155 134 8,040 8,882 3,170 29,222 140 (17,913)

Total

192

I,948
779

114

915

1,307

499

Mi
6,115

1,125
4.209

5.334

II,449

Net assets (deficit):
Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets (deficit)

Total liabilities and net assets (deficit)

31,080

31.080

14,894

14.894

S 38.921 S 16.049

3,919

3.919

i  4.053

44,899

44.899

S 52.939

12.304

12.304

(1,413) 105.683

n.4131 105.683

11.682

11.682

105.683
11.682

117.365

S 21.186 S 1.757 S 134.905 S 11.822 S (17.9131 S 128.814
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NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES

Revenues, gains and other support;
Patient and resident services
Program service fees - children's school
Annual appeal
Bequests, grants, donations and fundraising
In-kind donations
Net assets released from restrictions

Management fee income
Developer fees
Other

Total revenue, gains and other support

Expenses:
Program services:

Rehabilitation and nursing centers
Family services
Parish and community services
Children's school
Senior living communities
Assisted living services
Liberty House
New Generation

St. Jacinta Healthcare staffing
Food bank program
Food bank real estate

Our Place

Residence for infirmed priests
Immigration
Employee leasing
Other programs

Fundraismg:
Annual campaign and other events

Support services:
General and administrative
Total expenses

Investment income, net

Total change in net assets (deficit)

Net assets (deficit), beginning ofyear

Net assets (deficit), end of year

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended March 31,2025
(In Thousands)

Without Donor Restrictions
Six Elimina

Programs/ St. Rehabilitation Senior Warde With tions and
Home Food Charles and Nursing Living Assisted Donor Reclass-
Office Bank School Centers Communities Livinff Total Restrictions ifications Total

S  873 $ S $ 49,816 $  2,378 I  1,457 $ 54,524 $ $ $ 54,524
— — 2,597 — — _ 2,597 _ _ 2,597

3,780 217 — — — _ 3,997 _ _ 3,997
3,735 12,786 230 74 — — 16,825 2,178 _ 19,003
149 15,349 — — — — 15,498 _ _ 15,498

2,118 1,325 28 — — — 3,471 (3,471) _ —

183 - — — — — 183 _ 183
150 — — — — — 150 _ _ 150

4.210 787 27 166 21 11 5.222 _ (2.721) 2.501
15,198 30,464 2,882 50,056 2,399 1,468 102,467 (1,293) (2,721) 98,453

49,494 49,494 (2,227) 47,267
996 — — — — — 996 _ _ 996

1,491 — — — — — 1,491 _ _ 1,491
— — 2,244 — — — 2,244 _ _ 2,244
- — — — 1,298 — 1,298 _ _ 1,298
— — — — — 2,247 2,247 — — 2,247

1,374 — — — — — 1,374 — — 1,374
1,219 — — — — _ 1,219 _ 1,219
2,107 — — — — — 2,107 _ _ 2.107
— 28,186 — — — — 28,186 — (494) 27,692
357 — — — — — 357 _ _ 357
517 — — — — _ 517 _ 517

437 _ — — — — 437 _ _ 437
1,067 — — — _ 1,067 — _ 1,067
607 607 607
557

- - - - -
557

- -
557

1,281 1,768
- - - -

3,049
- -

3.049

453 385 9 3.015 144 93 4.099 _ _ 4.099
12,463 30,339 2,253 52,509 1,442 2,340 101,346

-
(2.721) 98,625

1.412 678 166 1.213 215 _ 3.684 450 4.134

4,147 803 795 (1,240) 1,172 (872) 4,805 (843) - 3,962

31.080 14.894 3.919 44.899 12.304 (1.413) 105.683 11.682 _ 117.365

S 35.227 S  15.697 S  4.714 S 43.659 S 13.476 S (2.285) S 110.488 S  10.839 s S 121.327
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Revenues, gains and other support:
Patient and resident services
Program service fees — children's school
Annuai appeal
Bequests, grants, donations and fundraising
In-l^d donations
Net assets released from restrictions
Management fee income
Other

Total revenue, gains and other support

Expenses:
Program services:

Rehabilitation and nursing centers
Family services
Parish and community services
Children's school
Senior living communities
Assisted living services
Liberty House
New Generation

St. Jacinta Healthcare staffing
Food bank program
Food bank real estate
Our Place
Residence for infirmed priests
Immigration
Other programs

Fundraising;
Annual campaign and other events

Support services:
C^neral and administrative
Total expenses

Investment income, net

Forgiveness of related-party debt

Total change in net assets (deficit)

Net assets (deficit), begmning ofyear

Net assets (deficit), end ofyear

NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended MarchSl, 2024
(In Thousands)

Without Donor Restrictions

Six Elimina

Programs/ St. Rehabilitation Senior Warde With tions and
Home Food Charles and Nursing Living Assisted Donor Reclass-
Office Bank School Centers Communities Living Total Restrictions ifications Total

$  473 $ $ S 47,371 $  2,325 $  1,427 S 51,596 S S S 51,596
— _ 2,032 _ _ _ 2,032 — _ 2,032

3,412 114 — — — — 3,526 _
_ 3,526

2,445 11,090 219 46 — — 13,800 1,317 — 15,117
113 22,480 — 1 — — 22,594 — — 22,594
801 1,912 14 - — — 2,727 (2,727) — - —

177 — — — — — 177 — — 177

4.119 899 8 194 21 12 5.253 _ (3.153) 2.100

11,540 36,495 2,273 47,612 2,346 1,439 101,705 (1.410) (3,153) 97,142

47,240 47,240 (2,659) 44,581
982 — — — — 982 — _ 982

1,431 — — — — — 1,431 — — 1,431
- — 1,954 — — — 1,954 — — 1,954
— — — — 1,444 — 1,444 — — 1,444
— — — — __ 1,894 1,894 _ _ 1,894

1,218 — — — — — 1,218 — 1,218
1,059 — — — 1,059 — — 1,059
2,729 — — — — 2,729 — — 2,729
— 34,167 — — — — 34,167 — (494) 33,673
349 — — — — — 349 — — 349
483 — — — — — 483 — 483
403 — — — — — 403 — — 403

1,077 — — — _ — 1,077 _ _ 1,077
682

- - - - -
682

- -
682

1,347 1,143
- - - -

2,490 - - 2.490

272 369 9 2.840 131 83 3.704 1 3.705

12,032 35,679 1,963 50,080 1,575 1,977 103,306 1 (3,153) 100,154

2.918 1,144 314 2,989 611 - 7,976 774
-

8,750

375 _ _ _

375 _ _ 375

2,801 1,960 624 521 1,382 (538) 6,750 (637) - 6,113

28.279 12.934 3.295 44.378 10.922 f875) 98.933 12.319 111.252

S 31.080 $  14.894 S  3.919 S 44,899 S  12.304 8  fl.413^ $ 105.683 S  11.682 S $ 117.365
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NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION -

REHABILITATION AND NURSING CENTERS (BEFORE ELIMINATIONS)

March 31, 2025

ASSETS

(In Thousands)

Mount St. Vincent

Carmel de Paul St. Ann St. Francis St. Teresa Warde

Rehabili Rehabili Rehabili Rehabili Rehabili Rehabili

tation and tation and tation and tation and tation and tation and

Nursing Nursing Nursing Nursing Nursing Nursing
Center Center Center Center Center Center Total

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $  5,541 $  23 $  75 $  27 S  1,092 $  94 $  6,852
Accounts receivable 2,078 788 784 465 641 416 5,172
Due from affiliates 4,559 1,686 509 1,268 2,135 — 10,157
Prepaid expenses 16 23 7 8 2 3 59

Patient, tenant and other cash held in trust 30 27 10 4 7 7 85

Total current assets 12,224 2,547 1,385 1,772 3,877 520 22,325

Fixed assets:

Land and improvements 157 109 111 216 144 414 1,151
Building and improvements 11,247 2,898 4,543 6,239 2,762 2,994 30,683
Equipment and vehicles 1,459 1,307 948 734 545 631 5,624
Furniture and fixtures 877 269 378 485 313 65 2.387

Leasehold improvements - 11 - - - - 11

Construction in process 1.119 152 10 8 — 490 1.779

14,859 4,746 5,990 7,682 3,764 4,594 41,635
Less accumulated depreciation 18.286) 13.261) f4.534) 14.382) f3.312) 11.279) f25.054)

Fixed assets, net 6,573 1,485 1,456 3,300 452 3,315 16,581

Other assets:

Investments, at fair value 5,635 1,931 802 1,978 4,429 — 14,775
Other 102 _ _ _ — 15 117

Total other assets 5.737 1.931 802 1.978 4.429 15 14.892

Total assets S 24,534 S  5.963 S  3.643 S  7.050 $  8.758 S  3 850 $ 53.798
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS fPEFICIT^

(In Thousands)

Mount

Carmel

Rehabili

tation and

Nursing
Center

St. Vincent

de Paul

Rehabili

tation and

Nursing
Center

St. Ann

Rehabili

tation and

Nursing
Center

St. Francis

Rehabili

tation and

Nursing
Center

St. Teresa

Rehabili

tation and

Nursing
Center

Warde

Rehabili

tation and

Nursing
Center

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable:

Total

Trade $  244 $  .215 $  167 $ 146 $  120 $ 137 $  1,029
Other 237 98 83 91 93 67 669

Affiliates — 300 560 - 120 5,708 6,688
Accrued salaries and wages 310 85 133 144 130 62 864

Employee benefits payable 207 110 93 137 78 113 738

Patient, tenant and other cash held in trust 30 27 10 4 7 7 85

Deferred revenue 56 - — - — — 56

Total current liabilities 1,084 835 1,046 522 548 6,094 10,129

let assets (deficit):
Without donor restrictions 23,450 5,128 2,597 6,528 8,210 (2,254) 43,659
With donor restrictions _ _ — — — 10 10

23.450 5.128 2.597 6,528 8.210 12.2441 43.669

'otal liabilities and net assets (deficit) $ 24.534 S  5.963 S  3.643 % 7.050 S  8.758 $ 3.850 S 53.798
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IVEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION -
REHABILITATION AND NURSING CENTERS (BEFORE ELIMINATIONS)

March 31, 2024

ASSETS

(In Thousands)

Mount St. Vincent

Carmel de Paul St. Ann St. Francis St. Teresa Warde

Rehabili Rehabili Rehabili Rehabili Rehabili Rehabili

tation and tation and tation and tation and tation and tation and

Nursing Nursing Nursing Nursing Nursing Nursing
Center Center Center Center Center Center Total

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $  5,544 $  155 $  360 $  390 $  1,263 $  145 $  7,857
Accounts receivable 2,276 905 752 480 666 441 5,520
Due from affiliates 5,149 1,686 509 703 2,135 - 10,182
Prepaid expenses 15 18 5 5 5 4 52

Patient, tenant and other cash held in trust 25 34 5 7 13 6 90

Total current assets 13,009 2,798 1,631 1,585 4,082 596 23,701

Fixed assets:

Land and improvements 157 109 85 216 144 415 1,126
Building and improvements 10,482 2,881 4,539 6,231 2,749 2,970 29,852
Equipment and vehicles 1,423 1,246 876 681 530 589 5,345
Furniture and fixtures 868 257 378 485 313 63 2.364
Leasehold improvements - II - - - - 11

Construction in process 50 — 14 38 _ 217 319

12,980 4,504 5,892 7,651 3,736 4,254 39,017
Less accumulated depreciation 17.821) 13.126) (4.361) (4.099) (3.234) (1.082) (23.723)

Fixed assets, net 5,159 1,378 1,531 3,552 502 3,172 15,294

Other assets:

Investments, at fair value 5,278 1,807 751 1,852 4,148 1 13,837
Other 102 — - - — 15 117

Total other assets 5.380 1.807 751 1.852 4.148 16 13.954

Total assets S 23,548 S  5.983 S  3.913 S  6-989 S  8.732 S  3 784 $ 52.949
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS rPEFICm
(In Thousands)

Mount St. Vincent

Carmel de Paul St. Ann St. Francis St. Teresa Warde

Rehabili Rehabili Rehabili Rehabili Rehabili Rehabili

tation and tation and tation and tation and tation and tation and

Nursing Nursing Nursing Nursing Nursing Nursing
Center Center Center Center Center Center Total

Current liabilities;

Accounts payable:
Trade $  303 $  208 $  165 $  86 $  117 $  175 $  1,054
Other 257 120 92 100 73 68 710

Affiliates — - - - - 4,708 4,708
Accrued salaries and wages 271 50 135 147 101 39 743

Employee benefits payable 211 93 94 154 70 100 722

Patient, tenant and other cash held in trust 25 34 5 7 13 6 90

Deferred revenue _ — — — — 13 13

Total current liabilities 1,067 505 491 494 374 5,109 8,040

Net assets (deficit):
Without donor restrictions 22,481 5,478 3,422 6,495 8,358 (1,335) 44,899
With donor restrictions _ _ _ _ _ 10 10

22.481 5.478 3.422 6.495 8.358 fL3251 44.909

Total liabilities and net assets (deficit) S 23.548 S  5.983 S  3.913 ^  fi 989 i  8.732 S  3.784 $ 52.949
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NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES -
REHABILITATION AND NURSING CENTERS (BEFORE ELIMINATIONS)

Year Ended March 31,2025
(In Thousands)

Revenues, gains and other support:
Patient and resident services
Bequests, donations and fundraising
Other

Total revenues, gains and other support

Eryenses:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Management fees
Professional fees
Purchased services - healthcare
Other purchased services
Advertising and promotion
Recruiting advertising
Office supplies
Healthcare supplies
Other supplies
Postage and shipping
Printing
Telephone
Dues and subscriptions
Information technology
Rent and occupancy costs
Equipment maintenance, repairs and rentals
Travel

Conferences and meetings
Depreciation
Insurance

Miscellaneous
Food
Nursing facility assessment tax
Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Bad debts
Bank service charges

Total expenses

Moimt St. Vincent

Carmel de Paul St. Ann St. Francis St. Teresa Warde

Rehabili Rehabili Rehabili Rehabili Rehabili Rehabili

tation and tation and tation and tation and tation and tation and

Nursing Nursing Nursing Nursing Nursing Niirsing
Center Center Center Center Center Center

$  17,853 $  7,646 $  6,443 $  6,878 $  6,205 $  4,791
7 14 5 13 2 33

26 12 32 50 25 21

17,886 7,672 6,480 6,941 6,232 4,845

7,274 2,981 3,525 3,446 3,016 2,615
1,483 480 630 802 433 491

523 217 260 249 226 205

1,017 493 420 416 363 306
37 22 34 12 15 12

3,057 2,016 905 556 1,149 953

53 32 10 11 35 18
— — 3 4 — 2

81 120 54 14 66 28
12 10 12 6 16 5

434 93 224 104 167 105

153 97 52 76 63 65
2
1

I I I
-

2

1

19 17 32 34 29 10

36 20 15 14 15 11

97 71 61 44 71 51

448 318 167 187 173 197

38 8 18 18 7 18

1 5 1 I 2 1

9 8 12 9 6 5

487 207 174 284 78 197

289 146 123 122 108 87

16 21 23 22 10 9
392 253 204 211 215 100

926 403 344 370 332 258
_ (I) _

_ —
_

605 107 53 20 104 9
15 1 — 1 4 4

17,505 8,146 7,357 7,034 6,703 5,764

47

Total

$ 49,816
74

166
50,056

22,857
4,319
1,680
3,015
132

8,636
159

9

363

61
1,127
506
7
1

141

III

395
1,490
107
11

49
1,427
875

101
1,375
2,633

(1)
898
25

52,509



Investment income, net

Mount
Carmel
Rehabili
tation and
Nursing
Center

$  588

St. Vincent
de Paul

Rehabili
tation and
Nursing
Center

$  124

St. Ann
Rehabili
tation and

Nursing
Center

$  52

St. Francis St. Teresa
Rehabili
tation and
Nursing
Center

$  126

Rehabili

tation and
Nursing
Center

S  323

Warde
Rehabili
tation and

Nursing
Center Total

S  1.213

Change in net assets (deficit) without donor restrictions

Net assets (deficit) without donor restrictions,
beginning of year

Net assets (deficit) without donor restrictions,
end of year

969

22.481

(350)

5.478

(825)

3.422

33

6.495

(148)

8.358

(919) (1,240)

fl.3351 44.899

% 23 450 S 5.128 S 2.597 $ 6.528 S 8.210 £ (2.254i £ 43.659
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NEW HAMPSHIRE CATHOLIC CHARITIES

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES -
REHABILITATION AND NURSING CENTERS (BEFORE ELIMINATIONS)

Year Ended March 31,2024
(In Thousands)

Revenues, gains and other support:
Patient and resident services
Bequests, donations and fundraising
In-kind donations
Other

Total revenues, gains and other support

Expenses:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Management fees
Professional fees
Purchased services - healthcare
Other purchased services
Advertising and promotion
Recruiting advertising
Office supplies
Healthcare supplies
Other supplies
Postage and shipping
Printing
Telephone
Dues and subscriptions
Information technology
Rent and occupancy costs
Equipment maintenance, repairs and rentals
Travel
Conferences and meetings
Interest
Depreciation
Insurance
Miscellaneous

Food
Nursing facility assessment tax
Bad debts
Bank service charges

Total expenses

Moimt St. Vincent
Carmel de Paul St. Ann St. Francis St. Teresa Warde

Rehabili Rehabili Rehabili Rehabili Rehabili Rehabili

tation and tation and tation and tation and tation and tation and
Nursing Nursing Nursing Nursing Nursing Nursing
Center Center Center Center Center Center Total

$  16,171
6

$  7,819 $  6,251 $  6,757 $  5,484 $  4,889 $ 47,371
4 9 11

1

3 13 46
j

28 15 44 48 37 22 194

16,205 7,838 6,304 6,817 5,524 4,924 47,612

5,763 2,656 2,787 3,382 2,434 2,056 19,078
1,168 508 458 882 346 372 3,734
415 195 202 242 180 169 1,403
907 482 402 393 365 291 2,840
22 19 21 19 19 17 117

3,556 2,654 1,574 567 1,386 1,741 11,478
32 27 3 16 26 17 121
- - 2 1 _ 1 4

60 18 82 4 63 35 262

11 10 13 5 10 9 58

396 149 211 116 173 115 1,160
133 92 56 75 66 53 475

2 I _ 1 1 2 7

1 I 3 1 _ 1 7

24 20 24 27 29 11 135

32 17 13 12 14 13 101

71 55 43 39 47 40 295

447 378 149 189 149 196 1,508
34 10 18 14 13 13 102

2 18 11 2 _ 1 34

8 6 6 6 4 13 43
8 - 23 41 - 23 95

487 185 162 273 86 188 1,381
234 131 109 106 98 78 756

16 12 18 19 12 10 87

322 252 194 210 180 99 1,257
852 425 328 371 291 263 2,530
526 83 170 6 115 80 980

17 4 1 1 4 5 32

15,546 8,408 7,083 7,020 6,111 5,912 50,080
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Mount
Carmel
Rehabili
tation and
Nursing
Center

St. Vincent
de Paul
Rehabili
tation and
Nursing
Center

St. Ann
Rehabili
tation and
Nik's ing
Center

St. Francis
Rehabili
tation and
Nursing
Center

St. Teresa
Rehabili
tation and
Nursing
Center

Warde

Rehabili
tation and
Nursing
Center Total

Investment income, net S  I.I06 S  392 S  234 S  437 S  763 S  57 $  2.989

Change in net assets (deficit) without donor restrictions 1,765 (178) (545) 234 176 (931) 521

Net assets (deficit) without donor restrictions,
beginning of year 20.716 5.656 3.967 6.261 8.182 f4041 44.378

Net assets (deficit) without donor restrictions,
end of year $ 22.481 $  5.478 S  3.422 S  6.495 ^  8.358 S  fl.3351 S 44.899
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Catholic Charities New Hampshire

VOCA Project - Key Personnel and Salaries

April 2025

Basra Mohamed, J.D. - Supervising Attorney: $96,576 annual salary

Sandra Bensson, J.D. - Project Attorney: $75,002 annual salary

Clarissa McHale - Project Paralegal: $43,304 annual salary



Basra S. Mohamed, Esq.

Summary: Driven, highly organized, and thorough attomey, with over eight years of legal counseling and
management experience.

EXPERIENCE

Commissioner 04/2020- Present
New Hampshire Human Rights Commission, Concord, NH
•  Oversees Commission executive staff, overall mission and progress towards goals
•  Reviews charges and investigates complaints regarding discrimination in employment, housing and

public
•  accommodations under both state and federal laws

•  Negotiates settlements between complainants and respondents
•  Holds public administrative law trials (hearings) in cases not settled

Managing Attorney 11/2016 - Present
NH Catholic Charities, Manchester, Manchester, NH

Assists clients and staff in navigating complex federal laws and regulations
Supervises and provides substantive technical and adrnmistrative guidance to staff (attorneys, non-
attorneys, and support staff)
Reviews and outlines department policies and procedures
Reviews intakes and conducts consultations with clients (i.e. individuals and agencies)
Represents clients before courts and administrative agencies
Negotiates on behalf of clients to reach agreements with gov't attorneys and agencies
Conducts departmental staff trainings on federal laws, rules, and procedures
Conducts legal trainings for varies outside agencies most notably

Attomey 04/2016 -11/2016
NH Catholic Charities NH, Nashua, NH

•  Conducted intake and advised clients on complex legal matters
•  Analyzed federal laws and procedures
•  Conducted legal research and drafted legal documents (memorandums, briefs, pleadings etc.)
•  Represented clients before administrative proceedings
•  Collaborated with various gov't agencies in advocating for clients

BAR ADMISSION

Member in good standing of the New Hampshire Bar Association.

EDUCATION

University of New Hampshire School of Law Concord, NH
Juris Doctor Awarded 05/2015

Middle Tennessee State University Murfreesboro, TN
Bachelor of Science, Political Science Awarded 05/2011

VOLUNTEER ACTIVITIES

ORIS, Board Member, Manchester, NH, (NAA 2016-2019) 09/2019- 02/2020



Sandra G. Bensson
Admitted to the Massachusetts and New Hampshire Bars

Education

Northeastern University School of Law, Boston, MA
Juris Doctor, May 2023
Earned "High Honors" in the majority of courses

Grove City College, Grove City, PA
Bachelor of Music, magna cum laude^ in Music Business, Major CPA: 3.68, May 2015

Legal Experience
Dodge Law, P.C., Manchester, NH
immigration Attorney November 2023 - January 2025
•  Led dozens of clients through immigration proceedings by interviewing them, strategizing, representing them in hearings,

filing I-589s, writing affidavits, filing FOIA and biometrics requests, collecting evidence, and composing various writings.
• Won withholding of removal for a detained client in the 11 th Circuit in my first complete individual hearing; won termination

of several cases via motions to terminate or requests for prosecutorial discretion.
• Wrote briefs for clients who then won asylum or withholding of removal; wrote an appellate brief; wrote motions to reopen.
• Won or helped win nine SIJ guardianship hearings by interviewing clients, filing petitions for guardianship and ancillary

documents, writing briefs explaining SIJ to NH family court judges, and representing clients in family court hearings.
•  Guided clients through USCIS filings including I-130s, EADs, an N-400, an 1-360 for SIJ status, and an affirmative 1-589.

Magaletta, McCarthy & Nader, P.C., Boston, MA
Immigration Legal Intern January 2023 - April 2023
• Wrote elevenasylum briefs after analyzing files and conducting research; reviewed and edited four additional asylum briefs.
• Wrote an asylum appeal brief to the BIA and completed four sets of asylum appeal forms (E-26s and E-27s) afterstudying

orders of final judgment and researching counterarguments.
• Wrote an appeal brief to the BIA for a motion to reopen after studying the judge's decision and conducting legal research.
•  Drafted briefs and completed forms for SIJ cases including ten guardianships, seven dependencies, and four custody cases.
• Wrote motions to consolidate and motions for administrative closure; conducted three research and writing projects.

Celedon Law, Marlborough, MA
1 mmigratlon Law Clerk May 2022 - August 2022
• Wrote six asylum briefs; created arguments after analyzing files, reviewing declarations, gathering evidence, researching

country conditions, and conducting legal research.
• Wrote an appeal brief to the BIA for a motion to reopen after using legal research to establish the legal basis for appeal.
• Wrote requests for prosecutorial discretion, motions to reopen, and motions to terminate (MTT).
•  Advised paralegals after analyzing their asylum and MTT declarations; drafted direct examination questions for hearings.
•  Completed an E-26,1-589, N-400, and 1-918 Supplement B; responded to a notice of continuance.

Catholic Charities Archdiocese of Boston, Boston, MA
Immigration Legal Services Intern September 2021 - December 2021
•  Collaborated with an attomey in cases involving U visas, T visas, asylum, SIJ, TPS, family-based petitions, and DACAby

conducting legal research, finding solutions to legal problems, completing forms, and gathering evidence.
•  Established arguments included in asylum briefs by conducting legal research and presenting arguments via memoranda.
•  Discovered solutions to unique problems through legal research and helped reshape legal strategies to prevent removal.
•  Led clients through family-based petitions and TPS applications under attomey supervision.

Legal Assistance of Western New York, Inc., Elmira, NY
Victi m Ri ghts Paral egal March 2019 - May 2019
•  Interviewed, managed, and warmly corresponded with over forty crime victims.
•  Brainstormed arguments and counterarguments and initiated legal research, which resulted in arguments used in litigation.

AmerlCorps Paralegal February 2018 — February 2019
•  Represented two clients before the Social Security Administration; won both cases, allowing clients to save over $ 15,000.
•  Developed legal arguments for seven overpayment clients after analyzing their cases and conducting legal research.
•  Confronted the SSA after initiating research and discovering it had not adhered to the Code of Federal Regulations or

Program Operations Manual System, which resulted in SSA's admittance of fault and provision of benefits for our client.
•  Drafted divorce documents for seven sets of spouses including complaints, affidavits, stipulations, judgments, and findings.



Clarissa McHale

Relevant Experience

Essay Coach

Collegewise Remote

2020 — Present

•  Guide high school seniors applying to top schools through the college- admission essay process.

•  Offer thoughtful, actionable feedback in a sensitive way via written comments.

•  Proofread forspelling, grammar and punctuation.

•  Manage a caseload of 15-20 students perseason with a 3-day turnaround persubmission.

Bilingual CensusEnumerator

US Census Bureau Monroe County, PA

2020

Conducted in-person interviews in English and Spanish for the 3 month duration ofthe census in my county.
Was consistently a top-performing field intervieweron regional team.

Quickly established trust with reluctant participants in the midst ofthe Pandemic.
Accurately recorded residents'answers using government device/software.

Escalated complex issues to supervisor.

Maintained sensitive and confidentialinformation.

Circulation Clerk

Eastern Monroe Public Library Stroudsburg, Pa

2018 - 2020

Communicated libraryservices and policies to patrons in person and over the phone in English and Spanish.

Collected and verified information to open and update accounts.

Accurately and quickly entered information into library databases.

Assisted patrons with technological issues and research.

Started and led ESL conversation group for local immigrants.

Native EnglishTeacher

Myeongryun Elementary School Wonju, South Korea

2017 - 2018

•  Plannedandco-taughtinteractiveEnglishclassesfor22classesof students grades 4- 6 each week.

•  Raised students' participation levels through use of visuals, manipulatives, songs, and connecting objectives to other subjects and

areas of student interest.

•  Managed classes of 20 to 29 students to create a structured, safe, and inclusive learningenvironment.

Editor/Copywriter
Speaking.com Remote

2015 - 2019

•  Managedand updated web content for a nationallyknown speakers bureau that represented over 1,100 motivational speakers

and experts.

•  Researched, synthesized information, and wrote one sheets for professional speakers and their keynote programs.

•  Researched trends in various fields to create promotional materials including blog interviewswith speakers.

•  Edited written/transcribed interviews with leading experts for grammar, clarity andconsistency.

•  Past interviewees include real estate mogul Barbara Corcoran, award- winning musician Peter Himmelman and Northwestern

University professor Dr. PhilipKotler.



English Teacher

Language Pucon Pt/cdn, Chile

2012 - 2015

Instructed Spanish-speaking adults individually and in small groups.

Tailored lessons to students' levels, goals, and interests.

Helped students to achieve desired scores on IELTS,TOEFL, and othertests, many times for immigration visas or college admissions.

Education

Certificate, ParalegalStudies

Boston University Graduated Aug. 2024

Course Highlights; Legal Research, Westlaw, Legal Writing, Legal Technologies, Litigation

BA, SociaiScience

Westmont College Santa Barbara, CA

2002 - 2005

Graduated magna cum laude.



FORM NUMBER G-1 (version 1172021)

GRANT AGREEMENT

The State ofNew Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. Identification and Definitions.

1.1. State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Justice
1.2. State Agency Address
1 Granite Place South Concord, NH 03301

*

O. Grantee Name

Granite State Children's Alliance

1.4. Grantee Address

72 South River Road, Suite 202 Bedford, NH 03110

1.5 Grantee Phone #

(603)864-0215

1.6. Account Number

26010000-073-500581

1.7. Completion Date

09/30/2026

1.8. Grant Limitation

$568,057

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency
Kathleen Carr

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number
(603) 271-3658

If Grantee i.<i a municipality or village district: "By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public
meetins reaulrement for acceptance of this grant. Including if applicable RSA 31:95-b."

1.11. Grantee Signature 1 1.12. I^me & Title of Grantee Signer I ^

Gn

kl
mtee Signature 2 N

K

ime & Title of Grantee Signer 2

Gr

P
intee Signature 3 N

P
ime & Title of Grants Signor 3

iPr
i.i!
7

J State Agency Signatnre(s) 1.1
Thorn

4. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)
as D. Kaempfer, Deputy Director of Admin

1,15. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execudou) (if G & C approval required)

By: Assistant Attorney General, On: / /10/15/25

1.16. Approval by Governor and Council (If applicable)

By: On: / /

2, SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting
through the Agency identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Grantee
identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as "the Grantee"), shall perform that work identified and
more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work
being hereinafter referred to as "the Project")-

1of8 Subredplent Initials
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4.

4.1

4.2

S,

5.1,

5.2,

5.3,

5.4.

5,5,

7.

7,1,

IX

8,1,

8,2,

8.3

9,

9.1.

AREA COVHIED Excel* olherwise s^jecifically provided for herein, the
Grantee shall perform the Project in, and wih respect to, the State of New
Htimpshite. 9.2,
EFFECnVE DATE: COMPLEnWl OF PROJECT.

This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become
effective the date on the date of af^roytd of this Agreement by the Govertw
and Coimcil of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1,16), or upon 9,3.
signature by the Slate Agency as shown in block 1,14 ("the Effective Date"),
Fjtcept as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, induding ail reports 9,4.
requited by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirely prior to the d^e in
block 1,7 (hereinafter referred to as "the Compleliott Date"),
GRANT AMOUNT: 1 .IMrTATrOM ON AMOl n4T- VOUaTERS- PAYMENT

TTk Grant Anwunt is identified and more particularly described in EXlIIDri' C,
attached hereto, 9,5,

The manner of. and schedule of payment dial! be as set forth in EXHIBIT C,
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT C, and in consideration 10,
of the satisfactory performance of the Project, as determined by the Slate, and as ,
limited by sul^Wagtaph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Grantee the Grant Amount The State shdl wilMiold ftom the amount otherwise

payable to the Giaiuee under this subparagr^h 5,3 those sums required, or
permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N,H, RS A 80:7 forougb 7-c,
The payment by the S tate of Uk Grant atnwnt shall be the only, and the complete
payment to the Grantee for all expenses, of whatever nature, incurred by the
Grantee in the performance hereof, and shall be die only, and the complete,
ctimpensation to the Grantee for the Project, The Stale shidl have no liabilities to 11.
the Grantee other than the Grant Amount, 11,1,

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the conftaiy, and iwtwitetaading
unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all pttymcnts authorized 1111
or actually made, hereunder exceed the Grant limitation forth in block !,8of 11,12
these general provisions. 11.1.3
COMPLIANCE BY GRANTTF. WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS, In U.1,4

ctrnnection with the perfotmance of the Project, the Grantee shall comply with all 112,
statutes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or municipal
authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the Grantee, including 112 1
the acquisition of any and ail necessary permits and RSA 31-95-b.
RECORDS and ACCOlimS,

Between foe Effective Dale and the date seven (7) years after foe Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by the giant terms or the Ag«Ky. the Grantee
shall keep detailed accounts of at! expenses incurred in connrotion with the 1122
Project, including, but not limited to, costs of administration, transportation,
insurance, telejfoone calls, and clerical materials mi services. Sutfo accounts
shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills sod other similar documents
Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years after the Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by the grant terms or foe Agency pirsuant to 11.2.3
subparagraph 7,1, at any time during the tSrantee's normal business hours, and as
often as the Suite shall dematjd, the Grantee foall make availabie to the State all 11,2.4
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement The Grantee shall
permit the State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits 12,
of all eontrarts, invoices, materials, p^rolls, records of personnel, data (as that 12.1.
term is hereinafter defined), and other information relating to all matters covered
by this Agreement. As used in this pars^r^ "Grteitee" includes all persons,
natural or fictional, affilialed with, control]^ by, or under common ownership
with, the entitv klentified »$ the Oianlee in block 1,3 of foese provisirms
PERSONNEL.

The Grantee shall, at its own expense, provide all perst)nnel necessary to perform 12.2,
the ProjecL The Grantee warrants thttt all pers<»u»l engaged in foe Project shall
be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be jxoperly licensed and authorized
to perform such Project imder all applicable taws,
Tlte Grantee shall not hire, and it sMl not petmit any subcontractor, stfograntec, 12.3.
or tnher penon, firm or corporation wifo ufoom it is engagtxl in a combined effort
to pcifoDTi the Pfoject, to hire any peraon who has a ctattractu^ relationship wifo
the .Slate, or who is a State officer or enqrtoyee, eleraed or tippointcd.
The Grant Officer shall be the representative of the Stale tteieunder. In the event
of any dispute hereunder, the interpretation of this Agreement by foe Grant 12.4,
Officer, and his/her decision on any dispute, .shall be final.

As used in this A^eemeni, the word "data" shall mean ̂1 information and foings 13.
developed or obtained during foe pcrformajce of, or acquired or developed by
reason of, this AgreeraenL including, but not iimited to, all sttxiies. reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, soimd rectxthr^, video recording pictorial
reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations.

cmnputer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
doctimcna, all whether finished or unfinished.
Between foe Ef&ctive Date tmd foe Completiwi Date the Grantee shall gram to
foe State, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access to all data for
examination, duplication, puWication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any other
purpose whatsoever.
No data sh^ he subject to copyright in the United States or any other countiy by
anyone other than the State,
On and after tfie Effective Date all data, and any property which has been received
from the State or purchased wifo fimds provided for thai purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned to foe State
upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, whichever
shall first occur.

The State, aixl anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publifo, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or In part, all data.
CONDinON.AL NATURE OR AGREEMENT, Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to foe contraiy, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation of fimds. and in no event shall the State
be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or appropriated
ftind,s. In the event of a reduction or termination of those fimds, the State shall

have foe right to withhold payment until such funds become available, ifever, and
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Grantee notice of such termination,

EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the Grantee shsdl constitute
an event of dcfailt hereunder (hereinafter referred to as "Events of Default");
Failure to perfoim the Project satis&ctorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hereimder; or
Failure to maintain, or permit acces.? to, foe records required hereunder, or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agrecmcra,
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Defauh, the State may take any one, or more,
or all, ofthe following actions:
Give the Grmitee a written notice specifying foe Event of Default and requiring it
to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser specification of lime,
thirty (30) days fiom the date of foe notice; and if the Event of Default is not
timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Grantee notice of termination; and
Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default mid suspending
all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the portion of the
Grmit Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Grantee during the period
front the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that the
Grantee has cured the Evettt of De&ult sfiall never be paid to the Grantee; and
Set off against my ottter obli^on foe State may owe to the Grantee any damages
the State suffers by reason of any Event of Default; and
Treat foe agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity,
or both,

TERMlNATlQa,
In foe event of any early termination of this Agreement for my reason other than
the completion of the Inject, the Grantee shall deliver to the Grmtt Officer, not
later thit fifteen (15) days after the date of termination, a report (hereinafter
rcforred to as the "Termination Report") describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the (Jrant Amount earned, to and includmg foe date oftermination,
in foe event of Termination under paragraffos 10 or 12,4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shtill entitle
the Grantee to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and induding
the date of tcrmimition.

In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of sraih a Termination Report by the State shall in no
event relieve foe Grantee from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of foe Grantee's broach of its obligations
hereunder,
Notwitlatanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, etfocr the State or,
excej* where notice default has been given to tfte Grantee hereunder, the Grantee,
may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days written notice,
CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the Grantee,
and no representative, officer or employee of foe State of New Hampshire or of
foe governing body of the locality or localities in which the Project is to be
performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the review or
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approve of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall participate in 17.2.
any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal interea
or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he or she
is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he cr she have any peisonal or
pecuniary inlereat, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the procc^ thereof.

14, GRANTEE'S RELATION TO TllE STATE. In the pciformatKe of this
Agreement the Grantee, its eitiployecs, and arty subcontractor or subgrantee of IS.
the Grantee are in all respects independent contractors, and are neither agents
nor employees of the ̂ c. Neither the Grantee nor any of its officers,
employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgtantees, diall have aiahority
to bind the State nor are they entitled to any of die benefits, wotknwai's
compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

15. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee ̂ 1 not assign or 14.
oihenvisc transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the Slate. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted by the Grantee other than as .set forth in Exhibit B without the prior
written consent of the State 20.

16. INDEMNinCATION The Grantee shall defend, mdemnify and hold hornless
the Stale, its officers and employees, from and against ar^ and all losses suffered
by die State, its officets and employees, and any and dl claims, liabilities or
penalties asserted r^rnst the State, its officers and employees, by or on behalf 21.
of any person, on account of, based on, resulliitg from, arising out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the Grantee or
subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent of the Grantee. Nohvithstanding the
foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to ccmstitutc a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the State.
This covenaru shall survive the termination of this agreement 22

17, INSURANCE.

17,1 The Grantee shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or shall 2J.
require any aihcontractor, subgrardee or assignee performing Project work to
obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of fhc State, the following
insuratKx;

17.1.1 Statutory workers' compensation and employees liability insurance fw all 24.
employees engaged in the performance of the Project, arrd

17.1.2 Geticfj! liability insMrance^iainstallclaiinsofbodilyinjuiics,deathorpfoperty
damage, in amotnts not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate for bodily injury or death any <me incident, and $500,000 for proper^
damage in any one incident; attd

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 oflhis paragraph shall be the shuidard
form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters acceptable
to the State, and authorized to do business in the Slate ofNew Hampshire Grantee
shall fiimtsh to the State, ccrtifiaitcs of insurance for all renewal(s) of insuraiKie
requited under this Agreement no later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration
dale of each insurance policy.
WAIVER OF BREACH No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof
after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to
that Event, or any subsequent Event. No exixess waiver of any Event of Default
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of the tight of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereofupon any further or other default on the part of the Grantee,
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certified mail, postage
prepaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after af^roval of
such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the State
of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGRl-EMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement ̂all be
construed in accordance with the law of the Slate of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit ofthe parties and their respective successors
and assignees. The captions aixi contents of the "subject" blank are used only as
a matter of convenience, and arc not to be considered a part of this Agreement or
to be used in determining the intend of the parlies hereto.
THIRD PARTTHS The paties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this A^eement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT This Agreement, which may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes die entire
agreement and understanding bctwtren the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional or modifying provisions set forth in
Exhibit A hereto arc incorporated as part of this agreement
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EXHIBIT A

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

Granite State Children's Alliance as the Grantee (hereinafter referred to as "Subrecipient")
shall be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and specifications detailed
below, which are subject to annual review.

1  The Subrecipient must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful
access to any services provided by this program. National origin discrimination includes
discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). Meaningful access may
entail providing language assistance services, including oral and written translation when
necessary. The U.S. Department of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them
comply with these requirements. The guidance document can be accessed on the Internet at
www.lep.gov.

2  The Subrecipient assures fliat in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination within the three years prior to the
receipt of the federal financial assistance and after a due process hearing against the
Subrecipient on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, or disability, a
copy of the finding will be submitted to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants
Management Unit and to the U.S. Department of Justice, Office for Civil Rights, Office of
Justice Programs, 810 7th Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20531. For additional information
regarding your obligations under civil rights please reference the state website at
http://www.doj.nh.gov/grants-management/civil-rights.htm and understand if you are
awarded ftinding from this office, civil rights compliance will be monitored by this office,
and the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.

The Subrecipient will comply (and will require any subrecipients or contractors to comply)
3  with any applicable nondiscrimination provisions, which may include the Omnibus Crime

Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); the Victims of Crime Act (34
U.S.C, § 20110(e)); the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of2002 (34 U.S.C.
§ 11182(b)); the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. § 12291 (b)(l 3)); the Civil Rights
Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); the Indian Civil Rights Act (25 U.S.C. §§ 1301-1303): the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
(42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-34); the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681, 1683,
1685-86); and the Age Discrimination Actofl975 (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-07). It will also
comply with Ex. Order 13279, Equal Protection of the Laws for Faith-Based and
Community Organizations; Executive Order 13559, Fundamental Principles and
Policymaking Criteria for Partnerships With Faith-Based and Other Neighborhood
Organizations; and the DOJ implementing regulations at 28 C.F.R- Part 38.

4  Compensation for individual consultant services is to be reasonable and consistent with that
paid for similar services in the marketplace. The current consultant limit is $650 per day or
$81.25 per hour. When the rate exceeds the limit for an 8-hour day, or a proportionate
hourly rate (excluding tavel and subsistence costs), a written prior approval is required .
Prior approval requests require additional justification.

5  The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the NH
Department of Justice, that employee or their relative shall not perform work on or be billed

*  ® Subrecipient Inilials
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EXHOrBlT A

to any federal or state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly managed or
supervised while at the DOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express approval of the
DOJ.

6  The Subrecipient understands that grants are funded for the grant award period noted on the
grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in future
years.

7  The Subrecipient authorizes the DOJ and its representatives, access to and the right to examine
all records, books, paper or documents related to this subgrant.

8. The Subrecipient agrees that all services will be provided at no charge to victims unless a
program income waiver is obtained from the DOJ. If permission is granted, the Subrecipient
agrees that there must be a sliding scale that starts at zero (0), and that all program income will
be totally expended on grant allowable activities by the end of the funding cycle.

9. Equipment purchased with this subgrant shall be listed by the Subrecipient on the agency
inventory. The inventory must include the item description, serial number, cost, percentage of
state funds, and location.

10. The Subrecipient agrees that if a financial audit of the agency is performed, whether it be an
audit under 2 CFR or not, the Subrecipient agrees to provide a copy of the audit and any
associated management letters to the DOJ, Grants Management Unit. The Single Audit report
must be submitted to the Grants Management Unit within 9 months after the Subrecipient's
year-end or one month after the issuance of the audit

11. The Subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, agrees to make its financial statements
available online (either on the Subrecipient's website, or the DOJs, or another publicly available
website). Organizations that have Federal 501(c)(3) tax status are considered in compliance with
this requirement, with no further action needed, to the extent that such organization files IRS
Form 990 or similar tax document (e.g., Form 990-EZ), as several sources already provide searchable
online databases of such financial statements.

12. The Subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, must certify their non-profit status by
submitting a statement to NH DOJ: 1) affirmatively asserting that the recipient is a non-profit
organization and 2) indicating that the Subrecipient has on file and available upon audit one of
the following:

• A copy of the organization's 501 (c)(3) designation letter, or;
• A letter from the State of New Hampshire stating that the Subrecipient is a non- profit

organization operating within the state, or;
• A copy of the Subgrantee's state certificate of incorporation that substantiates its non-profit

status.

Subrecipients that are local non-profit affiliates or state of national non-profits should also
have a statement by the parent organization that the Subrecipient is a local non-profit aifiliate.
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EXHIBIT B

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive a subgrant from the New Hampshire Department of Justice

as the State Agency (DGJ) for expenses incurred and services provided for forensic child

advocacy interviews and direct victim services provided by the subrecipient including but
not limited to expenses for personnel and benefits.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DGJ based on budgeted expenditures
described in EXHIBIT C. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for

reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided. Expenditure

reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, witlrin fifteen (15) days following the end of
the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later than thirty (30) days

following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of compliance. For
example, with an award that begins on January 1, thefirst quarterly report is due on April

15* or 15 days after the close of the first quarter ending on March 31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both
state fiinds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this
office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting documentation
shall be maintained for at le^t seven (7) years after the close of the Federal Grant.

4. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DGJ. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt

shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

5. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:
NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit
1 Granite Place South

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-8473 or sarah.e.sciuto@doj.nh.gov
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EXHIBIT C

- PAYMENT TERMS-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure

reports as described in EXHIBIT B.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ's

approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient's account

receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not

exceed the price limitation set forth in form G-1 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $568,057 of

the total Grant Limitation upon Governor and Council approval or

01/01/2026, whichever is later, to 06/30/2026, with approved expenditure

reports. This shall be contingent on continued state funding and program

performance.

3b. With sufficient reason and under limited circumstances, the Subrecipient
may apply for an extension of the grant period for up to three months, to

09/30/2026. The Subrecipient must submit the request in writing. No

extension is granted until approval is received by DOJ in writing.

Subredpiait Initials
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EXHIBIT D

-NON-SUPPLANTING CERTIFICATION -

Supplanting defined

Federal funds must be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and must not
replace tiiose funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Supplanting shall be the
subject of application revievg, as well as pre-award review, post-award monitoring, and audit. If
there is a potential presence of supplanting, the Subrecipient or grantee will be required to supply
docimentation demonstrating that the reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for reasons
other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds. For certain programs, a written
certification may be requested by the awarding agency or recipient agency stating that Federal
funds will not be used to supplant State or local funds. See the OJ? Financial Guide (Part IT,
Chapter 3}
http://www.oip.usdoi.gov/financialguide/part2/nart2chart3.htm.

Supplanting and job retention

A recipient or subrecipient may use federal funds to retain jobs that, without the use of the
federal money, would be lost. If the grantee is planning on using federal funds to retain jobs, it
must be able to substantiate that, without the funds, the jobs would be lost. Substantiation can be,
but is not limited to, one of the following forms: an official memorandum, official minutes of a
county or municipal board meeting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produced
when making determinations about employment. The documentation must describe the
terminated positions and that the termination is because of lack of the availability of State or
local funds.

Granite State Children's Alliance (Subrecipient) certifies that any funds awarded

through this federal award shall be used to supplement existing funds for program

activities and will not replace (supplant) nonfederal funds that have been

appropriated for the purposes and goals of the grant.

Granite State Children's Alliance (Subrecipient) understands that supplanting

violations may result in a range of penalties, including but not limited to suspension

of future funds under this program, suspension or debarment from federal grants,

recoupment of monies provided tinder this grant, and civil and'or criminal penalties.

Printed Name and Title of Authorized Signer:

Signature:

D
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of ̂Ic of the State of New Hatnp^ire, do hereby certify that THE GRANITE STATE

CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

November 24,2003.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and

is in good standing as far sts thi.s office is concerned.

Busines.s ID: 456237

Certificate Number: 0007257S57

%

o

A

«r

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this I4th day of August A.D. 2025.

David M. 5>canlan

Secretary of State



Granite State
.^^Children's Alliance" 72 South River Road, Suite 202

Bedford, NH 03110

Certificate of Authority

'»Dan Bennett. Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Granite State Children's Alliance, do hereby
certify that:

1. I am a duly efected officer of the Granite State Children's Alliance.

2. The following is true of the adopted slate of ofRcers elected at a meeting of the Granite State

Children's Alliance held on October 9.2Q2S.

Resolved: That the Chief Execudve Offker is hereby authorized on behalf of Granite State

Children's Alliance to enter Into die said contract with the S^ate of New Hampshire -

Department of JusHce and to execute any and all documents, agreements and other

Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem

necessary, d^lrabte or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resoiutfons have not been amended or revoked and remain In ftitl foros and effect

as of the 9^ of October 2025. This authority shaB remain valid for thirty (30) days from the date
of this Certificate of Authority.

Jov Barrett is the Chief Executive Offiryr of the G/gnHe State Children's Alliance.

Dan Bennett

Board Chairman, Granite State Children's Alliance

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Hilisborough

Iheforgo'uT^i^^li^w^fknowiedged before me on

~  : s SSgnature of Notary Pubflc of Justice of the Peace

•''//»li 1 mm** Notary PuWic of Jiitlce of the

Commission Expires JSzBz^^Z- (Notary Seal)



ATOlZiy CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OATB(M«rDD(vyry)

02/24/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE P0UCIE3

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOTCONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pol!cy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SIBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rtgfits to the certificate holder In lieu of such endor»en»nt(s).

PRODUCER

Cross Insurance-Manchester

1100 Elm Slr^

Manchester NH 03101

contact Jennifer Kokofis

(803)869-3218 j Wg (803)645^331
manch.c«ts®crossagency.com

mSORERCSt AFFOROINO COVERAOE NAica

INSURER A; Sefoctive InsurancB Co. Of SO 19259

IMSUREO

Granite State Children's Alliance

72SRIVES-Rd

Suite 202

Bedford NH 03110-8759

INSURER B: MEMIC Indemnity Company 11030

msuRERC: Selective Insurance Co. of Amertca 12572

INSURER 0;

IFSURERE;

aSURERF:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 25-26 All lines REVISION NUMBER;
THIS IS TO CBRTIFYTHAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
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Independent Auditors' Report

To the Board of Directors

Granite State Children's Alliance

Bedford, NH

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Granite State Children's Alliance (the "Organization"), which comprise
the statement of financial position as of June 30,2024, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses,
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements (collectively referred to as
the "financial statements").

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Organization as of June 30,2024, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
("OAAS") and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards \s,s\iqA by
the Comptroller General of the United States {"Government Auditing Standards"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are required to be independent of ̂ e Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities,
in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as a going
concem for one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

1
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Auditors' Responsibilitiesfor the Audit ofthe Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material-if there is a substantial likelihood that,

individually or in the aggregate, they would influence thejudgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:
j

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressirig an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or eventsj considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

I
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information \

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of program expenses by child advocacy center is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the
accompanying information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Matter

]

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

The financial statements of Granite State Children's Alliance as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, were
audited by Marcum, LLP, whose report dated March 21, 2024, expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2023 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.



other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 27, 2025 on our
consideration of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

CBIZ CPAc P.C.

CBIZ CPAs P.C.

Merrimack, NH
March 27, 2025



GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30,2024

(with summarized comparative totals as of June 30, 2023)

2024

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Grants receivable

Contributions receivable, in less than one year

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets

Contributions receivable, in more than one year
Investments

Property and equipment, net
Security deposits
Operating lease right-of-use assets

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Other liabilities

Current portion of operating lease liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities

Operating lease liabilities, net of current

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated
Board-designated

With donor restrictions:

Time or purpose restricted

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

Without Donor With Donor 2024

Restrictions Restrictions Total

$  1,133,380
645,855

13,732

4,347,748

$ 4,615,991

15,510

55,000

$  1,148,890
645,855
68,732

2023

Total

$  1,507,676
269,400
32,992

1,813,175 70,510 1,883,685 1,831,947

„ 20,000

13,561 — 13,561 15,155

2,698,833 ~ 2,698,83'3 869,199

10,142 - 10,142 9,776

80,280 — 80,280 176,848

2,802,816 2,802,816 1,090,978

$ 4,615,991 $ 70,510 $ 4,686,501 $ 2,922,925

$  152,038 $ $  152,038 $  75,652

33,012 33,012 45,817
— — 1,200

66,675 ~ 66,675 96,832

251,725 251,725 219,501

16,518 16,518 83,193

16,518 __ 16,518 83,193

268,243 __ 268,243 302,694

3,914,502 3,914,502 2,111,475

433,246 - 433,246 433,246

70,510 70,510 75,510

70,510 4,418,258 2,620,231

70,510 $ 4,686,501 $ 2,922,925

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024

(with summarized comparative totalsfor the year ended June 30, 2023)

Support and Revenue
Support;

Grants

Contributions

Special events:
Gross special events revenue
Less cost of direct benefit to donors

Net special events revenue

Revenue:

Training and education
Investment income floss)
Other revenue

Loss on disposal of assets
Net Assets Released From Restrictions

Total Support and Revenue

Expenses
Program Services;

Child advocacy centers
Statewide education and outreach

Total Program Services

Supporting Services:
General and administrative

Fundraising

Total Supporting Services

Total Expenses

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, End of Year

2024

Without Donor With Donor 2024 2023

Restrictions Restrictions Total Total

$  3,823,059 $  ~ $ 3,823,059 $ 1,737,890

623,838 77,500 701,338 853,096

112,876 112,876 116,348

(24,322) - (24,322) (15,102)

88,554 _ 88,554 101,246

25,386 25,386 31,384

23,747 - 23,747 (608)

1,381 - 1,381 1,904

(1,695) - (1,695) -

82,500 (82,500) - ~

4,666,770 (5,000) 4,661,770 2,724,912

1,987,736 1,987,736 1,530,005

301,360 — 301,360 284,374

2,289,096 2,289,096 1,814,379

567,630 567,630 545,868

7,017 - 7,017 8,619

574,647 574,647 554,487

2,863,743 2,863,743 2,368,866

1,803,027 (5,000) 1,798,027 356,046

2,544,721 75,510 2,620,231 2,264,185

$  4,347,748 $  70,510 $ 4,418,258 $ 2,620,231

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024

(with summarized comparative totalsfor the year ended June 30, 2023)

2024

Personnel ocpense:

Salaries and wages

Payroll taxes
Employee benefits

Bank charges

Contracted services:

Accounting

Marketing

Other

Depreciation

Dues and subscriptions

Equipment, repairs, and maintenance

Grants

Insurance

Meetings

Miscellaneous

Occupancy

Office expenses

Staff development

Supplies

Telephooe and internet
Travel

Utilities

Total Expenses by Function

Less expenses included on the Statement

of Activities for the cost of special events

Total Expenses Reported on the

Statement of Activities

Child Statewide Total General Total

Advocacy Education and Program and Supporting 2024 2023

Centers Outreach Sei^ices Administrative Fundraisine Services Total Total

982,965 S  181.479 S  1,164,444 S  210,557 $  5,215 $  215,772 S 1,380,216 5  1,209,128

77,172 14.327 91,499 16,607 4K 17,041 108,540 95,809

226,468 42.045 268,513 48,792 1,215 50,007 318,520 122,266

- - -
760 7,673 8.433 8,433 8,245

_ _ 133.465 „ 133,465 133,465 134,004

572 _ 572 11,231 - 11,231 11.803 1,205

20,169 1,292 21,461 56,145 18 56,163 77,624 90,328

51,127 23,062 74.189 4,878 - 4,878 79,067 67,775

17,748 3,294 21,042 9,268 - 9,268 30,310 35,428

51,531 2,392 59,929 3.825 - 3,825 63,754 46,958

281,852 _ 281,852 - - - 281,852 215,416

13,254 1,582 14,836 6,226 - 6,226 21,062 18,692

5.477 608 6,085 7.546 - 7,546 13,631 11.616

1,201 25 1,226 107 100 207 1,433 1,969

83,758 19,666 103,424 24,641 24,641 128,065 113,117

37,016 4,540 41,556 19,199 35 19,234 60,790 68,629

39.175 - 39,175 1.842 - 1,842 41.017 31.401

19,509 - 19,509 - 16,649 16,649 36,158 22,550

24,914 2,415 27,329 4,147 - 4,147 31,476 28,408

20,459 857 2U16 1,693 - 1,693 23.009 22,236

27.363 3,776 31,139 6.701 .. 6,701 37,840 38.788

1.987,736 301,360 2,289,096 567.630 31.339 598,969 2,888,065 2.383,968

f24,322) (24,322) (24,322) (15.102)

S  1,987,736 S  301,360 S  2.289,096 S  567,630 S  7,017 S  574.647 $ 2.863,743 $  2,368.866

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024

(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2023)

2024 2023

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Change in net assets $  1,798,027 $ 356,046

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 79,067 67,775

Unrealized loss 1,594 4,222

Amortization of operating lease right-of-use assets 96,568 110,487

Loss on disposal of assets 1,695 ~

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Grants receivable (376,455) 80,055

Accounts receivable — 2,522

Contributions receivable (15,740) (4,992)

Prepaid expenses 1,671 (7,874)

Accounts payable 76,386 (14,914)

Accrued payroll and related liabilities (12,805) 6,301

Other liabilities (1,200) 1,200

Operating lease liabilities (96,832) (107,310)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,551,976 493,518

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Payment of security deposit (366) (994)

Purchase of property and equipment (1,910,396) (40,920)

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (1,910,762) (41,914)

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (358,786) 451,604

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 1,507,676 1,056,072

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $  1,148,890 $ 1,507,676

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024
(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2023)

Note 1 - Organization

Granite State Children's Alliance (the "Organization") is a nonprofit 501(c)(3) organization
that provides coordinated services through a multi-disciplinary team approach to support the
investigation and prosecution of child abuse cases. The Organization serves as the New
Hampshire chapter organization providing training, technical assistance, and statewide

.  representation for the network of Nationally Accredited Child Advocacy Centers ("CACs") in
New Hampshire. The Organization also operates CACs in Keene (Cheshire County -
Monadnock Region CAC), Manchester/Nashua (Hillsborough County CAC North/South) and
Laconia (Belknap County - Greater Lakes CAC). The Organization impacts the lives of
children and families through two program priorities:

Child Advocacy Centers - Child Advocacy Centers are designed to be a child/family
friendly, victim centered, neutral setting for joint investigations and forensic interviews of
child victims of crime involving sexual abuse, felony level physical abuse, and child
witnesses to violence such as a homicide or a serious domestic assault. CACs also provide
child/family support services to ensure children receive appropriate mental health
assessments, treatment, and specialized medical evaluations. Last calendar year over 2,176
children were referred for services to CACs across New Hampshire.

The CACs offer an onsite Behavioral Health Program ("Program") to children and
caregivers served at the CACs. The Program's licensed and master's level clinicians provide
children and caregivers with evidence-based, trauma-informed care utilizing best practice
clinical modalities recommended by the National Children's Alliance to help child victims
and their caregivers on their path to recovery. Last calendar year the Organization's
clinicians provided over 690 clinical sessions to children and caregivers. The Organization's
CAC services are provided at no cost.

Statewide Education and Outreach - The Organization provides CAC membership services,
training, professional development, technical assistance, and statewide representation to the
network of eleven Nationally Accredited Child Advocacy Centers in New Hampshire and
their multi-disciplinary teams. KNOW & TELL is a professional development program of
the Organization. It is all our responsibility to protect children from abuse. KNOW & TELL
educates all adults to KNOW the signs of abuse and TELL responsible authorities when
they recognize a child needs help. It is based on three elements: Educate - learn the signs
of neglect, physical, and sexual abuse to identify a child victim and understand your
responsibility as a mandated reporter; Inform - know how and when to report suspected
abuse when a child needs your help; Protect - recognize your role in the child protection
system. The KNOW & TELL training is conducted in-person or online.



GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024
(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2023)

NOTE 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies used in preparing and presenting
the accompanying financial statements.

Basis of Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally aecepted in the United States
of America ("GAAP").

Prior Year Summarized FinanculInformation

The accompanying financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient
detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with GAAP. Accordingly, such information
should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30,
2023, from which the summarized information was derived.

Cash AND Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three months or
less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term purposes, are
considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

Grants Receivable

Amounts recorded as grants receivable represent cost-reimbursable contracts and grants, which
the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses and/or the performance of certain
requirements have been met or performed. Grants receivable are recorded at net realizable
value and are generally due and collectable within one year. The allowance for uncollectable
grants receivable is based on historical experience and a review of subsequent collections.
Management has determined that no allowance is necessary as of June 30, 2024 and 2023.



GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024

(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2023)

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Contributions Receivable

Unconditional contributions that are expected to be collected within one year are recorded at
net realizable value. Unconditional contributions that are expected to be collected in future
years ace initially recorded at fair value using present value techniques incorporating risk-
adjusted discount rates designed to reflect the assumptions market participants would use in
pricing the asset. In subsequent years, amortization of the discounts is included in contribution
revenue in the statement of activities. The allowance for uncollectable contributions is based
on historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of subsequent
collections. Contributions are written off when deemed uncollectable. Management has
determined that no allowance is necessary as of June 30, 2024 and 2023. Contributions
receivable are expected to be due and collectable within one year.

Investments

Investment purchases are recorded at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date of donation.
Thereafter, investments are reported at their fair value in the statement of financial position.

Net investment retum/(loss) is reported in the statement of activities and consists of interest
and dividend income, and realized and unrealized gains and losses. Investments include equity
securities of public companies which are carried at fair value based on quoted market prices.

Property AND Equipment, Net

Property and equipment additions over $5,000 are recorded at cost, if purchased, and at fair
value at the date of donation, if donated. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, ranging from 3 to 39 years. When assets
are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related depreciation is removed, and any
resulting gain or loss is included in the statement of activities. Costs of maintenance and repairs
that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the
estimated future cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. When
considered impaired, an impairment loss is recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the
fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of asset impairment in fiscal year 2024 or
2023.
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024
(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2023)

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases

The Organization is a lessee in several noncancelable operating leases for property and
equipment. The Organization determines if an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, at
inception of the contract and when the terms of an existing contract are changed. The
Organization recognizes a lease liability and a right-of-use ("ROU") asset at the
commencement date of the lease. The lease liability is initially and subsequently recognized
based on the present value of its future lease payments when those variable payments depend
on an index or a rate. The Organization generally does not have access to the rate implicit in
the lease and, therefore, the Organization utilizes a risk-free rate as the discount rate at the
lease commencement date for all classes of underlying assets. Lease cost is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Organization has elected, for all underlying classes of assets, to not recognize ROU assets
and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less at lease
commencement, and do not include an option to purchase the underlying assets that the
Organization is reasonably certain to exercise. The Organization recognizes lease costs
associated with short-term leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Organization has lease agreements with lease and non-lease components, which are
generally accounted for separately. The Organization has elected, for all underlying classes of
assets, to account for each separate lease component of a contract and its associated non-lease
components (repairs and maintenance) as a single lease component. For arrangements
accounted for as a single lease component, there may be variability in future lease payments
as the amount of the non-lease components is typically revised from one period to the next.
These variable lease payments are recognized in operating expenses in the period in which the
obligation for those payments was incurred.

NetAssets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of
donor-imposed restrictions.

NetAssets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets without donor restrictions are net assets available for use in general operations
and not subject to donor-imposed restrictions. The Board has designated, from net assets
without donor restrictions, net assets for investment consideration and the Manchester
CAC development project.
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024
(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2023)

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Net Assets (Continued)

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some
donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the
passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions
are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in
perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when
the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was
restricted has been fulfilled, or both. The Organization recognizes revenue from
contributions and grants that were initially conditional, which became unconditional with
restrictions during the reporting period, and for which those restrictions were met during
the reporting period, as net assets without donor restrictions.

Revenue Recognition

A portion of the Organization's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable contracts and
grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of
allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the
Organization has incurred expenditures or met performance requirements in compliance with
specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying
expenditures or meeting performance obligations are reported as refundable advances in the
statement of financial position.

Contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other assets, an unconditional promise
to give, or a notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional promises to give, that
is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier, and a right of return, are not
recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been substantially met.

Special events revenue is comprised of an exchange element based upon the direct benefits
donors receive and a contribution element for the difference. Special events revenue is
recognized equal to the fair value of direct benefits to donors when the special event takes
place. The contribution element of special event revenue is recognized immediately, unless
there is a right of return if the special event does not take place.
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024
(with summarized comparative totalsfor the year ended June 30, 2023)

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Revenue from training and education programs is recognized at a point in time when the
performance obligations of providing the services is met. The performance obligation of
delivering training and education is simultaneously received and consumed by the registrants;
therefore, the revenue is recognized when the program occurs. Amounts received in advance
are deferred and are reported as contract liabilities until the performance obligation of
providing those services is met.

Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services, administration, and
fundraising and development activities; however, the financial statements do not reflect the
value of these contributed services because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed by
GAAP. GAAP allows recognition of contributed services only if (a) the services create or
enhance nonfinancial assets, or (b) the services would have been purchased if not provided by
contribution, require specialized skills, and are provided by individuals possessing those skills.
Donated professional services are recorded at the respective fair value of the services received.
Contributed goods are recorded at fair value at the date of donation and as expenses when
placed in service or distributed.

Functional Alloca tion of Expenses

The costs of providing the Organization's various programs and activities have been summa
rized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses
presents the natural classification detail of expenses by function. Certain categories of expenses
are attributed to more than one program or supporting function. Accordingly, certain costs have
been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited on a reasonable basis
that is consistently applied. Expenses that relate solely to the functional categories are directly
charged, however, there are certain expenses that are allocated. Personnel expenses, including
salaries and wages, employee benefits, and payroll taxes, and certain insurances are allocated
based on time and effort estimates. Occupancy, utilities, depreciation on certain assets, and
certain insurance costs are allocated on a square footage basis.

13



GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024
(with summarized comparative totalsfor the year ended June 30, 2023)

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income Taxes

The Organization has been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") as exempt
from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code ("IRC") Section 501(a) as an
organization described in IRC Section 501(c)(3), qualifies for charitable contribution
deductions, and has been determined not to be a private foundation. The Organization is
annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with
the IRS. In addition, the Organization is subject to income tax on net income that is derived
from business activities that are unrelated to its exempt purpose.

The Organization accounts for uncertain tax provisions under Financial Accounting Standards
Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 740, Income Taxes, which
provides a framework for how entities should recognize, measure, present, and disclose
uncertain tax positions in their financial statements. The Organization may recognize the tax
benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will
be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the
position. Management has reviewed the Organization's reporting and believes they have not
taken tax positions that are more likely than not to be determined to be incorrect by the IRS
and, therefore, no adjustments or disclosures are required. The Organization is subject to
routine audits by taxing jurisdictions; however, there are currently no audits for any tax periods
pending or in progress.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAA? requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual amounts may
differ from those estimates.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash with financial institutions believed to be
creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed insurance limits. To date, no losses
have been experienced in any of these accounts. Credit risk associated with receivables is
considered to be limited due to high historical collection rates. Investments are currently
monitored by the Board of Directors. Although the fair value of investments are subject to
fluctuation on a year-to-year basis, the Board of Directors believes that its investment policies
and guidelines are prudent for the long-term welfare of the Organization.
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024
(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2023)

Note 3 - Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions
limiting their use, within one year of the date of the statement of financial position, were
comprised of the following at June 30, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,148,890 $ 1,507,676
Grants receivable 645,855 269,400

Contributions receivable 68,732 52,992
Investments 13,561 15,155

Total financial assets 1,877,038 1,845,223

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:
Contributions receivable in more than one year ~ (20,000)
Board-designated reserves (433,246) (433,246)

Financial assets available to meet

general expenditures over the next year $ 1,443,792 $ 1,391,977

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its available funds.
In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next year, the
Organization operates with a budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover
general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources.

Note 4 - Contributions Receivable

Contributions receivable were estimated to be collected as follows at June 30,2024 and 2023:

2024 2023

Within one year
Two to five years

$ 68,732 $ 32,992
~ 20,000

$ 68,732 $ 52,992

No discount was applied to unconditional contributions receivable at June 30,2024 and 2023,
since it was determined to be immaterial.
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024
(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2023)

Note 5 - Investments And Fair Value Measurements

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the financial statements. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the principal, or most advantageous, market at the measurement date under
current market conditions regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly to the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including
assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are
inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability
based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable
inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best information
available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as follows:

• Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that are accessible at the measurement date.

• Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets
in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for
the asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

•  Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations, inputs are
developed using the best information available in the circumstances.

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be
categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety at the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the
lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. Assessing the significance of a
particular input to entire measurement requires judgment, taking into account factors specific
to the asset or liability. The categorization of an asset or liability within the hierarchy is based
upon the pricing transparency of the asset or liability and does not necessarily correspond to
the assessment of the quality, risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or liability.

Investment assets are classified within Level 1 because they are comprised of various
instruments with readily determinable and quoted fair values based on daily redemption values.
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024
(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2023)

Note 5 - Investments And Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The following table presents the Organization's assets measured at fair value on a recurring
basis at June 30,2024:

_ 2024
Total Level 1

Assets:

Investments:

Common stock

Exchange traded funds

Total assets at fair value $ 13,561 $ 13,561 $ - $

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

$  9,091 $  9,091 $ $

4,470 4,470 - ~

The following table presents the Organization's assets measured at fair value on a recurring
basis at June 30, 2023:

2023

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets:

Investments:

Common stock $ 15,155 $ 15,155 $ $

Total assets at fair value $ 15,155 $ 15,155 $ $

Interest and dividends and net unrealized gains (losses) on investments are reflected in the
accompanying statement of activities as investment income, net.

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the value of investments
will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported
in the statement of financial position and the statement of activities.
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024
(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2023)

Note 6 - Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net was comprised of the following at June 30,2024 and 2023:

2024 2023

Land $  417,400 $  15,500

Buildings and improvements 2,173,877 829,637

Leasehold improvements 53,500 53,500

Furniture and equipment 252,599 99,340

Software 112,310 112,310

3,009,686 1,110,287

Less accumulated depreciation (310,853) (241,088)

$ 2,698,833 $  869,199

Depreciation expense totaled $79,067 and $67,775 for the years ended June 30,2024 and 2023,
respectively.

Note 7-Leases

The Organization rents property and equipment under non-cancelable operating lease
agreements with monthly payments ranging from $170 to $3,780. The leases expire at various
dates through June 2026.

While all agreements provide minimum lease payments, some include payments adjusted for
maintenance charges. Variable payments are not determinable at the lease commencement and
are not included in the measurement of lease assets and liabilities. The lease agreements do not
include any material residual value guarantees or restrictive covenants.
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024

(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2023)

Note 7 - Leases (Continued)

The components of operating lease expense that are included in the statement of activities for
the years ended June 30,2024 and 2023 were as follows:

2024 2023

Fixed lease cost $ 94,411 $ 111,982

Variable lease cost 18,787 1,135

Total lease cost $ 113,198 $ 113,117

During the years ended June 30,2024 and 2023, the Organization had the following cash and
non-cash activities related to operating leases:

2024 2023
Cash paid for amounts included in the
measurement of lease liabilities:

Operating cash flows for operating leases $ 94,411 $ 111,982

Weighted average lease term and discount rate at June 30,2024 and 2023, were as follows:

2024 2023

Wei^ted average remaining lease term (years) 1.22 1.97
Wei^ted average discount rate 2.36% 2.06%

Future payments due under operating leases as of June 30,2024, were as follows for the year
ending June 30:

Year ending June 30, Amount

2025 $ 67,875

2026 16,777
Total lease payments 84,652

Less inputed interest

Present value of lease liabilities ^ 83,193
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024
(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2023)

Note 8 - Net Assets

NetAssets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets without donor restrictions include Board-designated net assets which may be
accessed only with prior approval of the Board. Board-designated net assets at June 30, 2024
and 2023 were designated for the following purposes;

2024 2023

Investment consideration

Manchester CAC development project
$ 394,000 $  394,000

39,246 39,246

$ 433,246 $  433,246

NetAssets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions were comprised of the following at June 30, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023

Time and purpose restricted:

Time restrictions $  20,000 $  40,000

Restricted for Nashua CAC 250 9,000

Restricted for Manchester CAC 250 9,000

Restricted for Laconia CAC 10 8,760

Restricted for Keene CAC "
8,750

Restricted for behavioral health services 50,000 —

$  70,510 S  75,510

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted
purpose or the occurrence of the passage of time as follows for the years ended June 30,2024
and 2023:

2024 2023

Expiration of time restrictions

Satisfection ofpurpose restrictions
$ 20,000 $ 20,000

62,500 62,630

$ 82,500 $ 82,630
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024
(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2023)

Note 9 - Grants

The Organization has been awarded cost-reimbursable grants of $1,641,742 and $73,065 that
have not been recognized as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, because qualifying
expenditures have not yet been incurred. Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to
independent audit under the Office of Management and Budget's Uniform Guidance, and
review by grantor agencies. This review could result in the disallowance of expenditures under
the terms of the grant or reductions of future grant funds. Based on prior experience, the
Organization's management believes that costs ultimately disallowed, if any, would not
materially affect the financial position of the Organization.

Due to the federal government's review and potential restructuring of federal funding
priorities, there is uncertainty regarding the continuation and amount of future funding from
federal sources. The Organization is monitoring policy developments and may need to explore
alternative funding sources to mitigate potential impacts.

Note 10 - Commitments and Contingencies

ContingentLiability

In fiscal year 2017, the New Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority
("CDFA") awarded $325,000 in state tax credits to be used by the Organization to support the
renovation and expansion of the Organization's Greater Lakes Child Advocacy Center in
Laconia, New Hampshire. Under this program, the Organization received 80% or $260,000.
The CDFA requires a performance mortgage on the project property, up to the net amount of
the funding.

The Organization, or another nonprofit entity approved by the CDF A, must remain in
ownership of the property for a period of ten years from the contract start date. Additional
requirements include adequate insurance coverage and timely payment of all taxes and
assessments. The CDFA performance mortgage will self-amortize over 10 years. If the
Organization does not meet all requirements of the agreement, the unamortized balance will
be immediately due and payable to the CDFA.
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024

(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2023)

Note 10 - Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Contingent LiABiirrY (Continued)

In fiscal year 2018, the CDFA awarded $455,000 in Community Development Block Grant
Funds ("CDBG") to the County of Belknap, New Hampshire (the "County"), $430,000 of
which was passed through to the Organization. The grant funds were used to support the
renovation and expansion of the Organization's Greater Lakes Child Advocacy Center in
Laconia, New Hampshire. The CDFA requires a mortgage deed in the amount of $430,000 on
the property that self-amortizes over 20 years. The mortgage deed, granted by the Organization
to the County, requires the provision of services benefit a minimum of 76% low- and moderate-
income persons, that the project be completed in accordance with the contract, and that the
property remain in the ownership of the Organization, or another nonprofit entity approved by
the County, for a period of at least 20 years from the contract start date.

Upon default of these conditions, the County shall have the right, on behalf of the CDFA, to
recover the unamortized balance expended on the project. Unless previously discharged by the
County, the mortgage deed will be void and automatically terminate after 20 years.

In fiscal year 2024, the CDFA awarded $750,000 in state tax credits to be used by the
Organization to support the renovation of the Organization's Manchester Child Advocacy
Center in Manchester, New Hampshire. Under this program, the Organization will receive 80%
or $600,000 over a two-year period. As of June 30, 2024, the Organization is still in process
of selling the tax credits, and as a result, has not met the conditions to recognize the revenue.
The CDFA requires a performance mortgage on the project property, up to the net amount of
the funding. The Organization, or another nonprofit entity approved by the CDFA, must remain
in ownership of the property for a period of ten years from the contract start date. Additional
requirements include adequate insurance coverage and timely payment of all taxes and
assessments. The CDFA performance mortgage will self-amortize over 10 years. If the
Organization does not meet all requirements of the agreement, the unamortized balance will
be immediately due and payable to the CDFA.

Note 11 - Retirement Plan

The Organization provides a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section 403(b) of the
IRC. All employees are eligible to participate in the plan on their first day of employment as
long as they work 20 or more hours a week. The Organization does not contribute to the plan.
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024
(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2023)

Note II - Retirement Plan (Continued)

In June 2024, the Organization opened a 401 (k) plan covering all employees who meet the
eligibility requirements. The Organization's contributions to the plan are discretionary and are
determined by the Board of Directors. During the year ended June 30,2024, the Organization
contributed $157,500, evenly distributed to all eligible employees, as a one-time kickstart to
the plan.

Note 12 - Concentration of Risk

A material part of the Organization's revenue is dependent upon government sources, the loss
of which would have a materially adverse effect on the Organization. During the years ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023, the State of New Hampshire accounted for 40% and 43%,
respectively, of total revenues.

During the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, funding from Hillsborough County, New
Hampshire accounted for 39% and 11%, respectively, of total revenues.

During the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, funding from one foundation accounted for
0% and 18%, respectively, of total revenues.

Note 13 - Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 27,2025, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

In November 2024, the Organization extended its Bedford administrative office lease for 10
months, setting the new expiration date to October 31,2025.

In February 2025, the Organization extended its Manchester GAG lease for 7 months, setting
the new expiration date to December 31, 2025.

There were no other events identified that required recognition or disclosure in these financial
statements.
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

SCHEDULE OF PROGRAM EXPENSES BY CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Hillsborough Hillsborough Affiliated

Cheshire Belknap County County Child Advocacy

County County North South Centers Total

Personnel expense;
Salaries and wages $  231,152 $  202,326 $  260,440 $  191,522 $  279,004 $ 1,164,444

Payroll taxes 18,134 15,854 20,413 15,095 22,003 91,499

Employee benefits 53,215 46,526 59,904 44,296 64,572 268,513

Contracted services:

Marketing 52 52 52 52 364 572

Other 3,105 1,744 7,720 3,880 5,012 21,461

Dues and subscriptions 4,450 4,461 5,188 3,649 3,294 21,042

Equipment, repairs, and maintenance 6,281 19,821 28,120 4,185 1,522 59,929

Grants — — - -- 281,852 281,852

Insurance 2,296 5,083 4,063 2,322 1,072 14,836

Meetings 1,291 1,793 1,385 1,081 535 6,085

Miscellaneous 369 121 371 46 319 1,226

Occupancy 17,806 1,788 42,166 29,148 12,516 103,424

Office expenses 6,826 17,844 8,693 3,455 4,738 41,556

Staff development 6,199 7,381 7,142 3,807 14,646 ,  39,175

Supplies 1,774 1,773 1,774 1,773 12,415 19,509

Telephone and internet 6,217 7,192 5,651 6,397 1,872 27,329

Travel 3,636 4,677 4,959 3,425 4,619 21,316

Utilities 8,950 8,926 5,258 5,603 2,402 31,139

Total Expenses Before Depreciation
and Administrative Expenses Allocation

Depreciation

Administrative expenses allocation

Total Expenses

371,753

4,825

92,120

347,362

28,345

91,906

463,299

4,893

114,530

319,736

5,025

79,444

712,757

31,101

181,964

2,214,907

74,189

559,964

468,698 $ 467,613 $ 582,722 $ 404,205 $ 925,822 $ 2,849,060

See independent auditors'report on supplementary information.
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Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and

on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditins Standards

To the Board of Directors

Granite State Children's Alliance

Bedford, NH

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
("GAAS") and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States {"Government Auditing Standards"), the financial statements of
Granite State Children's Alliance (the "Organization"), which comprise the statement of financial position as of
June 30,2024, and the related statements of activities, flmctional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements (collectively referred to as the "financial statements"), and have
issued our report thereon dated March 27,2025.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Entity's financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with govemance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that
were not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

CBIZCPAsP-C.
CBIZ CPAs P.O.

Merrimack, NH

March 27, 2025
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v_ CBIZ CPAs P.C.

^CBIZCPAs 9 Executive Park Drive
Suite 100

Merrimack, NH 03054

P: 603.882.11U

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program;

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on Schedule of Expenditures

of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Directors

Granite State Children's Alliance

Bedford, NH

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Granite State Children's Alliance's (the "Organization") compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the Organization's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2024. The Organization's
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs.

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards); and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those
standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of
Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our
audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization's compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above.
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Responsibilities ofManagementfor Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the Organization's federal
programs.

Auditors'Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material, noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the Organization's
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and,
therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards,
and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on
compliance about the Organization's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risfe. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the Organization's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of the Organization's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over
compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a'deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control
over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the Organization as of and for the year ended June 30,2024, and have
issued our report thereon dated March 27, 2025, which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial
statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In
our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

C8IZ CPAc P-C-

CBIZ CPAs P.O.

Merrimack, NH

March 27, 2025
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024

Federal Agency
Cluster

Pass throu^ Agency

Program Title

Federal

AL

Number

Pass Through
Identifying

Number

Federal Throi# to

Expenditures Subrecipients

U.S. Department ofHousing and Urban Development
CDBG - EntMement Grants Cluster

Passed Through City of Manchester, New Hampshire
Community Devdopmeirt Block Grants/Entitlement Grants

Passed Through City ofNashua, New Hampshire
COVID-19 - Community Development Btock Grants/Entitlement Grants

Total CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

U.S. Department of Justice
Direct Federal Program

Congresskmally Recommended Awards

Passed Through National Children's Alliance
Improvmgthe Investi^tion and Prosecution of Child Abuse
and the Regional and Local Children's Advocacy Centers

Passed Through City ofNashua, New Hampshire

Equiable Sharing Program

Total II.S. Department of Justice

U.S. Department of Treasury
Passed Through State of New Hampshire Department of Justice

COVID-19 Coronavinis State arrd Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

Passed Through County of Hillsborough, New Hampshire

COVID-19 Coronavinis Slate and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

Total COVID-19 Coronavius Stale and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

Total U.S. Department of Treasmy

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed Through State ofNew Hampshire Department ofJustice

ChDdreif s Justice Grants to States

Total ChJdreris Justice Grants to States

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

14.218 210324 $  11,000 $

14.218 Unknown 8,252

19,252

19,252 —

16.753 N/A 179,803
-

16.758 BEDF-NH-CHCORE23 106,223
~

16.922 Unknown 10,000

296,026 __

21.027 2024ARPVS17 1,136,115 201,316

21.027 4140PHl.n24051 1,749,212

2,885,327

2,885,327

201,316

201,316

93.643 2023CJA02 15,487

15,487

15,487

$ 3,216,092 $ 201,316

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024

Note I - Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") includes the
federal award activity of Granite State Children's Alliance (the "Organization") under
programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30,2024. The information in the
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of the Organization, it is not intended to and does not present
the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Note 3 - De Minimis Cost Rate

The Organization has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed
under the Uniform Guidance.

Note 4 - Donated Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) (Unaudited)

During fiscal year 2024, the Organization did not receive donated PPE from federal sources.
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report issued on whether the financial
statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP:

Internal control over financial reporting:

• Material weakness(es) identified?

•  Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal A wards

Internal control over major federal programs:

• Material weakness(es) identified?

•  Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for
major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major federal programs:

Name of Federal Program or Cl uster

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Unmodified

Yes

Yes

/ No

Yes

f None reported

y No

Yes

Yes

y No

y None reported

Unmodified

Yes y No

Assistance Listing NuMBERfs)

21.027

$750,000

y Yes No
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024

Section H - FiNANaAL Statement Findings

None.

Section III - Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs

None.

Section FV - Schedule of Prior Year Findings

There were no findings in the prior year.
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i IRS Departmem of lha TreaaWyInternal Revenue Servlee

005739

Cincinhati Service Center

CINCINNATI OH A5999-0058

In reply refer to: 02565219A<i

Har. 16, 2020 LTR AI68C 0

74-5186259 000000 00

00014152

BODC; IE

THE SRANITE STATE CHILDRENS

ALLIANCE

H JOY BARRETT

72 S RIVER RD STE 202

BEDFORD NH 0311D

Employer ID number:
Form 990 required:

Dear Taxpayer;

74-3186259

Yes

We're responding to your request dated Har. 09, 2020, about your
tax-exempt status.

We issued you a determination letter in October 2006, recognizing
you as tax-exempt under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(c)
(5) .

We also show you're not a private foundation as defined under IRC
Section 509(a) because you're described in IRC Sections 5D9(a)(l) and
17D(b)(1)(A)(vi).

Donors can deduct contributions they make to you as provided in IRC
Section 170. You're also qualified to receive tax deductible bequests,
legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts under IRC Sections 2055, 2106,
and 2522.

In the heading of this letter, we indicated whether you must file an
annual information return. If you're required to file a return, you
must file one of the following by the 15th day of the 5th month after
the end of your annual accounting period:

- Form 990, Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
- Form 990EZ, Short Form Return of Organization Exempt From Income

Tax

- Form 990-N, Electronic Notice (e-Postcard) for Tax-Exempt
Organizations Not Required to File Form 990 or Form 990-EZ

- Form 990-PFi Return of Private Foundation or Section 4947(a)(1)

Trust Treated as Private Foundation

According to IRC Section 6053Cj), if you don't file a required annual
information return or notice for 3 consecutive years, we'll revoke

your tax-exempt status on the due date of the 3rd required return or
notice.

You can get IRS forms or publications you need from our website at
www.irs.gov/forms-pubs or by calling 800-TAX-FORM (800-829-3676).

If you have questions, call 877-829-5500 between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m..
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A'^^iGranite State
/-"Children's Alliance"

New Hampshire's Network of
*  Child Advocacy Cenlers

Board of Directors FY2026

Executive Committee:

Dan Bennett 1 Chairman of the Board | NH Automobile Dealers Association

Nick Abramson | Immediate Past Chairman | Abramson, Brown & Dugan, PA

Jarad Vartanian | Vice Chairman/Treasurer | Vachon Clukay and Company

Cptn. Patrick Hannon | Secretary ( Nashua Police Department

Members:

Cathy Brittis | The CAC of Grafton/Suilivan County at OHMC

Kelly Cohen | Cohen Closing & Title

Andy Crews i Crews Holdings

Dr. Matthew Dayno j Elliot Health System

Lt. Nick Georgoulis | Manchester Police Department

Cptn. Matthew Larochelle | Manchester Police Department

Brad Russ | National Criminal Justice Training Center

Scott Spradling | Spradling Group

Kristin Vartanian | Nixon Peabody

Dr, Judah Weathers | Elliot Health System



^te Key Personnel
1;-Cnuaren s Alliance tvjme,

New Hampshire's Network of
* vi CWIdAdvtKacy Centers

Key Personnel responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the VOCA agreement

Name Title Annual Salary

Joy Barrett Chief Executive Officer $161,000.00

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Granite State Children's Alliance provides visionary leadership and
strategic oversight for a statewide network of Child Advocacy Centers (CACs), including the Hillsborough
County CACs (Nashua and Manchesterf the Monadnock Region CAC (Keene), and the Greater Lakes CAC
(Laconia). In addition, the CEO oversees the operations of the New Hampshire Chapter, which supports and
represents the broader network of CACs across the state.

This role is responsible for the overall administration, operational excellence, and financial sustainability of
the organization. The CEO drives long-term strategic planning and leads the development and expansion of
services to ensure that children and families throughout New Hampshire have access to high-quality,
trauma-informed care and advocacy.

Nicole Ledoux Chief Program Officer $106,090.00

The Chief Program Officer (CPO) plays a vital leadership role in strengthening the quality and consistency of
victim services across New Hampshire's network of Child Advocacy Centers (CACs) and Multidisciplinary
Teams (MDTs). This position collaborates with local teams to identify regional service gaps, develop
actionable plans for improvement, and support the implementation of evidence-based practices.
With a steadfast focus on victim-centered, trauma-informed care, the CPO ensures that forensic
interviewing and coordinated response services meet the complex needs of children impacted by sexual and
physical abuse—empowering them to heal, survive, and thrive.
The CPO also oversees the Granite State Children's Alliance Behavioral Health Program and supervises

specialized medical examination services provided on-site at two CAC locations. Through this role, the CPO
ensures that high-quality, compassionate, and comprehensive care is delivered consistently across the state.

All other Personnel listed In die grant

have been included in the materials

provided in the grant application

(Resumes and Job Descriptions)



Amy-Lynn Sullivan

NCACand ChlkffimtProtocoI trained Forensic Intervkswer wkh over20years of InlcivfewIng end
Investigative experience. Over1300 forenslclntervkwicompicted.CoBaboratJvc mutlt-dlsdptinary team

memlser and (adttatof with exoelent commtmkatkm sicis and unwaverlns passion.

PROFESStONAL WORK EXPBtlEWCE

Program Cooidlnator/Foransicimerviewer August SKns-present
Child Advocacy Center of HHIstsmruih County, Granite State Chtldren's Alliance, Manchester, NH

•  PerformallrespomlbHI^of Forensfctntervfewerwhlleoverseeing CACdaSy operations and
steff.

• Mahtain NCACACsccredKatlonstandards. As^mbie and reportclentdemographksfor
quarterly stdsmlalim to Oty hnprovement ProgrwtiAlUD and represent CACat annual
budgetary fneettngs.

•  Identify cases ai^roprtate for and faclHtate nwrnthty Case ResAewrwith MOT members. Develop
and present trainings to MuttfdbdpBnaryTeam, educators, and
other ehfti-htdng profasdonab regarding CAC mode! and best practice.

• Collaborate with Investigative age ncles (17 btw enforcement agendas), prosecution, chHd
protecdon (4 district offices), medical and mental health professionals to respond effectiveiy
arul effkdentty to alegadonsof chfld maltreatment.

a  Remain up to data on evoMtqi forerulc htertriewbtg research end chWhood trauma dynamics
through condnutng education wid targeted tiahilng.

Forensic Inttiviewer August idnft-August 2018
dslld Advocacy Center of HHIsborou^ County, Granfte State CMIdren's AJtiance, MMchester, N H

•  Conduct forensic htteiviews of chldren, teens, and vtAtendlrie edub when abuse b suspected
ora crime has been wltne$Md,y$e leiearcMjased protocol (NCAC) and best practice
techniques wtd maintainchM focused, victim centered envfronment In writWs to best eBdt
hiformatton. Participate In statewide Peer Review mectinp.

•  FadJRate meetings before and after each Interview with the Multidlsc^llnary Team as weH as
with the non>offendlng careipver. Goltaborate wtti MOT men^rs to ensiee id needs and
eonoeim are addrecced. Enterrasults end next steps of the Interview pmcets Into NCATrak

database. Matce refenals to counselne and spedalinid medial fedDlles.
• Maintain worhlim reiaticmshlps wHh Investigative agendes, eduators and diad-centered

profetskmak tiwough outrtachand eduation.



Qdtd Protectlvt Sktrvtces Worlwr Aof^t Z014'Augu$t 2016
State of New H ampsf^*; DMtion of CWIdraiv Youth und PMnfllis

•  nespoodedto,irw8stisated,indas$e«iedfeportso{sus{}c€t«dchldat)u$t and neglect. Worlced
toteboratlvely with law enftwcement and lodalservfce ̂ ndes to further Investigations
punuantto N H AttorMy Qeneral Protocd.

• Worked with famBei to eiwire the safety of cMdren through removal and placement, active
safety planning or in>home lervfces. Worked with famfies usbig Sckition Based Casework to
•mure ongoing safet/. Beferred famies to agendes and services to essltl them ht correcdng
and malntalnh^g the safety #id weB- being of their farriBy and home.

• Maintained records In statewide database detaling idl efforts, cbntads end acttero completed
during assessments. Presented Division's case for action rtirotigh cout testimony and
proceerhngs. Mentored new workers as needed.

Investigator June 3000-May 20O3; Dec 2005-Juny 2013
New Hampshire Public Defender

•  Investlgatedcslmlnalcnesfroropre-arralgnmenttopost sentencing. Located, Interviewed, mtd
subpoenaed witnesses for court proceedings, fathered and maintained records, documented
hrformatiofl teamed In Irmrtlgabon and intervtews hpra^ttcutieys, photographed scenes artd
tesdfled to fbidtegs In court

• Worked (tents pr»>and ttost^trteil forndtif^tion purpcuses, facffitatSng apirtcadons to and
errtryteto courtmaft^tedssAstonce abuse programs.Gathered famlbland sodalhbtories for
sentencing phase of cases.

• Mentored newlnvest]gat(KS»Ki supervtecd undergraduate level interns.

EDUCATION

Master of Science; Psydrobgy-.tldteandAdoiescsntDevctopment
Southern New Hampshtee University

Bacheke of Science; Psychology vdth Mbwr In Justice Studies
Ufdverslty of Hew Hampshire

SPtOAUZEOSNlUS

•  Trained in forensiclnteivlewlng of todhrlduals wfth disabilttes, presenting evidence durbtg
forensic intervtews, tedrncdogyfadRtated crtenes, and sexual mmmerdafiratlon and exploitation
cases

•  leaders!^ and training expertenre to Indude lupendrtng and ment(Mlng new Interviewers and
tnterrn, providing trihtng toiMd-laidng profestbnals and tradtl-dtscblnary team members,
am) prese nbng to undergraduate students b a classroom setting (Southe m NK University and
Plymouth State UntvenKy)



CmMM^Mamuo

OWECnVEl
Ulflize my bIBngual aofl ForeTOfc Ixflctvtewlng iT® p ilttuW-disdj^iiy toitt wactriber {n an
wtailMjed chM advocaiy center (n order to idtow cWttdren an opportwdty to mxmnt <hdr
experteaces throogh ftiteMcaDy sound waiversattaM oooir in a aon-threatening and
wdconflng envbonment

Ewcsamonj

Bachelot^s Degree In Fsyckolo|y.trnh?a'S!ty etfMatefeMPres^elsk, ME
M aster's Degree in Justice Stc^es^ Dnivet^ rf New Hany»ltb«i^ Durham, NH

KXPSaiKNCES

4/>H38<M5- Ml»W>MOC3<Riral0W<nunAim>e!ACTCSBTO«/OlMkK?TBShM.TBCnUJt»RISlrtl
Prmmt

ftSromStiSor/ltiSSri!!^^ fm couda^ng
child torensle iatfsrvlerws and oreatifl| utilimtion rejports of cbM forensic
mtena'ews for Cheshire Coun^ MuW-cBjKdpHiuay barn. Worik In Goijanction
^th local law enforconeat ageiudes, (iiM pntective aerrices mntera,
assistant eoiwty attorney, a^vk^adrocateeto ensntethatebQdnm are
provided with qualify child forensfo intervfewr services in a cconfortahle and
boiHhreateitng abc^here. Program Oooidinator vraAm in coqlundion

July 2009 ft2*orMMi£R|®^|NWh|-OwraEOTYOw
PHHHjjjHHjjjH
Yontn Kenrtces Uoumelor - Responsible tor parfermfng outreiu^ ar^
providing dirert-cwre servicp at Terfooa ccRnnranffy s^tiu^ in order to
identlfyiieed and plan servicai to at-iiik youth. Work in cotduncticm with
vaiioQS aodd scrvfcc agencies indading the Salvation Army, the Boys &
Gills dob, the Mandieater PcJfce AlWctic league, and the Gr«iter
Manchiarter Fandfy YMCA. IDuriilg schod year perform ooUeadi at Central
JHlgh Sdjod In order to provide interwmtioa for stnjqggliag students
identified hy sdbool tdministraton. PRIME for life Akohol end Drag
Education Course Instructor Provide hi-tt^ntl services to SpenUh speaking
famJUes, and Moderator for Anger Managemmit court diversion group.

AJwUsKKiB- OKEATan MaWtMESTtR YMI
My aooy ^[pBBi^pilip|p|pi||Bi_wMi-- „ _ "Isforco4ead!ngadventora

$irrnTn7ijiT!tirimtfT*:TrTi

adfvitleaforr^stered cmmpeni d^g advetdnie ciump.Acthdtiea Induded;
Hii^l, Moum^ Mdng, C^oeing / Ksyakfog. Rodk (^nhhig. Also
roiTOnsllde for teacMng baiedc indoor rode dlnbfi^s ddHs, and responsible for
fiOfag In fortransiHstittlon dutfoi.



CW.2001-
Jon-aooS

KH NtHffll.lwfc -MtPWiMf SlIMUTMl

bed teinpomy mddentia! pn^nm for coart invdred adolwcent boys
referred tib Pfrisfon of JcvenOe aM Justice iSeviccs. Madntaiiied
progrwi Bcetiimre ftran Bmreati of ChBd CJare licensing and Deimrtment of
j^ucatkas. JteiipQiudbk! for Mrbig, trahiiag, sehedulkig, supervlsk»> end
Itoekgrouiid ehbks of twe3it)HR\« staff lumbers.

AiJ^.aooo-
oa.imt

to and dcvdopntetrt of alteimate site
after ediod program for middle scbod! students. RwponMWe for luring and
troifllng staff Be^oped adiednk of acthrftto for awstnbcre. Midntsined
contact irfth jarents lepirdiii^ pn^pten of members. Developed Power
Computer center. Snpeivmed mmitors daring jat^ram boors^ and
maintaining dailtf record of attendanee.

Deoippd-
Aisg.iooo

adhering to prc^tn sdiednlo and
ox>rdinating duties for direct care liaff at a fifteen b^ temporary re^drntial
program for coart involved a^idescent boys nJmed by the Division of
Jurenlte and Jnstios Services. Ri^>ons!b|!ittes Inrtud^ dacamentetkm of
sendees and supen^ten of staff, and Intervening during crisis altuation.

References Avatlable Upon Request



My development was influenced by being a part of a law enforcement family and working directly with families
and children in need of support. 1 am highly organized, with disciplined time management skills. I work well with

others through strong communication skills and open-mindedness.

EDUCATION

GRADUATION. MAY 2019
BA IN CRIMINAL JUSTICE | MINOR IN SOCIOLOGY, PLYMOUTH STATE UNIVERSITY

I graduated Magna Cum l.audc, with an overall GPA of 3.61,1 excelled in classes related to the criminal justice and
sociology fields. My interest is due to my desire to work directly with children and families who are in need of support
and guidance during the challenging times Ihcy may face.

EXPERIENCE

APRIL 2024-CURRENT

FORENSIC INTERVIEWER, GRANITE STATE aHLDREN'S ALLIANCE
In my curreni role as a forensic inlctview, I conduct interviews on children who are victims or witnesses of abuse,

neglect, or violence in a wnsitive, non-leading, and child-friendly manner. My role within the multidisciplinary team
(MDT) is to collaborate with law enforcement, child protective services and the county attorney's oflice to ensure
accurate and thorough investigation.

AliGUST 2022- APRIL 2024

STUDENT OUTREACH COORDINATOR, LACONIA SCHOOL DISTRICT

My current position as a Student Outreach Coordinator allows me to work directly with students and their femilies who
arc in need of support and services, both at school and at home. My current employment has given me the opportunity
to work closely with students, creating positive relation^ips. Within my role 1 conduct home visits to connect with
families within our disttict, jmviding resources and support as needed.

MAY 2019- AUGUST 2022

ASSESSMENT, THE DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH AND FAMIIIES1 LACONIA & CONCORD, NH

My position as a Child Protective Service Worker (CPSW) has alltrwcd me to work directly in the field with families
and children in need of support and services. My employment taught mc skills on how to effectively assess abuse and
neglect within a home. During my time with Division, I worked closely with local law enforcement, the Child
Advocacy Centers, local resources and our court system.

JANUARY 2019- MAY 2019

INTERNSHIP, CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER | LACONIA,NH

Throughout my internship I was able to learn and observe how the multidisciplinary team functions. I was also given
the opportunity to observe forensic interviews. My time with the CAC gave me skills to effectively and appropriately
speak with children.

SKILLS

• Reliable • Case management

• Organized • Active listener
• Strong critics! thinking skills



l»ft(»>iSSIOAUU.MlLB

•  ItgHV mottvated, resilb^rVen perfonrwit wMi s^nVkant ej<pertena8 with sddescerits, youth
det«bpin;in, ]uvenle|ustke,^nd axiit proceedings,

• Adaptli^, receptlse tearner who thrtves at Interpersonai communkation, ronflki resoiudoi%
leamwotil^aQd publlcipeekini.

•  Peh8verant,resourcehti8(d)feverwdtf) strong verbal artd wrrlttert commtinicedon skMs vidto
flotaisheswhen molti-taddng and wortdng wfth others.

SOUCATIOSI
May2t)l>>

gschatorof Scktncs: Do^ Degree 1ft Psydhftbgy and Criminal Justice & Dknlmrfogy
Magna Cum Uude:3.86 GPA
Deokln Unlvenlty Geelen{f - Vfetorta, Austraia 2014
Study Abroad Program

pROPsstnoNAi ovenviEw

Granite State €MUren*aAlllame Forensklnteivfewer-' HFkl^reugh County NH April 20.' 3 to pri",c>nl
• ForensfctatervlewerrttheChJW Advocacy Center of HfcboroughCotmty
• Conduct deveiopmert^ly sensitive and tegaHy^wod bterviews.forthe purpose of gatheiing

hK:U3l Infonnation fmnft children reg^dlng abtue or expasura to violtnoa for an imK»st%atk>n.
a Actively partiripate fen and stay up to date on traknk^i, weblnars, ronferenms, «ftd peer-

revbwed research b order to mabteh ronnpetency, neutiaBty, and pract!ce>lnfcHnmed
techniques during interdem.

• Bigagewlth otherforenslcMierdewsdurtngfrequentPeerRevlew meethigsln orderto toceive
and prmdde f eedbadg suggestions, and ways to Improve (ntervkw terhniqoea.

e  Fadliate muWlsdpfciaivteam weelbgs and monthly Case Reidews with memtiers erf tNs
bwesdgatbn forthe purposes of reiaylr^ pertinent biformatbn, strateglzlng effedlve
bwstigatlve proadures/ end WomtlRg die team members of bwestfeatlve deielopnwnts.

tMvls}onforChl}4mVoathatntfanM^Sof$alWofk»>- Hashua,NH 20I9toKi22
e ChlH Protective Services W«ker Hi- Assessment and CertWed Mentor

e hvvesttgated totmrnstrf abuse and nei^ctfiivcMigcNidronby Inteivlewing dildren, famBes
and ooRatetab, such m do^orsi mnitsl heaMi prefe»donab, bid idtooi Staff.

« Mahtainedprofeblonaksmand proved support whlewoddngwlth fatrifos of varyligsocio-
ecoiomfcstatuses, ethrtftfes, and badtgrounds.

• CoBaberated with femlis, few enfortomerrt, and oommunRy supports to eruure the safety and
wefceingof children by corgjosbg Actton and Safety Pbnsifadlltitlng engagement wito
community retoitrces, and offerfng educated recommenda^ns «id referrai.

« Oocumentedlntendews and oonlaicts, prepared c»uit reports and smdavts, ̂ d petkions, and
formuisted safety plans for bmHei.

« Actively partickiated in nMilttilsc^&tiayteam meethtpi and spedakied focusgroupi to provide
constnictlva feedb»ckf«g«ilin| mm practice and poQcy to supervbora,flf Id admlnldrators, and
the Of ̂  of the Obnd Ad^xate.

Smunu Yoath Smhxs CanterYouth taame^H -Mcndmter,NH »J17 to 2COO

•  Youth counselor end rase ftttnagerforjuvenies wftfiln e resWernial detentkm facflty tasked



wHt) en^jlng a »fe and secura flving emdronment.
• OgarAied and oversaw general act^^s, hteractions, and treatment of Juvenles„ wdiRe

provided connant oversight of mate and female youth underthe age of 18.
• Generated detly grades, behavior reports, and juvenBe progress updates.
• Assisted, redirected, and oversaw Juvenile be havtor as a related to fadtty rules, pcAdef, and

overallbeha^r wltWn the facBty. to betterprepans them forrefease and retntegratfen.

AmerlCorpsNCCC Corps Mmjirtr-SouthwestHeghn, Oenw CO 2016 to 2017
• Dedicated 10 months ofgovemrnentservlcMt working on a team of piferS with different nonprofit

organizations In southwestern Amerfcar/ssJstontfeomLrodef, gecrulter, PortfbSo Editof.
•  led team of peers during service and vokmteer projects, quantified and docunwnted weekly

progteSSind projections, presented project results to unit, arKi wrote team portfoRos compSIng
totally of Information from servloe and volunteerprojects.

• CoDaborated wkh Habhat for HwnanRy In CO for 6 weeks constnrdkig and rcrrovating
condomhiums. Servedthe communky and "at-risk" youth In NM, for 3 mrmths as staff meriArer
at Boys and Girls Chib and teacher at AppleTree Educational Center. Partnered wMi the
Montezuma Sdioo! to Farm Proje ct In CO for 3 months biitaBng and maSntafnlng school garde ns
and orchards, Corrstructhig garden hfrastnictura, and educating eleinentary school students.

MandiesterSdroolDfstrletPafaprofesskmal-SmythRoadElemintofySehotl ManchesterNH 201S
•  Paraprofesslonal In an Autism Cbssroom for 5- to T-year-^ld^ CPt certified,
• WorkedwhhlndMdualstudentsandgtoupstohekr^rtherdwelopmentaland educational skills

ofstudertts.

•  l^9y tasks Included ieamhg sessions with students, assbtance wHh bathroom use. stiack ar>d
kindi assbtarrce, recess duties, and fulhtlme superviston.

Jmenlle P/obation Intern - CopJt CountyJuveoSe Probatinn, Chicago IL 2D1S
• Actively witnessed the dally routines of Chicago and Evanston Juvihie Probation Officers.
e observed h court and excelled at office work brdudfng PowerPoint presentations, editing

Pofic^s and Procedures, and handb% ease files.
• Co^ed Freedom from Smoking Program and additional (assentations for Cook County

emptoyees.
•  Interacted dally with Juveniles on probation and famlies, as weR as with social service

orgartizatiomand rehabMationarid residenllal treatment centers.

Aftercare and Substitute Teadier, Camp Counsehr-St Benedict Acoden^, Manchester NH 2015
•  SupervbedelementarysdiooistudentsfromgradesiandergartentoS.
• Assisted students with homework, lesson plans, and d^ educational actkritles.

EXPERISNCE HICHLICHTS

leedersbip - Certified Child Protective Services Worker Mentor, AmerlCor(M NCCC Assistant Team
leader, Executive Board Member for Loyola University Chicago Club Sports to Include President, Vka
President, and Seoetary.



Melody Dion

PROFESSIONAl SUMMARY

RetaWe, and detail wfemedwtth over seven years of broad-based expertence. ̂ iedalbuMng
fcbtbmWps to persOT) to fsnifei of dverse backgioundi, cujtures end e xperfences. tJeep
understantSIng of the toiportance of customerservlce, adwcacy and gufclanoB.

PROFESSIONALSKIllS

Microsoft Offlas | fnterviewlBg j Itocwtentatton jOommunlcatloh | Sc^ort | Ongafdzation

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Science - HMtoi &Bivlois, Gmnki State f:okege. VfiNefik^S^itm (sfNK Mehehesier NH

WORK EXPERIENCE

Granite State CWIdrens Al!liwse< Bet^ordNH Februaryzoa- Piesertt
Forensic totervtevyeraiHIIIsboimtglt County Sotfth CWId Advaeaty Center, Nashua NH
• Trahed to NCAC CtiM Foremk totervtow <Cf I) Strudure, Apr! 3SS3
•  Trahed to FiNDAdaptedfor IndMduals v\ft» Do Not speak, January 2023
•  Provides forertsJc totervlew servtes to assfet chBd victtois of otoie and wRrtesses to a neutral^

toct findtog mannertofuW and ctsnply with toten^whg guklelnes, aftate statute and natlonaf
aocredftatfon requfrerrents

ManchesterNH January SKaS" February SOS

KO Case Manifer/fan^iynwraplst
»  SatherandrepcHtextensive itecumentatton for each famJy
»  Knowledge of (h0d stoise, %wM service system a«d at^ to er«a«# chSdren of all ages
•  Coofdtoate wWi »milttlls(*jltoary team todhKftog DCYF, im Enforcement and Mental Health
• Assessfamlf meth and develop plans to cxmnetZ famltosto cwnmwytyraiources
•  ProvWeparerrtedtocmfonaridcffels management, coach and educate parenu to tonprove skSls

Parent Aide

•  Coflaborate wWi f«niles and parties to create a safe enrdronmant for vistoi
•  Provide svqrpordve counseing, health and safety education

Kohto Bedford NH February - March 2021

CsshOffieeand {kiitomtrSenrlce
• Mslntatoe d die todsme of the store safe
•  CbnduetedsndiMudmdcostcmierivvlthtiielrepplcstlora
•  Cotebwated w&h Managers to quSckV readve txtstemer cwnptatots vidth appropttote action.



Robert F. ColUnsworth

EXl'ERIENCE

201^rre««nt Monadnock Child Advocar/Center Keene^Nll
Famlfy St^iport S^tedaiist

Provide cHld victims of abuse, trad thdr &n)iUcs, with siyport before, during, and after the Forensic
Interview process- Proiddc support to children and carcgivcrs during times of crisis- WWke referrals to
and connecl femllies wifti communlQ' resources* Collaborate wMi the MuJti-Disclpllnary Team (MDT)
for sdheduiing of intervicvra- Collaborate with the MDT for fbllow-tq) after interviews- Liaison between
famlites and fhe MDT- Connect with coismtmil^ agencies- Advocate for hunilies and encourage ihem to
fcci empowered to advocate for themselves- Asdst In training cramnurfty metrdjers about tlic signs of
child abuse and neglect and mar^ntmg reporting.

1587-20I6 Keene Police Drpartment Kepne.NH

AprU W - October W Patrol (^cer

Responsible for uniformed patrol zones to include imflic control and enfoiv'ement as well as accident
InvcsUgiUions, misdemeanor criminal Investigations, crime scene investigation and control. prellmh!.ir)
investigations as first responder. communi^ lia!.son with local school district, armorer, platoon properly
officer tBslicd with ensuring chain of custody and courtroom pn-traration.

(kioher Jane '16 Detective

ResponsfWe for felony level Invwtigations from onset through proseetnion to include, but not limited to.
detniled a-lme scene Investigations, witness idraUlfication and interviews, suspect idenlilicaiion and
Inlcrviets s, arresl and search •vwtrant preparation and eKecution, and to ensure the coordination t»f
services for victims and femllies. I am routtoely expected to present investigAtions to Cheshire County
Superior Court Grand Juries and other courtroom tcstin«)ny.

Assigned to monitor and oversee umfomicd oftlccr's InvcstlgatforK of mtsdoneanor crimes. 1 have been
a member of the Kcenc Police Department Tactical Team. I developed and iropJcmentcd aschmd
districi. "Officer Friendly" program. Tlw program focused on personal safety and cncouragttl
elemcnltii) school aged children and their families to establbh bcilcf intcrpcrstmal cominunication>. 1
established an initial Kcenc Police Dqartmcnt volonloer program to coordinate with the Kccne KcJioo!
District to assist with Project Graduation In staffing and fbiKl raising.

Devclopal and establlated the Kecne Police Department Polygraph Unit hi 2000,1 have conducted or
oversaw in excess of one Ihouswid examinations. As the foiaoder of the Poly graf:^ Unit 1 am al.so
assigned as the Keene Police I>epartment''a interview instructor. I am rcsprmslble for tlie professional



training of all new police officers in the skills Qriotorvicwing witnesses, vicUms «nU suspects as well as
specific tnstnK^cm in both Stole and Folcml case law fxmoliiii^ to Irtuartdewt. 1 mn ns^rn^ihlc for
oversceing the Kecne Police JDepamiKmt Polygn^i Unit to Includb unoual trainings, equipment and to
ensure that the unit is in compilance with Stale and Federal laws and protocols.

J have devcit^d and wiiHen department policy and guidelines |lntervR'w and Interrogation) For use In
the Kecne Police DeparUnenfi axreditation process.

October *84 ~ October *8 7 United States Amry Hatinu, Germany

Rc^Ttmsible for the duties of a United Slates Military Police officer to Include, few not limited to. the
enfonxnwnt of laws of the I Initomied Code of Justice. Pnnnoled to Corporal and assigned an a squad
leader. I was responsible for the ctHrdocl and duties of the twelve members in this sqimd to include
review ami submission of all related paperwork.

Assigned m the liaison with the local Gemum commnniiy to eranirc arrf ̂ Wlsb a coo|vrative and
productive rukllonshlp.

S«pt<«iber*82-M«y*83 IJelve^hyofHcwHanipStofC

September '83 -May '84 Keeae State College Keeae, NH

TRAINtNG

MH Police Stmdstfa and Training Cmmcfl; llmmih Academy
MIPSTC Child Abase Investigations
Federal Bureau of lov^iiMbnt Collection «id Prerervatfon of P^fslcaJ BvideDce
Institute ofPotke Teclmoiog)^ Criticil Report Writing
Uaivmsity of Delaware; Intsnview and Invertiptimi Adult Female Sex Assault Victims
University of Delawwre; Interview of Quid Er^oitatkxi atul S®tia! Asatolt Victims
Drug Enfoteemort Ageney; Illfcit Dreg lovcstlgatkms
t^artment of Jtotke; Drug Investigations
Amerkan Sodety aa the Abase of ChiWreii; Hieacnnefion ofRiqmaned Mcmtxy
1SHPTSQ Interview awl tetecrogatloBS
Juvenile Ckmkrence (kmrnlltee; Juveniie Law Retafted EdtKattoa
latmiatlooal Assoclatko offCblefs of Prdkr, Advanced CaaeefSs in (Hmtnal Investigations
New HampsMre Bar AfimdatlotJi Jirvenae lew Relatod Editcation and Tetdinlques
State of NH Departmrmt of Ilcaltii and Human Services; Staviving Sexual AssauR Victimization
Office of JitVenlte Jutnlct^ Child Abo«e and Bxplolfatkai Invest^atlve Techalqites
Oovemor'a CmtunWoo m Domertie Violence; IXmimttk Viol«ii» Invertlptkm
MelntcnJi Collegia Psydmlogteal Profiling c^C^ltd PredaRmi



New England Institute of Law Enfbrctmcnt; InteivkwiBg throo^Bchavkwal Ana^ts
NH Attorney Geaera]; Ho^ltal Protoool for SeaoMil Asatailt InvMtSgatsm
Acederay of Scientific Inve^igatfvo Training; Polygraph Operator
Academy of Scientific Investigative Trahti^ The Ait of Lie Oiaectton
Awidemy of Soientiflc lnvestig»ave Trabiz^ Sexual Offeoder Pdtygr^ih Exarainaf ion
IPTM; Statement Analytis
NHPSTC Advanced Statement Analyifs
Maine Polygraph Association; Use ofPolygniph b QiUd Seaual Assault iavestiptioos
Crainecticut Polygrafdi Aasoclatlon; lotiuvkniv Techniques
Slate ofNH Attomty Cjeneml'a OfTbe; Pi^ocol In Adult Sexual Assault Invn^gatigns
Maine Pc^graph Aisocfatl<»; Use of PolygraiJh Porlustl(» sod Puhik JSafi^
Academy of Sctoiitific Invtsdigativc Treblng; Forcnsfc Interview Certification

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Founding Board Manbcrof DAFFYS Teen Cemter, Keene,NH
Law Related Education fmtnictor Vobnteer
Kecne High School Project Graduation volimteer
Fall Mountain Regional School Prt^ix^ Oraduadon volunteer
Keeno Community Kitchen volunteer
Bellows Falb Community Kitchen vtduirtw
Walppb Youdi ethlctio coadh and official
Fall Mountaio Parent Teadier Group member
Fail Moumtam Regional Ifigh School Variify BasketbaO ooedt
Impact Monadnock Steering Commitlce member
Impact Monadnock Implementation Committee and Devotepment Team

PERSONAL INTER FifTS

My porsrmal btcrcsts kicliKte volunteering,the outdoors, hikbg, kayaking, physfcal fitness,
reading, travel, as well as nny two daughlcrx R^iekab and AUgsil.



MEUSSAORIANI

!iocte1worl(eTlntprfetMteaKhwiK>ignT^tareei^hltecontlroflii^tdM8tKt<SfctWrg.&f UBTt^.

EXPERtEMCE

Child Advoe8cyC«h^e^D^ H%bdnMHlhC««mty | MaiMll«»»er,KH AUSMStJOJfi -
f(tm9)fSupi^nSei\^QyWdkimr(Apr9^iM-pmsenQ ,
•  Devehp coordlni^B trplnbinfo- pifW PpihSj^ ̂pportSfiiSC^llStS Wm^n mi vftinlUt StgK Cnmitlif

AiPoniT^.
• Coordinate Irvkslng for Fomly Support Spidbststs
• BtpaPd Family SUpp^ttSgmxsfof PndfafftUeSUrVtd bt CACt wkhln the GSC* qnd ftPteWMe.
• tonihue to perform duties es Fartii^ SupportSpedoift.

FamSy Support SpechBst
»  Pro\dde diild Victims cf abuse^wd thefc- fattiBH it^sURpoft before, during, and after the Forensic Interview

process.

•  Proiidde support tcjdiWren and care^ers durlngthnas of crisis.
• Mike refe fftls to and cortnect fainBlw with commpti^y re joyroes,
•  CoBaborate with the Muftl-DhK^naryf earn (MOT) forschedirtng of Interviews.
•  CoBaborjite whb MOffor fdlOW'-pp ifter htervfhws.
• Uahon between familes and ttte Mtlt.
•  tjcMihetJWtocomrtonltyagendcs.

• AA/ocate for famBles and encourage tiiem to feel empowered to advocate for themselves.
•  Ass'Kt h trambig community members about the signs of dild abuse and negtect and mandating reporting.

ffivlsIonforChndren, YouthwdFamilies IMaodiesterjNH Api1l2<a2 *»August201fi
ChBd ProtPithe Setvki Worlar

Estabfehand devebp rebtionshlps \M\ j^ldren and families to assess safety the diBd.
Omdu^ihteivfewsdfthaVWlmsii^P«fpetraforWHbln«tne franxes.

Ewhwte the risk If the ehW remh In the home airf rtcommend course of action.
Manage workload wdth many fimBesat different leveb of need.
Respond to urgent aKs.
Cohabofatlvely vw>rk with cofnmuhlty agenctes.
Place chld(ren) outside of ttrelrhoma whenfound It h not safe for them to rertwin %i fhclrhome.
Coordinate and encourage ixHhmuftlcbtlon between foster parents, telatVe caregbrgrs and birth parents,
tovertfw office and assign new assessments.
PartWpate li eonnmlttee to Improve the assessment process.
Mentor new empfeyees.

City of Manchester | MandhestebNH Septemb8r20(»-Aprfi2O12
Pecreatkm SpfthSst H
•  SuperViseyouthwhowouldcometoUievouthcehtetaftersOhool
•  Assist the youth In working with computers, conpleting homework, and partidpating In activities.



EDUCATION, SKWS & aRTlRCATIONS

6ach*loi:of^<>c|alWor)( MaiydlUl
Hcafipsfilre

Cradtfi^edwNt honors
Wbhf of the iocW WoA rt?nprs

Tesichlr$At^lst^nt
Interned ^9 l^^onforChfldferiYoudii
F>|^

Sgtu^on Basf d jCasewWh CertlftcatMi t;^4
}^in.d^ Interviewing Certlfkai|bh EPJ?
Vlcthri Ad vofca'cy tValnlngj Au^st 201fr-f resent
Mentor at New Hampshire VkdmAsslrtanteApdenrf

MoflvatldnBl lnteMewltvTraln% Deoember'ZOZi



Gretchen H, Ricks, IVI.A.

Edtj«atlon MAbi8d»dQ)m»Ri^'-l)ae4tnib0r2(9O9
Titn!^Onh«r%

&A in Broatkmt .kxsTifilsn)
Unlv*tslV 0* Maiytend

V(39hingtM),DC

CdM;isP8{1t.MD

Work Au9U3t2(£»-pro8«tii
exfNirionc* Or»nH»Stai«Chfl^«ii^«Alitsiie»

iStabamuj^ Omir% SoiAt CHhi A^Jvoeacy Canter

PrwgiwB
• OriwesftetxjofdhwftmiMTrfwtaWslraikmcffiwtlaByoperaSB^
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Julia Sullivan

p)WATON.
WaVERSmrOF new HAMPSIiIRE Dflttam, NH
Backdor (fSdenct Human Drvehpisent erd Fam Ŝtudies Cbncenfratfon 6i Fmify Si^f^art Dec 2022
CPA: 3.6S

• Rttevaat QttnrtewariB CMiitn, Adatam^ £ flte Uw, Rmx, Chw. (ka&r ft Fanalies, lo&ntte RdatioDiluiMi and
FamOiei, Hsmao Devabpsrai, Emmie Ciia» tod Daiiaqiifincy
• Awards & flonors: Deans List High Honors Spriae 2020, Deans list Hcaion Fall 2020, Deans List Highest Honors
Sjwhtg 2021, D«»is list HoRors Pidl 2021

EXPERIENCE

Greater Lakes Child Advocacy CoitM-, Granth: State Chldrem AUiBce Laeosla NH

Faiaily Sujqtwt Specials M19 2023-Ptcamt
• Cooidhwte with the multidisdplinaiy to schedule interviews.

• Fotmtikte nimtal heald! and medical leferrals fer diildnai aiKf ai&tita.

• Provide foHow-^ cwvecKtiom and aej^port to fittmHea.

Strafford County Child Advocacy Center Dover, NH

Mtm Sept 2(02—Jan 2023
• Initial data entry ofcases into NCAfrack

• Consider rcaourcess and referrals to beat support faisiilies.

• Cftaerve tntervicwi Oiea write aubsequeijt repots.

Household Nanny Dovw, NH

Hamo>Jid202i-Jdi^2023
• Ensure proper care to five diiidren aged 2 months to 8 years.
• Help develop and monitor family stdtedule.

• Orgaaive and conduct age-appropriate recreafional activitiai, suds as games, arts «od cmiita, sports, and playdates,
Ijdte Wlonlpessukee Golf ClnbNew Durham, NH
Server/Barlender May 202J -Present

• Chedc with CBStomen to ensuie fiud &ey too eojoying &dr toeals Kit! take actioa to ctntect ariy pRiblems.
• Asdid kMt by answerkig phoiito to lake i«S8tvdu»x or orderi, and by greetmg, tetttiag, and tfamldng guests.
• Perfmm cksnmg dtdies, so^ to sweepkg od fiooia, TsaRaatsisg caipeit, tklying If) sesver statioti, taldbg CRit
tmsh, or cheddng and cleaisngiestrooiw.

Nashoi School Dtstrtd Nufaoa, NH

Subsdtute Teacher Jan 2020-Fei 2022

« Taught btoie sldlls sudt as tnadterimd fettamtogndtirai, peraoBa! fâ kmo. aa! todtd skiUs.
• Read bodes to entire dassto car to anal! groqpi.

• Enforced aU idmimstnditB polkdm and ndta govendag itudnitto.
Sky Meadow Country Clab Nathoa, NH

Pool WaiFess/Bartender^ 2019 • Sep 2020
• Checked ideotificatioo of cuttraners to vtsifyage reqdremetaa for pnrdstse of dedioL
• CSessed ban, work areas, and tdiles.

• Recorded and MSiled &Qd and bevenge ortten.
D«ti«hyfeNaibaB,NH
Mowtgtr Afo-ion'Mar2019
- Eatidtfished ichetMe to came covetage ofopenttoo.
•Miintiined mventory and placed weekly orders.

• Pnndded fiietdly cBMoaser sendees.

dBSop Ob Ib Ntihaa, NU
Supervisor 2026 • Apr 2018
• Ensured d» la&ty an paidclpants, tatugh e^abBdnomt aad enferctoncnt ofrules.
> S^pmnsed ecf^rioyem b flie rniaisg ofhirtbdsy pwties eiid ̂ pecitd evBi^
• Organiaed facility usage tad payment user feet.

OUTSIDE mURESTS

• Erjoy bcsdng, Bibkg, fiimily activities, cstrd and board gamtss, traveUng. and att«Kiir>g t^xtrtiag events



Annie Lelio, MA

HIGHLIGHTS

•  Pre-licensed, master's-level dirucal under dltdcal supervision In New Hampshire.
•  Extensive dinical mental health experience with diverse dient populations in

inpatient, outpatient, and crisis treatment settings.
•  Trained in TTauma-Focused Cc^nltive Behavioral Therapy (TF-CBT), Teachable

Moment Brief Intervention (TMBl) for survivors of serious suicide attempts,
Motivatonal Interviewing (MI), Illness Management and Recovery (IMR), and
various arts-based, expressive modalities.

• Knowledge of evidence-based practices suitable for treating a variety of mental
health conditions and differing levels of functional impairment

EDUCATION

Master of Arts in Qinical Mental Health Counseling September 2023
SoutJjem New Hampshire University, CPA 4.0

Badielor of Fine Arts in Musical Theatre 2016
Nebraska Wesleyan University, CPA 3.9

CLINICAL EXPERIENCE

Master's Level Behavioral Health Clinician September 2023-Present
Granite Stats Children's Alliance (GSCA)-Behavioral Health Program
Manchester, NH

t Offer mental health consultation, psychoeducation, and dinical recoramendatfons to
the MultidisdplinaryTeam (MDl) during forensic interviews.

• Administer dinical assessments to evaluate treatment needs.
•  Provide Trauma-Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (TF-CBT) to child victims

and their non-offending caregivers.
• Assist caregivers with referrals to behavioral healdi services and resources as

deemed necessary.
• Maintain ongoing relationships widt on-slte and off-site partner agendes.
•  Profident in SlmplePractice software for electronic documentation.

Master's Level Counseling Intern February 2023-September 2023
CILEATE.I Center for Expressive Arts, Therapy, and Education
Manchester, NH

«  Provide outpatient counseling for adolescent and adult dients under supervision of
licensed clinical mental health counselor supervisor.

•  Fulfil! hour and academic requirements according to standards of CACREP.



• Evaluate clients for mental health diagnoses, develop and implement treatment
plans, and complete documentation in a timely and professional manner.

•  Demonstrate e&ically-sound, culturalty^ sensitive, and client-centered treatment
while remaining receptive and open to supervisor feedback and guidance to
maximize growth and leaniing.

Mental Health Counselor April 2022-September 2023
Mencoi Health Center of Greater Mancher-Cypress Center Inpatient Pr^cMatric Unit
Mandiester, NH

•  Provide 1:1 crisis intervention counseling in the milieu environment of a sixteen-bed
locked, psychiatric unit

• Utilize evidence-based practices including, but not limited to. Dialectical Behavior
Therapy (DBT), Motivational Intendewing (MI), Illness Management and Recovery
(IMR) in both Individual and group settings.

• Work collaboratively with external and internal referral sources to seamlessty
facilitate admission and discharge prooess and ensure client connection fx»
long-term treatment and support tailored to their individual needs,

•  Complete documentation in a timely manner v\diile demonstrating sound clinical
judgment a dient-centered approach, and strong attention-to-detail

Peer Support Specialist I! August 2020-April 2022
Riverbend Community Mental Health- Crisis Treatment Center/Mobile Crisis Team
Concord, NH
•  Provide immediate support to individuals in crisis upon arrival by sharing personal

mental health experience to establish rapport and provide practical guidance
• Deliver functional support crisis intervention services (FSS-CI) to manage

symptoms, promote stabilization and assist clients in returning to pre-crisis level of
functioning.

• Assess individuals and work to Identify appropriate treatment options, resources
and services while collaborating dosefy with colleagues.

•  Stand with and walk alongside clients and offer moral support throughout the intake
process and schedule follow-up telehealth and/or office appointments as needed.

CLINICAL TRAININGS

• Trauma-Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (TF-CBT), November 2023
• Teachable Moment Brief Intervention (TMBI), June 2022
•  Sand Tray Therapy, June 2023
•  Illness Management and Recovery, (IMR) September 2020
• Trauma-Informed Care, September 2020

OTHER PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Touring Actor/Teaching Artist October 2019-December 2019
Hampstead Stage Company



Barnstead, NH
•  Perform up to ten, two-actor theatrical performances of classical literature per week

to schools and libraries across the country.
•  Facilitate Q&A sessions and theater workshops following performances upon venue

request in an engaging and developmentally-appropriate manner.
•  Plan travel routes, book lodging and efficiently communicate with company ofilces

and venues when needed.

• Work collaboratively and professionally with co-actor while demonstrating excellent
problem-solving, communication and organizational skills.

FrontDesk Manager December 2019-June 2019
Power PiJates

Upper East Side, NY
• Maintain high standards of client service, cleanliness, and attention-to-detail in an

upscale, Manhattan fitness studio.
• Demonstrate proficiency in use of MindBody software to effldently coordinate

Instructor availability, process payment; and manage class rosters.
• Assist clients in-person, via phone, and through email with class registration and by

providing extensive and accessible information about the Pilates exercise system.

Server/Barista/Cashier August 2018-March2020
Hamilton's Bakery
Harlem, New York, NY

• Extensive knowledge of coffee creation including, but not limited to dialing in,
pulling espresso and steaming milk.

• Balance cash management, teamwork, and reliability with top tier customer service.
• Manage high-volume cafe while providing efficient and pleasant table service,

ensuring pleasant dining experience to both to visiting and returning guests.

Core Staff Member/Social Media Recruiter April 2018 - March 2020
Riviera Caterers

New York, NY

• As a Core Staff Member, receive priority for assignment to higher-caliber events
while assisting with new-staff training and orientation.

• Professionally recruit and inform potential, promising staff remotely via popular
social media platforms to enhance pool of available staff during high-volume event
season.

•  Exude the highest standards of service, professionalism, and uniform while catering
high-end events, concerts and socials throughout New York City.

• Assist with set-up and breakdown of event, food service, coat check, all while
maintaining a clean-cut, approachable, and iriendfy demeanor.

•

Touring Aclor/LIghting Assistant August 2017-December 2017
Chamber Theatre Productions



Boston, MA

•  Perform a series of 19* century short stories for middle school students up to five
mornings per week.

• Assist with load-in and out of set pieces, construction of lighting systems and travel
responsibilities.

• Work effectively witih team of eight other tour members and demonstrate strong
adaptability to changing circumstances.

Shift Leader November 2016-August 2018
Sprinkles NY
Upper East Side, N ew York, NY
•  Assist management team with store operations to create and maintain positive

service experiences for high-volume cupcake bakery.
•  Supervise and direct workforce, make daily staffing decisions, monitor inventory

levels and ensure customer satisfaction, product quality, and overall safety and
security within the store.

Careglver/Nanny August 2010 - October 2020
Multiple Families
Lee and Durham, NH
•  Provide reliable and nurturing care while establishing positive, trusting

relationships with both children and careglvers.
• Assist with general tasks including, but not limited to, housework, meal preparation,

homework support, chfld engagement and enrichment activities and transportation
to and from school or other locations.

Administrative Assistant August 2016-November 2016
Thompson School of Applied Science
Durham, NH

•  Perform general clerical duties to support smooth functioning of collegiate
administrative office.

• Assist with organization and facilitation of school and/or staff events, office
maintenance, and data entry.

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE

Volunteer Advocate September 202 l-Present
HAVEN- Violence Prevention and Support Services
Portsmouth, NH

• Provide confidential, non)udgmental 24/7 phone support, crisis counseling and
resources to those affected ly sexual and domestic Science, and stalking.

Student Volunteer August 2015-December 2015
Child Advocacy Center (CAQ



Lincoln, NE

•  Provide empathic support to both children and caregivers before and after forensic
interview process,

• Cultivate safe and engaging space for children awaiting parents return when
meeting with the CAC team of professionals.

•  Complete administrative duties as needed to support successful functioning of
office.



Victoria Cronin

SUMMARY

Clinical Mental Health Counseling student with proven experience in providing crisis intervention, advocacy
and support to children and families with specialized training in domestic and sexual abuse. Well versed and
connected to local organizations and supports in the community. Substantial background on children
development through education and direct experience for ten years. Enthusiastic about collaboratively working
with children and their families to meet their needs and goals. Open minded and willing to leam from others.

EDUCATION

Master of Arts in Clinical Mental Health Counseling September 2023
Southern New Hampshire University- CACREP accredited

Bachelor of Science in H uman Services December 2019

Granite State College

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Behavioral Health Clinician July 2024 - Present
Granite State Children's Alliance

•  Participation in Multidisciplinary Team (MD13 interviews to offer support to the MOT regarding the
child and family's need for mental health support

•  Assess for and advise the MDT regarding risk of suicide and safety concerns of the child and/or family
•  Provide Trauma-Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (TF-CBT): An evidence-based treatment for

children and adolescents who are experiencing posttraumatic stress symptoms in relation to a
traumatic experience or event

•  Provide Child and Family Traumatic Stress Intervention (CFTSI): A short-term, evidence-based, parent
child intervention to help reduce trauma sjnnptoms following exposure to violence or abuse

•  Referral assistance to community-based agencies providing specialized trauma services
Mental Health Counselor December 2023 - May 2024
Clear Reflections Counseling Associates
•  Develop and implement individualized treatment plans for clients based on their individual needs.
•  Design and integrate creative counseling sessions with play, art; and writing interventions to meet the

interests of each client

•  Maintain a caseload of twenty clients, monitoring, and documenting progress.
•  Foster and maintain strong relationships with clients and their families.

Court Diversion Intake Worker April 2023 ~ Present
The Youth Council

•  Interview children and their caregivers to obtain information regarding the youth's background.
•  Present information to the court diversion panel highlighting the youth's strengths.
•  Collaborate with the court diversion panel to produce creative consequences to add to the youth's

contract to mitigate recidivism.
•  Educate the youth and families on the laws and regulations in the state of New Hampshire.

Elementary Student Assistance Program Counselor April 2023 - November 2023
The Youth Council

•  Conduct time limited individual and group counseling sessions in school.
•  Facilitate prevention and education discussions and programs.
•  Implement evidence-based programming and tools.
•  Collaborate with school counselors, behavioral specialists, social worker, and teachers to achieve

student wellness.

•  Communicate with families to address needs and barriers to foster positive outcomes for the child.



Mental Health Counseling Intern February 2023 - September 2023
The Youth Council

•  Assess, diagnose, and treat clients who experience symptoms of psychological distress.
•  Talk to and provide psychotherapy to clients.
•  Participate in weekly supervision.

Nsnny February 2019-Present
Private Nanny
•  Foster a nurturing, positive, and loving environment ranging from ages two to seven years old.
•  Educate two families on children's development
•  Implement activities weekly to foster social-emotional development
•  Create new strategies to promote positive behaviors.

ACEs & Crisis Response Child Advocate August 2019 - March 2021
Bridges: Domestic & Sexual Assault Support Center

•  Started as an intern and was promoted to an employee after internship.
•  Created a support group curriculum for three children who entered the shelter under the age of six.
•  Developed the new role by establishing goals and needs in the community.
•  Innovate new ways to outreach and collaborate with the community.
• Advocate for clients with police departments, DCYF, counselors, and court
•  Identify problems, explore options, and support clients in making their own decisions.
•  Offer emotional support, assistance, advocacy, referral information, and follow-up as needed.
•  Identified a need and created a LGBTQ+ training with activities and information.

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS
CAST

Community Action for Safe Teens
The National Society for Leadership & Success



A

Licensed Ollnlcal Menial HeaRfi Counselor

Ouallficetlons

★ Over 30 yeais professlcmal esxperience working with children and families
★ Exceptional written and verbal coormunicatlon skills
★ Supportive leadership style

★ Flexible, energetic; oeathte fUnker
-k Ibdned in evidence based models (TF^BT, OPP, SBC, and MQ

★ ̂ proved supervisor for tiw NH Board of lifental Health

Professional Clinical Experience
Prograuoa Coordinator/Olnical Supervisctr
Waypoint, Kcene, NH (4/2019 to Premnt); Idanchestei; NH (12/2021 to present)

■ Provides weekly clinical supervislotn to ISO/WB and PA staff in Keene and Manchester
•Hans aBd nins weekly group supervlslcai meetings
•Works with trainer to ensure new staff are able to ireet the needs of ttjelr positiCKU
•Works collaboratlvely with memhen of tbe Family Preservation Department and refencal souras
•Supports program manager in planning aikl lunn^ mcattMy teanj meetings
★ Oversees tte staff work and flies to ensure they are comjilant with state regidations and r^ency policies

r«mlly Therapist
Wrypoint (Bonneriy Child and Family Services of NH5» Keene, NH (10/2011 to 4/2019)

•Office-based Individual aid family therapy
•En^ges families In effective in-hcnsecounsding services at a variety of service levels (TT, IHB,ISO)
•Provides case mana^sment, fomily therapy, and case wodr as needed
•Works cooperatively wlthffi a team environment
•Provides trauma assessmeiXs and treatment as needed

•^ipervlsor for dinidans woridng tomid licensure

Pamilyshength, Keene, NH (OS/2009 to 10/2011)
★ Provided effective in-home coumtellng for at risk famflies
★ Referred families to community otganiaations to attain needed services
•Provided written assessments and reports for DCYF, DJJS, and the district court rystem
•Developed effective service plans vrtth cfearly written goals
•Worked collaboratlvely with DCYF and DJJS
•Actively partldpated in pear staff meetfngs and in-servlce traliUngs

Professional Writing
Coltmnist for *The Monadnock Family* and Healing Petspecthres* columns
The hfonadnode Shopper News, Keene, NH (1996 - present)

• Researches letevantfoiffily and aientaltusdth topics
• Writuartides with famlfy sod mental health tbenMsiekvam for area fluniUes



RIanna Bazzlnotti, UCSW

Oblectlve

To apply evidence-based practices and honor the NASW code of ethics while working with clients in a

trauma-informed clinical setting

Education

Gordon Coilege Columbia University School of Social Work

Wenham, MA New York, NY

BA Social Work MS Social Work

Graduation: May 16,2015 Graduation; May 16, 2018

Experience

Licensed Behavioral Health Clinician August 2024-present (full time)

Granite Stote Children's Alliance Behavioral Health Program

•  Provide trauma-informed clinical consultation to the multidisciplinary team at forensic

Interviewers through Merrimack County Advocacy Center

•  Provide clinical assessment and treatment to youth and families involved in the forensic

interviewing process.

Individuai Qinician and Group Skilis Class Teacher August 2022-present (part time)

DBTforYou

•  Provide individual DBT therapy for children ages 12-18

•  Teach DBT skills group weekly to adolescents and families

•  Teach parenting group weekly for parents of children ages 8-12 with emotional dysregulation

Child and Adolescent Clinician December 2019- August 2024(full time)

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manches^r

•  Develop and implement clinical treatment plans for children, adolescents, and families

•  Conduct safety assessments using the Columbia Suicide Rating Scale and create safety plans

•  Provide individual, family therapy and case management

•  Participate in DBT-A consult and teach skills in full DBT-A group

•  Conduct intakes and complete bio-psychosocials for incoming families/ give diagnoses and

treatment recommendations based on intake assessment

•  Contracted with Manchester School District for 2023-2024 school year to provide in school

therapy and intakes for students and provide consultation for administration and guidance

counselors

Child and Family Therapist June 2018-December 2019

Nashua Children's Home Nashua, NH

•  Developed treatment plans for residential treatment with clients age 8-18

•  Provided weekly individual and/or family therapy for clients at least 1 hour/week

•  Provided case management and coordination between parents/guardians, DCYF, etc

• Attended client's court hearings for family court/ juvenile justice matters



Primafy Therapist (Social work Intern) September 2017- May 2018

Henry Ittleson Child Research Center Bronx, New York, NY

•  Created treatment plans for 8-12 y.o with multiple psychiatric diagnoses in a residential setting

•  Provided weekly individual and/or family therapy for 1 hour/week

•  implemented discharge plans by coordination of community services

Residential Counselor September ZOlS-July 2017

Nashua Children's Home Nashua, N H

•  Implemented treatment plans developed for adolescent girls in residential setting

•  Provided crisis intervention and stabilization

•  Coordination of recreational activities for individuals and groups

ESOL program -coordinator

Bosnian Community Center for Resource Development

May 2015- September 2015

Lynn, MA

•  Taught three levels of ESOL classes to adult immigrants

•  Promoted and planned cultural events

Relevant Skills and Trainings

Knowledge and comfort using telemedicine

Strengths-based approaches

Knowledge/application of NASW code of

ethics

Experience and knowledge of use of

electronic medical records

Specialized training in suicide assessments,

safety planning and crisis intervention

Certification in 7 Challenges Evidence Based

practice (Substance abuse interventions for

ages 14-25)

Certification in D8T for Eating Disorder

treatment and DBT-Adolescents

Knowledge of evidence-based trauma

focused interventions such as TF-CBT,

MATCH, and TF- play therapy, and CFSTI

Experience Implementing DBT-A and DBT-C

interventions, teaching skills group and

parenting groups

Use of PHa gad, Hope Scale, UCLA brief,,

CANS and other diagnostic assessment tools


